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WHITEHORSE PLANNING SCHEME
14/06/2019
ADVERTISED MATERIAL

CITY OF WHITEHORSE

“This copied document is made available for the sole
purpose of enabling its consideration and review as
part of a planning permit under the Planning and
Environment Act 1987. The document must not be
used for any purpose which may breach copyright.’ |
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PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987
WHITEHORSE PLANNING SCHEME

14/06/2019

ADVERTISED MATERIAL

CITY OF WHITEHORSE
“This copied document is made available for the sole
purpose of enabling its consideration and review as
part of a planning permit under the Planning and
Environment Act 1987. The document must not be
used for any purpose which may breach copyright.’
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Attachment 1  Box Hill MAC Consultation Summary
Report
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1.1 Introduction

MGS Architects was engaged by the Whitehorse City Council in December
2018 to prepare a review of the strategic direction for the Box Hill Metropolitan
Activity Centre alongside a multi-disciplinary team including TQ Planning
(statutory and strategic planning), SGS Economics and Planning (economics and
demographic projections), Movement and Place Consulting (strategic transport)
and Mary Papaioannou Landscape Architecture (public realm).

The purpose of this document is to outline the community consultation strategy
undertaken within the scope of this project and to provide a summary of
findings from the community and stakeholder consultation.

Phase 1 Phase 2
Online Map Online Survey and ;
Survey Drop-in Events '
. . ~— * 5
05/03 26/03 30/04 ! 29/07 i
Stakeholder Stakeholder Stakeholder | Stakeholder i
Reference Reference Reference Reference !
Group Group Group ! Group 1
Meeting 1 Meeting 2 Meeting3 ! Meeting 4 ;
! W
+ May 2019 October 2019
e
¢ .
N N
AMNAL Analysis 7 7 7 71 DRAFT
& Options Report Structure Plan

released for review

Timeline of Community Engagement

As indicated in the diagrammatic summary above, multiple forms of community
and stakeholder consultation has been integrated into the project throughout
the development of the reports and key deliverables. Primarily, the engagement
has consisted of three main elements:

— Direct engagement with key agencies and landowners for strategic
development sites in the form of one-on-one or small group meetings;

— Broad public consultation using an online map survey and pop-up events
within Box Hill; and

— Establishing a Stakeholder Reference Group (SRG) composed of key
representatives from community, institutions, land owners and agencies

The results of Phase 1 was summarised in the Analysis and Options Report, and
reproduced in this summary report.

MGS Architects | TQ Planning | Movement & Place Consulting | 5G5 Economics & Planning | 3
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Community

Engagement
Phase 1
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2.1

Community Engagement Approach

The first phase of wider community engagement in
February 2019 was an online map survey hosted on
Whitehorse City Council's consultation website. The
aim of this online interface was to rapidly engage
with a potentially broad {though self-selected)
portion of the community both living within and
visiting Box Hill for work or recreation. The approach
meant that the process was open to people who
were not physically in Box Hill during the specific
consultation period.

The structure of the interface allowed for both
simple and deeper participation and feedback.
Initially participants were invited to drop a pin on a
map sorted by the consultation themes, and provide
an open written response to two questions: “"Why
did you choose this location?” and “"How would
you like this place to look or feel in the future?”
Participants were also asked to rate the place on

a scale from “very bad” to “very good”. Once pin
feedback was given participants were invited to
provide more detailed feedback in response to
survey questions related to the theme of interest.

A pop-up event formed an extension of the online
survey. Members of the project team plus council
officers participated in a three-hour event within

the Box Hill mall that was primarily intended to

raise awareness of the survey but also secondarily
intended to gain additional feedback from members
of the community that might not otherwise have
access to the website. Community members were
invited to give feedback on a hard-copy survey or to
go to the website to give their ideas.

Box Hill MAC Consultation Summary Report

The result of the combined online and pop-up
was as follows:

— 70+ conversations at the pop-up event
— 777 unigue visitors to the online map
— 122 pins provided by 54 authors

— 63 votes on the pin comments provided by 13
voters

— 31 people provided answers to the more detailed
survey gquestions

— 8 survey responses were provided a written hard
copy submissions

— Additional comments provided via Facebook

The online interface for the map and survey allowed
the collection of basic demographic details of the
participants. Of the 59 separate participants in

the map interface (providing either pins, votes or
comments), 29 were female (49%), 18 were male
(31%) and 12 unknown (20%). Of the 31 participants
in the detailed survey, 20 were female (65%) and 11
were male (35%).

MGS Architects | TQ Planning | Movement & Place Consulting | 5G5 Economics & Planning | 5
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2.2

Consultation Themes

All consultations during Phase 1 of the project have
been structured using the same broad themes
relevant to the 2007 Structure Plan. This was
conceived specifically to broaden the conversation
beyond a focus on built form outcomes towards a
wider range of potential opportunities for the plan
to respond to. We asked participants to directtheir
feedback towards the following broad areas of

interest.

o

Places and Spaces for People: this theme
relates to public and community facilities,
both indoors and outside. The questions
covered the needs of the community as

a whole as well as the more specialised
needs of smaller community sectors such
as the elderly, children and families. This
theme also introduced cultural diversity as
a topic for feedback.

Living in Box Hill: this theme relates

to providing homes for a growing and
changing community. The need to house

a significantly larger future population was
one consideration, as were the specific
needs of families, students and an aging
community. We made specific reference to
different types of housing including higher-
density apartments as well as lower height
developments.

Working and learning in Box Hill: our
questions highlighted the important role

of the centre in providing employment
opportunities and we raised the significant
future employment growth as an important
factor to consider. The guestions within
this theme introduced the important role
of both small and large enterprises as well
as health and education institutions as
employment generators.

6 | Box Hill MAC Strategic Review Analysis & Options | Community Engagement

Box Hill MAC Consultation Summary Report

Shopping and visiting Box Hill: this
theme provided a context for discussions
about the people who visit Box Hill, their
reasons for visiting and what attracts
people to stay. This included visiting Box
Hill for shopping, recreation, entertainment,
for business orto visit friends.

Getting around Box Hill: this very broad
category of guestions concerned the
multiple ways people get to, from and
around Box Hill, including by walking,
bicycle, public transport or private vehicles.
Box Hill's major role as a transport
interchange was a focus but also the
challenges of managing traffic congestion
and parking were introduced as topics to
consider.

Buildings, character, and image: this area
of discussion concermed questions of what
Box Hill looks and feels like - its ‘character’,
its ‘image and identity” and what makes it a
distinctive and special place for the whole
community. The question of landmarks
and key streetscapes was introduced
considering both built form and the public
realm
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23

Community Perspectives

A preliminary review of the responses to the map and
the survey has provided a series of key perspectives
to address through the structure plan process.

The importance of quality places

The places that received the most positive
responses were predominately examples of public
and community infrastructure. Box Hill Gardens,
Kingsley Gardens, Box Hill Hospital, the library

and the town hall were all identified as valued
elements of Box Hill's identity. In the future these
valued locations should look and feel similar to how
they are now — the key message was that these
important places should be protected. More access
to leafy green places and more community space
was described as important. Better connections
between the bus and other transport interchanges
was nominated as important, as was more nightlife
and opportunities for more restaurants, shops and
spaces for events.

Dissatisfaction with degraded facilities

In general terms there were many more places that
received negative responses than positive. The poor
quality of the transport interchange was repeatedly
raised as a major issue, using words like old, dirty,
shabby, narrow, crowded and poorly connected

to describe it. The only positive aspect of the
transport interchange was its functional value as a
means to access multiple public transport options
Improved interconnectivity for pedestrians and
mobility impaired patrons between buses, trams
and trains was an obvious and repeated preferred
future change, but so was the importance of clean
and bright spaces that were safe and inviting and
include greenery.

The interchange was not the only location described
using these similarly negative terms. Many public
areas (both in the public realm and the quality of
private buildings) particularly in the core of the
centre were also described as tired or dirty. The
underpass across Station Street was repeatedly
noted by respondents as a poor space for
pedestrians and unsuitable for cyclists. Poor lighting
in public spaces was also repeatedly raised as an
important perceived safety issue.

Box Hill MAC Consultation Summary Report

Increasing congestion

Traffic congestion and parking issues was another
dominant characteristic of many negative responses.
Various respondents referred to the difficulty in driving
through the centre and finding parking at the core.
Equally, traffic was seen as a key barrier to walking
around the centre, alongside inconsistent footpath
quality and accessibility. The very poor quality of
bicycle infrastructure was noted in multiple locations.
Overall, however, the preferred future response to
congestion and accessibility was surprisingly diverse.
While some saw the importance of more parking,
others suggested removing car parking and even

the pedestrianisation of parts of the core to make it
easier to get around. Improved north-south pedestrian
connections across Whitehorse Road and across

the rail line was mentioned repeatedly. Completion

of major cycle routes was raised by more than one
respondent.

Built form and character

Multiple respondents raised the issue of
development scale. Many responses focussed

on poor quality high rise development, loss of

trees and the wind tunnel effect created by taller
buildings. Interestingly, some responses that were
highly critical of high rise apartments still nominated
heights of up to five or six storeys as “lower rise”
development that might be appropriate for the
centre. There were multiple references to increasing
the amount of greenery and a reduction in building
bulk as a potential improvement. Multiple responses
included references to the problem of uncoordinated
development —neighbourhoods were described as
collections of individual buildings with no unified
vision. Multiple responses referred to the importance
of leafy streets and good public spaces as a way to
make the neighbourhoods feel like places.

Cultural diversity

A significant number of respondents pointed to
tensions from a perceived dominance by two

major cultural groups rather than the diversity more
representative of broader Melbourne. Very few
responses described Box Hill as a multicultural place
at the moment, even though festivals and public
places such as the fresh food market and Carmington
Road were noted as positive features of the area.
Multiple responses suggested that Box Hill would
benefit from greater cultural diversity. Specifically
there was a desire for a greater range of cultures to
be represented in the range of shops and restaurants
in Box Hill.

MGS Architects | TQ Planning | Movement & Place Consulting | 5G5 Economics & Planning | 9
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Community

Engagement
Phase 2
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3.1

Community Engagement Approach

In May 2019 Council resolved to proceed with an
additional round of community consultation to help
provide more detail to inform the development

of the Strategic Review for Box Hill Metropolitan
Activity Centre. The consultation commenced at
the same time the Analysis and Options Report
was released to the whole community.

The engagement was focused on consulting on
the key messages received by the project team in
the early parts of the project plus a list of key ideas
and initiatives that will help guide the next phase
of Box Hill's growth. This process was driven
using ideas introduced in the Analysis and Options
report.

There were three main components to the
engagement process undertaken during July 2019:

— An online survey hosted via Council's website
(open for three weeks, 15 July-2 August 2019),
avallable in English and also translated into
Chinese to assist with engaging with a broader
proportion of the local community;

— A three-hour drop-in information session at
Box Hill Town Hall {18 August 2019), where
participants were invited to view and respond
to information panels containing a simplified
version of the survey questions.

— A three-hour informal pop-up infoermation
session at Box Hill Mall (27 August 2019), to
raise the profile of the online survey and also
to allow the public to provide feedback via
the information panels containing a simplified
version of the survey questions.

The focus for this round was to make it as easy
as possible for members of the community to
engage with the survey questions, assisted by
the interactions with project team members. The
same survey questions were used throughout all
parts of the consultation process

Box Hill MAC Consultation Summary Report

Format of the community feedback

Respondents who engaged with the online survey
directly provided answers to the questions through
the web interface. Participants were invited to either
click a check-box next to their preferred answer or
for some questions, provide free-form answers in
the text box provided. Community members were
invited to provide survey responses on printed
versions of the survey If they were unable to engage
online.

During the drop-in and pop-up sessions the
community was invited to engage with information
posters that displayed a version of the survey
questions. Participants were encouraged to place
sticker dots on the posters to register their feedback
to the guestions.

During this consultation period the project team also
met with the Stakeholder Reference Group. During
this meeting the survey questions were discussed
and further feedback sought from the stakeholder

group.

Further free-form submissions were made via

email to Council's customer service address. These
ranged from short emails on particular topics of
concern, to more comprehensive submissions from
landowners prepared by planning consultants.

The results across all parts of the process are set
out overthe following pages.

MGS Architects | TQPlanning | Movement & Place Consulting | 5G5S Economics & Planning | 11
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3.2 Consultation Themes

The survey component of the community
consultation was structured into six distinct themes
based on the propositions developed during

Phase 2 of the project. These ideas build upon the
future options proposed in the Analysis and Options
Report This was designed to collect both open
responses and quantifiable feedback on the ideas
proposed in each theme.

Future Vision for Box Hill

A new vision was drafted in response to
feedback and engagement with wider
community and workshop discussions
with council and key stakeholders.

Distinctive Neighbourhoods

Specific vision statements were
developed to present a distinct vision
for the future of each neighbourhood.
These short statements seeks to clearly
define the roles and characteristics of
each neighbourhood.

Managing future growth

Over the next 20 years, the residential
population of Box Hill will more than
double, and the number of jobs will
increase by 59%. Planning for this
change will require balancing growth
in housing and other uses, such as
employment in particular locations.

12 | Box Hill MAC Strategic Review Analysis & Options | Community Engagement

Streets as places for people

As the number of residents, workers
and visitors in Box Hill increases,
there will be a need to rethink the role
of streets and consider a range of
opportunities to improve the quality of
streets for pedestrians.

Managing vehicles and parking

Traffic congestion and car parking is key
iIssue for Box Hill. A CBD style approach
Is proposed to limit the amount of
private car parking and encourage
publicly accessible car parking in
locations that are easy to access by
walking, cycling and public transport.

Managing development

As Box Hill grows it will become more
important for future development to
contribute to creating great places

for people. A range of built form
considerations were proposed to
identify which were more important to
the community when considering the
impacts of taller buildings.
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Survey Responses

A review of the survey responses demonstrate
broad community support for the vision and
the propositions presented in the survey. These
responses are summarised by theme.

Future Vision for Box Hill

The majority of respondents strongly supported the
future vision for Box Hill, with the remainder showing
amajority of support for most parts of the vision.
There was a higher level of importance placed on
the key role of Box Hill as a major public transport
hub and the provision of ample public spaces and
places designed for people. The key message was
that aspects of the vision that were more clearly
related to public benefits were considered more
important.

Distinctive Neighbourhoods

In summary, responses to the vision statements

for each individual neighbourhood demonstrate

a broad level of support. Of particular note, the
majority of responses to the vision for Central,
Prospect and Civic & Cultural Neighbourhoods were
strongly supportive of the neighbourhood visions
and the vision for Garden Neighbourhood was very
strongly supported by the community. This is a
significant key message, demonstrating confidence
in the respective mixed-use, employment, civic

and cultural focus of these neighbourhoods.

While Enterprise and Health and Education
Neighbourhoods received lower responses in strong
support, there was very clear support for most parts
of the vision proposed for both neighbourhoods.
Residential transition neighbourhoods received

the lowest level of strong support, though still
positive overall This potentially reflects a concem
on the encroachment of higher density residential
development into these more established residential
areas.

Managing future growth

There was clear support for a wide range of uses
and activities in Box Hill and to prioritise particular
uses in some neighbourhoods. The longer form
responses indicate the concern that Box Hill
could become a dormitory town or that individual
neighbourhoods might be overly dominated by a
single use.

Box Hill MAC Consultation Summary Report

Streets as places for people

There was a clear emphasis on walking and moving
between public transport as the key role for streets
in Box Hill, with walking gathering the highest
number of responses. Trees and greenery were
also considered to have high importance for streets
as places. These responses reinforced community
perspectives gathered from earlier consultation
stages. There was a clear contrast with the vehicular
transport role for streets, which ranked as the
responses with the lowest level of support.

Managing vehicles and parking

The idea that car parking should be publicly
accessible, available and shared by multiple users
across different times of the today, regardless

of its location received was widely supported

by responses with the majority receiving strong
support. The proposition of consclidating car parking
in each neighbourhood received general support
with the majority supporting parts of this proposal
and the remainder in strong support. This shows that
the community is supportive of changes to how car
parking is managed in Box Hill.

Managing development

There was clear support for the need for clearer built
form guidance on future development, particularly
in relation to taller buildings. There was a clear
emphasis on the amenity of the public realm and
key public spaces. Four of the top five aspects that
received the highest number of responses were
concerned with overshadowing, views of the sky,
wind impacts and the quality of building interfaces
at ground level. This reflected views expressed in
early consultation that these spaces were important
and should be protected. On the other hand, there
was also a high level of responses relating to the
importance on providing publicly accessible car
parking (rather than private car parking). This was
consistent with the survey responses to managing
vehicles and parking.

MGS Architects | TQ Planning | Movement & Place Consulting | $GS Economics & Planning | 13
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3.4 Submissions
In addition to the survey, 34 free-form submissions Diversity of uses
were received in response to the Analysis and There was wide-ranging support for increasing
Options Report. There was a notable diversity of the diversity and vibrancy of uses across all hours
views expressed within these submissions which within the centre. The issue of the dry zone was
ranged from critical to supportive of the analysis identified as an issue for encouraging a wider variety
and options proposed. Many of the submissions of entertainment and hospitality uses, including later
provided particular suggestions for improvements hours.
and changes that were aligned with their interests in
Box Hill. Cultural diversity
A large number of submissions again highlighted a

Managing vehicles and car parking perceived dominance by two major cultural groups
There was a notable contestation of views on than the diversity more representative of broader
how to address the issues of traffic congestion Melbourne. Council should note these issues around
and car parking. For example, many supported cultural expression and diversity in order to consider
the propositions of improving the management of more holistic responses towards cultural cohesion
vehicles and car parking in the centre, however, extending beyond the structure plan itself.

some submitters were in clear disagreement and
proposed an increase in car parking as a solution.
Broadly, many submissions noted the importance
of improving the efficiency of car parking, including
minimising the provision of car parking.

Lack of open spaces and loss of trees

The quality and provision of open space and
greenery was a consistent theme with many
submissions citing lack of open and green space.
Some submissions provided specific suggestions
where they think new open space could be located,
forexample, the former Box Hill brickworks or the
former Box Hill Bowling club. There was a general
underlying theme of increased greening, through
providing open space and tree canopy Cover.

Impacts of taller buildings

Many submitters were concemed with the impacts
of high-rise, or tall, buildings. These generally
referred to off-site Impacts such as overshadowing
of public spaces, wind impacts and glare from
reflective materials used in buildings. Also noted
was the need for increased setbacks to increase the
width of footpaths and provide space for canopy
trees.

Amenity of key public spaces and facilities
Broadly, submissions were consistent with
community perspectives provided during Phase 1 of
the project. The poor quality and accessibility of the
transport interchange was again raised as an issue.
Numerous public spaces, including Box Hill Mall,
was perceived as unwelcoming, unsafe and lacked
greenery.

14 | Box Hill MAC Strategic Review Analysis & Options | Community Engagement
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Survey Questions

The following text is the full version of the survey text
used in the second stage consultation.

The Box Hill Metropolitan Activity Centre (MAC) has
an important local, regional and metropolitan role.

It is the heart of the community and a business and
retail hub. The vision and strategic direction for the
Box Hill MAC is being reviewed to ensure it remains
relevant for the centre.

Phase 1 of the review has produced the Box Hill
Metropolitan Activity Centre Analysis and Options
Report. This report analyses recent changes,
provides a summary of the existing situation in Box
Hill and also identifies opportunities for the future
of the MAC. You can read the report online at http://
wwwowhitehorse vic.gov.au/BoxHill.html

Council invites your feedback on this report before
moving to the next phase of the project.

This survey asks your views on key ideas in the
report.

Box Hill MAC Consultation Summary Report

Part 1: Future Vision for Box Hill

Using the work completed so far, a draft vision is
proposed:

Box Hill will remain the pre-eminent urban centre
for Melbourne's east. The centre suppoitsa
regionally significant focus for health, education and
employment serviced by a major public transport
hub. It provides a diverse and growing range of
business, retail, entertainment, community and living
opportunities.

An interconnected network of complementary and
distinctive, accessible and vibrant neighbourhoods
respond to the diverse community’s desire for
sustainable, engaging. safe, caring and healthy
places. Future change in Box Hill will deliver a
people-friendly environment with an abundance of
high-quality and welcoming public spaces for all.

1 How strongly do you support the vision?
[select ong]

Strongly support

Support most parts of it
Support some parts of it

Do not support most parts of it
Do not support at all

ooooao

L]

What are the key reasons for your choice?

[S8]

Which parts of the vision are the most
important to you?
[select your top three]

A focus for health, education and employment
A major public transport hub

Providing retall, entertainment and community
uses

Providing housing opportunities

Creating distinctive neighbourhoods
Designing places for people

Providing ample public spaces

A diverse range of land uses

ooooo ooao
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Part 2: Distinctive neighbourhoods Health and Education Neighbourhood: A health
and education precinct of metropolitan significance

integrated within a growing neighbourhood

Box Hill is a cluster of distinctive neighbourhoods,
each with different roles and characteristics. To
support this diversity into the future, a specific vision
statement for each neighbourhood is proposed.

6 How strongly do you support this statement?
[select one]

i ; O Strongly support

i Ol i O Support most parts of it

! = ' O Support some parts of it

=] s e ! O Do not support most parts of it
[ Ezm , O Do not support at all

: Ll % i 2 § L3l 7 What are the key reasons for your choice?
""""""" e COTETE |

ST R — s ! Prospect Neighbourhood: A /ively and attractive

R | ees——n . .
e employment precinct with diverse complementary
~ iR e R uses within a leafy streetscape

\ 8 How strongly do you support this statement?
i [select one]

________________ Strongly support

Support most parts of it

Support some parts of it

Do not support most parts of it

Do not support at all

You will be asked to think about each
neighbourhood in tumn:

ooooao

Central Neighbourhood: The centre of Box Hill —a
vibrant and diverse destination that is welcoming to
all

9 What are the key reasons for your choice?

Garden Neighbourhood- A green innercity

4 How strongly do you support this statement? neighbourhood providing a great place to live with
[sslect one] an abundance of public open space

O Strongly support 10 How strongly do you support this statement?

O Support most parts of it [select one]

O Support some parts of it

O Do not support most parts of it Strongly support )

O Do not support at all Support most parts of it

(4]

What are the key reasons for your choice?

16 | Box Hill MAC Strategic Review Analysis & Options | Community Engagement

Support some parts of it
Do not support most parts of it
Do not support at all

ooooao

11 What are the key reasons for your choice?
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Civic and Cultural Neighbourhood: The civic
heart of Box Hill — a wellconnected community and
cultural precinct serving the needs of the whole
centre

12 How strongly do you support this statement?
[select ong]

O Strongly support

O Support most parts of it

O Support some parts of it

O Do notsupport most parts of it
O Do notsupport at all

13 What are the key reasons for your choice?

Enterprise Neighbourhood: A diverse and dynamic
mixed-use neighbourhood providing opportunities
for business ‘startups’ and enterprises close to the
centre of Box Hill

14 How strongly do you support this statement?
[select one]

O Strongly support

O Support most parts of it

O Support some parts of it

O Do notsupport most parts of it
O Do notsupport at all

15 What are the key reasons for your choice?

Northern and Southern Residential Transition
Neighbourhoods: An opportunity to live close to
the core of the MAC, providing medium-density
housing in highly accessible neighbourhoods that
provide a transition in scale between the centre and
surrounding residential areas.

16 How strongly do you support this statement?
[select one]

O Strongly support

O Support most parts of it

O Support some parts of it

O Do notsupport most parts of it
O Do notsupport at all

17 What are the key reasons for your choice?

MGS Architects | TQ Planning |

Box Hill MAC Consultation Summary Report

Part 3: Managing future growth

What do we know?

— Overthe next 20 years the residential population
will more than double, from 8,500 pecple (2016)
to 16,900 people (2036).

— Overthe next 20 years the number of jobs will
be 59% greater than today, growing from 18,500
jobs (2016) to 29,500 jobs (2036).

What are we proposing?

In order to manage growth and development in Box
Hill, it will be important to have a variety of land uses
across the MAC. This will require balancing growth
in housing and other uses, such as employment.

18 How strongly do you support a wide
range of uses and activities in Box Hill,
including prioritising specific uses in some
neighbourhoods? se/ect ong/

Strongly support

Support most parts of it
Support some parts of it

Do not support most parts of it
Do not support at all

ooooo

19 What are the key reasons for your choice?

Part 4: Streets as places for people

What do we know?

— As the number of people in Box Hill increases,
there will be a need to provide more, and better,
public spaces.

— Approximately 9% of the centre is currently
allocated for open space. Approximately 24% is
allocated for roads.

What are some ideas?

There is an opportunity to enhance the role of
Whitehorse Road as a pedestrian boulevard by
widening footpaths and reducing speed limits and
space for vehicles.

nt & Place C

Iting | 5GSE & Planning | 17

Page 90



Whitehorse City Council
Ordinary Council Meeting

21 October 2019

9.1.2 - ATTACHMENT 1.

To achieve high quality areas for pedestrians, it
will be necessary to provide new and improved
pedestrian and cycle links. It will also be important
to manage footpath and road width to provide
improved footpaths as places for pecple. In some
locations, streets could be for pedestrians and
cyclists only.

20 What do you see as the most important role

for streets in Box Hill? [se/ect your top three]:

Streets are places for:

OoooO0 oooooo

[
-

O Ooo ooo o O

walking

footpath activity (e.g. alfresco dining)
riding bicycles

moving between public transport

trees and greenery

servicing (e.g. deliveries, car park entry, bin
collection)

parking cars

prioritising public transport

cars driving to the centre

cars driving through the centre but not stopping

What key changes should be made to streets?
[select your top three]:

Improve the street landscape (e.g. providing
nature strips, street trees)

Footpaths are a place for activity (e.g. alfresco
dining, street furniture)

Remove overnead power lines

Improve the pavement surface

Widen footpaths for people and narrow roads for
cars

Provide separate bicycle lanes

Reduce speed limits for cars

Selected streets to become new public spaces
for people to gather

Selected streets to become pedestrian/cycle
only

18 | Box Hill MAC Strategic Review Analysis & Options | Community Engagement

Box Hill MAC Consultation Summary Report

Part 5: Managing vehicles and parking

What do we know?

— Thereare around 17,000 car parking spaces in
the MAC; more than at Chadstone shopping
centre, and many are privately owned.

— Based on the requirements in the Planning
Scheme for car parking, future development will
create more than 10,000 additional car parking
spaces in the centre.

— Melbourne's Central Business District [CBD) has
successfully managed car parking by reducing
the amount of private car parking spaces that
each development can have in the core of the
CBD.

What are we proposing?

A CBD style approach to managing car parking

to limit the amount of private car parking in each
development. Encouraging publicly accessible

car parking around the MAC that is more easily
accessed by the public to reduce congestion in
Box Hill and well connected to walking, cycling and
public transport links.

22 Parking in Box Hill should be available to
anyone, no matter where it is located:
[select ong]

O Strongly support

O Support most parts of it

O Support some parts of it

O Do notsupport most parts of it
O Do notsupport at all

23 What are the key reasons for your choice?

24 Parking should be consolidated in each
neighbourhood of Box Hill: [se/ect ong/

O Strongly support

O Support most parts of it

O Support some parts of it

O Do notsupport most parts of it
O Do notsupport at all

25 What are the key reasons for your choice?
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26 Parking should be shared by multiple users
across different times of the day?

Strongly support

Support most parts of it
Support some parts of it

Do not support most parts of it
Do not support at all

ooooo

27 What are the key reasons for your choice?

Part 6: Managing development

What do we know?

— Two-thirds of buildings that are under
construction or have recently been constructed
have been 3-6 storeys; a quarter has been 7-16
storeys; and 7 per cent of buildings have been
over 16 storeys.

— A small number of very tall buildings (30 storeys
plus)have been constructed. These serve a role
in driving growth and investment and represent a
shift from a suburban to an urban centre.

— A small proportion (20%) of permits for
development greater than 13 storeys have been
developed

What are we proposing?

As Box Hill grows it will become more important for
new development to help create great places for
people. This means look at the amenity of building
users as well as people in public spaces. There

are many ways to address the impacts of taller
buildings

28 What do you think are the most important
things to look at to address the impacts of
taller buildings? [se/ect your top five/:

The quality of the building at the ground level
Create a clearly defined building base with upper
levels setback

Separate buildings to allow light to reach lower
levels of the building

Provide clear views to the sky from the street
Relate building height to the size of the land
Relate building height to neighbouring buildings
Protect key public spaces from shadowing
Reduce wind impacts to public spaces

ooooo o o0

Box Hill MAC Consultation Summary Report

Reduce the impact of vehicle access and loading
on footpaths

Views of the building from a distance, as a visible
element on the skyline

Ensure that key buildings create a local landmark
Is architecturally designed

Is sustainably designed

Includes affordable housing

Includes community infrastructure

Provides new public open space

Provides public car parking (rather than private
carparking)

ooooooo O o

29 Do you have any further feedback?

Part 7: About you

Your Age:

O Under2170 21-300 31-400 41-50
O 51-600 60plusO Prefernottosay

Gender:

O Maled Femaled Prefer notto say
What is the postcode where you live?
What is the postcode where you work?

What is your relationship/s to Box Hill? [Se/ect al/
that are relevant]

Live in Box Hill

Work in Box Hill

Own a business in Box Hill

Own property in Box Hill

Visit Box Hill

Study in Box Hill

Travel through Box Hill (for example, by tram or
train)

ooooooao
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3.6 Survey Panels

Future Vision for Box Hill

Using the work completed so far, a draft vision is proposed:

Box Hill will remain the pre-eminent urban cenire for
Melbourne’s east. The centre supports a regionally significant
focus for health, education and employment serviced by a
major public transport hub. It provides a diverse and growing
range of business, retail, entertainment, community and
living opportunities.

An interconnected network of complementary and distinctive,
accessible and vibrant neighbourhoods respond to the
diverse community’s desire for sustainable, engaging, safe,
caring and healthy places. Future change in Box Hill will
deliver a people-friendly environment with an abundance of
high-quality and welcoming public spaces for all.

Please complete the survey to have your say.
oursay.org/white horsecitycouncil/boxhillvision

Have YOUr S8y Plzce = dot below in the grey box to

[ ——— - e ——— [ —

w your degree of support

20 | Box Hill MAC Strategic Review Analysis & Options | Community Engagement
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k Ehe vision for Box Hill

Lr

Box Hill is a cluster of distinctive neighbourhoods, each with different roles and characteristics.
To support this diversity into the future, a specific vision statement for each neighbourhood is proposed.

o

Central Neighbourhood
The centre of Box Hill—a
vibrant and diverse
destination that is welcoming
toall

Health and Education

A heslth and education
precinct of metropolitan
significance integrated within
a growing neighbourhood

B
3
£

Ben Hill sttt | B eamrgnss
Prospect Neighbourhood .

Alively and sttractive
employment precinct with
diverse complementary uses
within a leafy streetscape

Z5EESEREERS]

Morthemn and Southem
= Civic and Cultural ise N eil d il e i it
e Neighbourhood A diverse and dynamic Tieightourh oods
A green inner-city The eivic heart of Box Hill - a P H rtunity 1o live close to
neighbourhood providing a el " ity G he core of the MAC, providing
great place to live withan - = medium-density housing in highly
abundance of public open and cultural precinct serving business ‘start-ups’ and ‘30oessibie NEgNDOUTNoDDS
e the needs of the whole enterprises close to the that provide 3 transition in
=3 centre centre of Box Hill 5cale DELWEEN the centre and
surrounding residential areas
Have your say =

n the g

Which neighbourhood are you most interested in?

Civicand Culwal
PaignBaumand

I"-
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22

T ision for Box Hill
H " ;

Part 3

Managing future growth

What do we know? What are we proposing?

» Overthe next 20 years the residential population will In order to manage growth and development in
more than double, fram 8,500 people (2015} to 16,900 Box Hill, it will be importantto have a variety
peaple {2036}, of land uses across the MAC . This will require

balancing growth in housing and other uses, such

« Overthe next 20 years the number of jobs will be 59%
as employment.

greater than today, growing from 18,500 jobs (2016} to
29,500 jobs (2036).

Please complete the survey to have your say.
oursay.org/whitehorsecitycouncil/boxhillvision

dot bel

; in the grey box to r degree of support

How strongly do you support a wide range of uses and activities in Box Hill,
including prioritising specific uses in some neighbourhoods?

Do not support at all Do not suppart mast parts of it Suppart some parts of it Support most parts of it Strongly Suppart

LT ———
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k Ehe vision for Box Hill
ur say

Streets as places for people

What do we know? What are som

« Asthe number of people in Box Hill increases, there will There is an opportunity to enhance the role of Whitehorse Road
be = need to provide more, and better, public spaces. as a pedestrian boul d by wid g paths and reducing
speed limits and space for vehicles.

» Approximately 9% of the centre is currently allocated for

open space. Approximately 24% is allocated for roads. To achieve high quality areas for pedestrians, it will be necessary
to provide new and improved pedestrian and cyele links. It will
also be important to manage footpath and road width to provide
improved footpaths as places for people. In some locations,
streets could be for pedestrians and cyclists only.

Please complete the survey to have your say.
oursay.org/whitehorsecitycouncil/boxhillvision

Have your say Fizcz = dot n the grey box the questions

What do you see as the most important role for streets in Box Hill?
Walking Footpath acivity Fiding bir yles Moving batwasn Tressandgreenary  Ben
trarsport

g le.g Famingcars Priovifsng pblic  Cars deiving tothe  Cars diving
e e tmmport comtre g

iegdnng pubic :‘ e canire
What key changes should be made to streets?
ERERTTTS O FERTCT NS DN E‘ﬂ%“.‘.‘-’ Damamre Dy B ﬁ;‘-ﬁ"ﬁ;
i cn smaes

MGS Architects | TQPlanning | Movement & Place Consulting | 5GS Economics & Planning | 23

Page 96



Whitehorse City Council
Ordinary Council Meeting 21 October 2019

9.1.2 - ATTACHMENT 1. Box Hill MAC Consultation Summary Report

k The vision for Box Hill

d ur

Managing vehicles & parking

s There are sround 17,000 car parking spaces in the MAC; A CBD style approach to managing car parking to limit the
maore than at Chadstone shopping centre, and many are amount of private car parking in each development.
privately owned

Encouraging publicly accessible car parking around the MAC
that is more easily accessed by the public to reduce congestion
in Box Hill and well connected to walking, eycling and public
transport links.

» Based on the requirements in the Planning Scheme for car
parking, future development will create maore than 10,000
additional car parking spaces in the centre.

» Melboumne’s Central Business District {CBD| has successfully
managed car parking by reducing the amount of private car
parking spaces that esch development can havein the core

of the CED. Please complete the survey to have your say.
oursay.org/whitehorsecitycouncil/boxhillvision

Have your say =

Parking in Box Hill should be available to anyone, no matter where it is located

ESCITII RS

Parking should be consolidated in each neighbourhood of Box Hill

CSCITII ELE

Parking should be shared by multiple users across different times of the day

== ESEITTI L
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k 'L'he vision for Box Hill

Part 6

Managing development

Box Hill Today

Box Hal ¥ all spproved and permit applications
under consideration are constructed

What do we know?
Bxisting buit form, inciudiing hose currently under constricton

Buiit form of permits that have been approved

« Two-thirds of buildings that are under construction or B sut formot permits appi rently uncer
have recently been constructed have been 3-6 storeys;
2 quarter has been 7-16 storeys; and 7 per cent of
buildings have been over 16 storeys.
A small number of very tall buildings (30 storeys plus)
have been constructed. These serve 3 role in driving
growth and investment and represent a shift from a
suburban to an urban centre.

A small proportion (20%} of permits for development
greater than 13 storeys have been developed.
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ave your say

What are we proposing?

As Box Hill grows it will become more important for
new development to help create great places for people.
This means look at the amenity of building users as well
as people in public spaces. There are many ways to
address the impacts of taller buildings.

Please complete the survey to have your say.
oursay.org/whitehorsecitycouncil/boxhillvision

Have your say = =

« in the grey box to anz

What do you think are the most important things to look at to address the impacts of taller buildings?

Pronade car vews
0 e siy dom e
swast

oty SOy
-
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3.7 Survey Results

Participation

Town Hall Drop-in Session Online Surveys
189 survey responses were completed, comprising
— Attendance at the first drop in session was 78 female (41%), 60 male (32%) and 51 not stated
approximately 60 people over three hours. (27%). The age groups of respondents were as
follows:

— 250 points of feedback (individual dot stickers)
were placed on the posters.

Age Group

Box Hill Mall Pop-up Session

Under 21 4 2%

— Attendance at the second session was harder 21-30 10 5%

to es‘[lmat_e, as the team engaged in many 31-40 20 11%
conversations over the three hours but only

some resulted in formal feedback. At least 50 41-50 47 25%

people stopped to engage. 51-60 37 20%

— 129 points of feedback (individual dot stickers) 60 plus 32 17%

were placed on the posters. Prefer not to say 39 21%

Grand Total 189 100%

Participants reported a wide range of relationships
to Box Hill, as set out below. This indicates that
the results represent views of a diverse range of
community members

Relation to B

Live in Box Hill 83 44%
Work in Box Hill 33 17%
QOwn a business in Box Hill 9 5%
Own property in Box Hill 37 20%
Visit Box Hill 58  31%
Study in Box Hill 25 13%
Travel through Box Hill b5  29%

MNote: total will be greater than 100% because respondents selfnominated
as many options as apply to their situation.
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Results

In each of the tables shown below, the most
popularresponse (or responses) are highlighted in
dark green text. Responses that had above average
levels of support (as measured in percentage terms)
are highlighted with pale green background.

Where the question is framed in terms of levels of
support, a summary “net score” has been provided.
The net score ranges between +100 to -100 and

is determined by adding together "support most
parts” with “strongly support”, then subtracting "do
not support most parts” and “do not support at all”.
A score of zero means that the negatives are equal
to the positives. A negative score means there are
more negative responses while a positive score
indicates more positives. Where responses are
equally spread between all responses the net score
will approach zero.

Part 1: Future Vision for Box Hill

Question 1: How strongly do you support the vision?

%% Do not support at all 11 6%
* Do not support most parts of it 1% 8%
. Support some parts of it 47 26%

Support most parts of it 51 29%

vV Strongly support 54 30%

Total 178

Net score (+ve minus -ve). +44

Question 2: what are the key reasons for your choice?

= Overdevelopment and impact on existing + Pleased that the vision has ambition for

infrastructure change
= Traffic congestion and parking + Need to actively plan for the future
growth
= Lack of open space and loss of trees + Need to change what has happened in
the past
= Building heights + Spacein Box Hill needs to be more

effectively used.

28 | Box Hill MAC Strategic Review Analysis & Options | Community Engagement
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Question 3: Which parts of the vision are the most important to you?
[select your top three]:

Response

1 A major public transport hub 12 59%
2 Providing ample public spaces 86 46%
3 Designing places for people 82 43%
4 Providing retail, entertainment and community uses 68 36%
5 A diverse range of land uses 33 17%
5] A focus for health, education and employment 27 14%
7 Creating distinctive neighbourhoods 25 13%
8 Providing housing opportunities 20 1%

Note: total will be greater than 100% because respondents can nominate multiple options.

Part 2: Distinctive neighbourhoods

Questions 4 - 17 all relate to the level of support for the vision statements for individual
neighbourhoods. The overall results across all precincts are summarised in the following table.

Question: How strongly do you support the vision statement for each neighbourhood?

Central Neighbourhood 9% % 21% 32% 34%
Health and Education o o o o o
Neighbourhood 3% 2% 43% 35% 18%
Prospect Neighbourhood 4% 5% 21% 32% 37%
Garden Neighbourhood 2% 2% 9% 31% 55%
Civic and Cultural o o o o o
Neighbourhood 4%, 6% 17% 35% 38%
Enterprise {+74 Of Of o/ o
Neighbourhood 6% 9% 19% 34% 33%
Northern and Southern

Residential Transition 15% 12% 23% 27% 23%
Neighbourhoods

Central Neighbourhood +53
Health and Education Neighbourhood +74
Prospect Neighbourhood +59
Garden Neighbourhood +82
Civic and Cultural Neighbourhood +63
Enterprise Neighbourhood +51
Northern and Southern Residential Transition Neighbourhoods +24
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Key reasons for your choice — Central Neighbourhood

= Too much change over the recent past./ + Centre of Box Hill should be the busiest
Too much development /too crowded area

= Too mone-cultural / too focused on Asian  # The area is mono-cultural and therefore
culture needs change

= Not welcoming / not vibrant or diverse + The centre is well connected to the city

so will be easy to connect further to
neighbouring areas

Not enough green space / ugly public
spaces

Key reasons for your choice — Health and Education Neighbourhood

Ineffective development

+

The requirements need to be addressed,

managed, planned

Lack of parking; car dependency needs to +

be addressed

It Is already a health and education
precinct

= Too crowded the high rise towers will + The employment cptions increase
further clog city
= Not enough green space [ ugly public + Needs to be accessible through parking

spaces

and quality of connectivity

Key reasons for your choice - Prospect Neighbourhood

Too many high rise towers with no set-
backs

+ Prospect street is very narrow and needs

to be re-developed

= Lack of commercial, has been replaced + Greenery, open spaces and trees are
by tall residential towers required in the area
= Limited employment opportunities + Neamess between work spaces and
living will reduce traffic and travel times
+ The employment options increase and

30 | Box Hill MAC Strategic Review Analysis & Options | Community Engagement
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n included the followi

Key reasons for your choice - Garden Neighbourhood

= Recently created green strips are unsafe + Presently not much green space exists/
and negative Too much concrete

= Current densification projects contradict + The gardens need to be maintained and
the vision for open spaces improved

= The existing trees and greenery are gone + The old brick works site should also be
50 cannot trust this vision converted into a park

Key reasons for your choice - Civic and Cultural Neighbourhood

= The civic heart of Whitehorse is + Facilitate interaction between different
Nunawading cultures

= Too mono-cultural / too focused on Asian  + Upgrade the existing town hall
culture

= Too crowded and un-pleasant + The cultural precinct needs to be diverse

and desirable to visit

Key reasons for your choice — Enterprise Neighbourhood

= Too mono-cultural / too focused on Asian  + To facilitate more business, the zone
culture needs to be activated

= Shops are not actively used + There needs to be drastic revitalisation
with improvement in quality and
opportunities

= Dominance of restaurants and food-
oriented eateries

= Current situations contradict the vision for
mix-use/ start-ups

Key reasons for your choice — Northern and Southern Residential Transition

Neighbourhoods

= Public transport needs to be improved + Development is required to meet the
around Box Hill before planning needs of density but should be donein a
neighbourhoods sensitive manner- preserving heritage and

local identities

= Densification at very high rate with
highrise apartments changing local
identity which is not desirable

= Streetscapes are unpleasant and
undesirable, and always crowded
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Part 3: Managing future growth

Question 18: How strongly do you support a wide range of uses and activities in Box Hill,
including prioritising specific uses in some neighbourhoods?
[selectone]

XX Do not support at all 14 8%
% Do not support most parts of it 12 7%
. Support some parts of it 14 25%
v Support most parts of it 59 34%

vV Strongly support 44 25%

Total 173 100%

Net score (+ve minus -ve). +45

Question 19: what are the key reasons for your choice?

Where

to que includec to que
the following: the follc

= Unclear who makes the choices around + Diversity is key to liveable
priorities for land uses / Specific uses neighbourhoods
need to be clearly communicated

= A mixwithin neighbourhoods is healthier, + Need to maintain the major uses where
otherwise areas can become elitist and these already exist (e g retall, hospital)
the community stops mixing”

= Ongoing parking issues will constrain
s0me uses.

Part 4: Streets as places for people

Question 20: What do you see as the most important role for streets in Box Hill? se/act
your top three]:

Streets are places for:

Rank Response

1 Walking 113 60%
2 Trees and greenery 99 52%
3 Moving between public transport 88 53%
4 Prioritising public transport 74 39%
5 Footpath activity (e.g. alfresco dining) 67 35%
6 Parking cars 64 34%
7 Riding bicycles 50 26%
8 Cars driving to the centre 46 24%
9 Servicing (e.g. deliveries, car park entry, bin collection) 39 21%
9 Cars driving through the centre but not stopping 39 21%

32 | Box Hill MAC Strategic Review Analysis & Options | Community Engagement
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Question 21: What key changes should be made to streets?
[select your top three]:

Rank Response Number of
responses
1 Improve the street landscape (e.g. providing nature 113 60%
strips, street trees)
2 Improve the pavement surface 70 37%
3 Footpaths are a place for activity (e.g. alfresco dining, b4 29%
street furniture)
4 Provide separate bicycle lanes 52 28%
Reduce speed limits for cars 51 27%
5 Selected streets to become new public spaces for 51 27%
people to gather
Remove overhead power lines 50 26%
8 Widen footpaths for people and narrow roads for cars 43 25%
9 Selected streets to become pedestnan/cycle only 43 23%

Part 5: Managing vehicles and parking

Question 22: Parking in Box Hill should be available to anyone, no matter where it is
located:

Number of

responses

xx Do not support at all 20 11%
* Do not support most parts of it 21 12%
. Support some parts of it =) 18%

Support most parts of it 33 18%

v Strongly support 72 40%

Total 179 100%

Net score (+ve minus ve). + 36

Question 23: what are the key reasons for your choice?

= Ambiguous /unclear what is intended + Car parks will be reguired in the future

= Cars take up too much space on the + Although there is lots of parking It is not
street / reduce the amount of on-street accessible, gives the impression that
parking there aren’'t enough spaces.

= Private residences should be allowed to + Currently don't go to Box Hill because It is
have parking 50 hard to park

= Private parking should be minimised and
located in appropriate locations

= More street parking required
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Question 24: Parking should be consolidated in each neighbourhood of Box Hill:

Number of

%% Do not support at all 19 11%
* Do not support most parts of it 14 8%
. Support some parts of it 51 29%
v Support most parts of it 44 25%

vV Strongly support 49 28%

Total 177 100%

Net score (+ve minus ve). +34

Question 25: what are the key reasons for your choice?

= Ambiguous /unclear what is intended + Good idea to provide multi-level parking

= Thisdoesn't meet the needs of elderly, + This will increase the number of spaces.
residents, shop owners

= Itis more important to prioritise public + Needs to be in the right location, not too
transport to give people other options. far from work or shops

= Negative impact on adjoining residents
(next to the car parking)

Question 26: Parking should be shared by multiple users across different times of the day:

x % Do not support at all 16 9%
* Do not support most parts of it 10 6%
. Support some parts of it 35 20%

Support most parts of it 57 32%

v Strongly support 59 33%

Total 177 100%

Net score (+ve minus ve) +51

Question 27: what are the key reasons for your choice?

Where respondents had a negative response \Where respondents had a positive response

to que 26, the reasons given included to question 26, the reasons given included

the fo g: the fo g:

= Ambiguous /unclear what is intended + Makes senseif it can be enforced

= Impractical to implement + Introduce timed restrictions for on-street
car spaces

34 | Box Hill MAC Strategic Review Analysis & Options | Community Engagement
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Part 6: Managing development

Question 28: What do you think are the most important things to look at to address the
impacts of taller buildings? [select your top five]:

Rank

Response

1 Protect key public spaces from shadowing 95 50%

2 Provide clear views to the sky from the street 92 49%

3 Provides public car parking (rather than private 87 46%
carparking)

4 The quality of the building at the ground level 82 43%

5 Reduce wind impacts to public spaces 79 42%

6 Is sustainably designed 78 A41%

7 Provides new public open space 77 41%

8 Relate building height to neighbouring buildings 72 38%

9 Relate building height to the size of the land 69 37%

10 Is architecturally designed 60 32%

11 Reduce the impact of vehicle access and loading on 56 30%
footpaths

12 Includes affordable housing 46 24%

13 Views of the building from a distance, as a visible a4 23%
element on the skyline

14 Includes community infrastructure 43 23%

15 Create a clearly defined building base with upper 37 20%
levels setback

16 Separate buildings to allow light to reach lower levels 18 10%
of the building

17 Ensure that key buildings create a local landmark 5 3%
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Date: 24.07.2019

CLUB DOUBLE STOREY OPTION

SINGLE STOREY OPTION - In accordance with Council's Pavilion Development Policy

Submitted Club Cost Plan - Club Double Storey Option as at August 2018
Aligned project escalation to May 2020
Submitted Club Cost Plan - Club Double Storey - Total Estimated Project Cost as at May 2020

Council Cost Plan - Peer Review of Club Double Storey as at May 2020
Total Cost increase identified items not included in the club proposal (4+B)

Council Cost Plan - Club Double Storey Option - Total Estimated Project Cost as at May 2020 *

Less Federal Funding
Total Council Contribution Required for the Club Double Storey Option Proposal

R R AR T

3,786,935.00
293,065.00
4,080,000.00

5,501,000.00
892,000.00

6,793,000.00

2,000,000.00

4,793,000.00

Council Cost Plan - Council Single Storey Option - Total Estimated Project Costas at May 2020*

Less Federal Funding - TBC
Total Council Contribution Required for the raised Single Storey Pavilion

S

5,740,000.00

2,000,000.00

$

3,740,000,00

10
11

12
13
14
15

16
17

A. Cost Increase by Statutory Compliance notincluded in club scheme as follows:
No ambulant toilets provided in Umpire's rooms, Public or Participants Amenities.
Generally no Change Room provision for persons with a disability for participants (players) which is a

BCA/NCC requirement.

Access to ground floor will require ramps and steps due to the lower floor level required to be raised
approximately 600mm above flood level.

Insufficient showers [ toilets in Change Rooms to comply with the BCA. Public amenities are insufficient
for the sg. m area of the Multi-purpose room.

Canteen / Kitchen grease trap - Yarra Valley Requirement

Currently there are no DDA carparks and it appears has not been allowed for in the Clubs proposal f cost
plan.

B. Costincrease - Standard pavilion components not included in the club scheme as follows:
Wall hung urinals to be replaced with toilet pans so as to cater for Mixed Gender.
Ne provision for Community Tea Making associated with Multi-purpose room, separate to Kitchen.

Swipe card system as per the Pavilion Development Policy

Roller shutters to windows as standard pavilion component

Change Rooms could be more flexible with the potential of opening them into one space if they were co-
located. Allowance for roller shutters between change rooms.

Total Storage Area in general and for community groups is less than required under the Pavilion
Development Policy

Club proposal change rooms at 34 - 40 sq. m are less than the Pavilion Development Policy at 45 sqm,

Additional spectator canopy overhangs

Additional kitchen area

Standalone bin enclosure as per the pavilion [ waste management guidelines

ESDitems - double glazing and solar panels as per Pavilion Development Policy. It is not clear whether
the Club Cost Plan has an allowance for solar panels.

* Includes standard project cost inclusions as follows:
18 Preliminaries **
19 Design / Construction Contigency **

20 Professional Fees [ Project Management Fees**
21 Authority f Council Fees®*

22 Temporary Accomodation Facilities / Decant
23 Furniture, Fittings and Equipment (FF&E) and AV Equipment

**Mote: some of the above listed items have been included in the Club Cost Plan but increase according to
project cost.
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CITY OF WHITEHORSE
= Annual Report

2018/2019
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Welcome to the Annual Report for 2018/19
which details the performance of Whitehorse
City Council from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019.

The Annual Report is available for viewing at our Customer Service
Centres and Libraries, or you can view and download a copy from the
Whitehorse City Council website.
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Mayor’'s Message

On behalf of my fellow Councillors, welcome
to our Annual Report for 2018/19.

This year's Annual Report highlights the achievements and challenges experienced throughout the financial
year 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019. The Annual Report details our performance against our commitments
and our measures of success as outlined in the Council Plan 2017-2021. It also provides an account of our

financial performance and highlights the broad range of services provided to the Whitehorse community.

As we work towards the aspirational vision for the City of Whitehorse (Council Vision 2013-2023), the
Annual Report provides an opportunity to keep you informed of our progress, while maintaining our
accountability. We appreciate all your input into the many various engagement opportunities throughout

the year, enabling us to better understand the needs of the community.

The pastyear has been full of activityat Council. Thanks to continued sound financial management, Council
has been able to deliver high-quality services and infrastructure to the Whitehorse community in a rate
capping environment.

There has been ongoing progress with the redevelopment of the Whitehorse Centre, with an architecture
design competition held and BKK Architects selected tolead the design of the project. This is a very exciting
project for the City of Whitehorse and will see a cherished community facility redeveloped to support the

growth of artsand culture in our municipality.

In June 2019, Council adopted a $205 million budget for 2019/20 which will enable the ongoing delivery of
high-gquality services and the renewal and improvement of community facilities and infrastructure for the

benefit of the Whitehorse community.

The 2019/20 capital works budget of $72 million includes $19.19 million to complete the development of
the Nunawading Community Hub, $11.47 million for the redevelopment of sporting pavilions at Elgar Park,
Morton Park, Walker Park, Terrara Park and to commence the new Sparks Reserve west pavilion, $3.26
million to continue the Whitehorse Centre redevelopment and $1.70 million for Morack Golf Course
Pavilion, Driving Range and Mini Golf Facility. It also includes $5.10million for roads, $5.44 million for parks,
open space and streetscapes, $2.94 million for footpaths and cycleways and $3.88 million to renew

recreational, leisure and community facilities.

Council’s commitment to continuous improvement has seen further savings of over $0.66 million and
training of a further 10 continuous improvement champions across the organisation who have

implemented initiatives and processes to generate more savings into the future.

Annual Report 2018-19 |1
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Council has committed a net $3.46 million in new operational budget initiatives in 2019/20 to deliver on
the Council Vision and Council Plan. This is in addition to some continuing major initiatives that commenced
in 2018/19. These initiatives cover a range of service areas including tree protection, environmental
sustainability, strategic planning and improving the efficiency and customer experience through the

digitalisation of service delivery.

With an average rate increase of 2.5 per cent in 2019/20, the City of Whitehorse will continue to have one
of the lowest levels of ratesin metropolitan Victoria, while meeting the community’s demand for high-

quality services and facilities and at the same time maintaining financial sustainability.

As Councillors, we are proud of our community and passionate about the future of the City of Whitehorse.
Our role is to represent and act as a voice for the Whitehorse community. We do our utmost to listen to

our community and make decisions that are in the best interests of the community. We also advocate to
other levels of government where Council is not the decision-making authority.

| would like to thank my fellow Councillors and Council officers for their continued dedication and

commitment to serving the community.

| have been very proud to serve as Mayor of Whitehorse for 2018/19. | have enjoyed the opportunity to
represent the Whitehorse community and work closely with my fellow Councillors and Council staff to
deliver positive outcomes for our community.

6(\&&(3’& _—
Cr Bill Bennett

Whitehorse Mayor
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CEQ’s Message

On behalf of the City of Whitehorse, it’s my pleasure
to present the Annual Report 2018/19.

It has been another exciting and rewarding year for Whitehorse City Council with prosperous operations
enabling Council to continue to deliver high-quality services and facilities to our growing community. The
Council Vision 2013-2023 and Council Plan 2017-2021 have guided us in accomplishing many achievements

over the year.

Council delivered a total of $50.55 million in capital works projects. These key projects demonstrate Council's
commitment to deliver a quality infrastructure that meets the needs of our diverse community and is
sustainable into the future.

Work has progressed on the Nunawading Community Hub and will be completed early in 2020 and the
Whitehorse Centre redevelopment is also moving along, with an architectural firm selected to lead the
project.

Council’'s commitment to service delivery is highlighted by the recent results achieved in the
2019 Community Satisfaction Survey. Recreational facilities, waste management, art centres and libraries
were our top three performing areas this year, with all three areas scoring over 75 out of 100. Whitehorse
City Council’s overall performance (index score 69) is higher than that of councils state-wide (index score 60)
and metropolitan group councils (index score 67).

Council delivered excellent financial results, and achieved an adjusted underlying surplus of $70.51 million.
Council’s Balance Sheet also reflects that key measures are within guidelines — including a strong working
capital ratio that measures Council’s ability to meet current commitments.

As this will be my last Annual Report, | want to thank all our Councillors, volunteers and Council officers for
their ongoing hard work, support and dedication to the community over many years. | have been proud to

lead Whitehorse Council and see our city grow and prosper and | know this will continue into the future.

Finally, thank you for making the effort to review the valuable information contained in this year’s Annual
Report. It provides a fantastic overview of how we all collectively contribute to the positive outcomes for our

City.

Chief Executive Officer
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Highlights of 2018/19

Major Projects

Council made significant progress on a number of major projects in 2018/19 including completion of the new
Harrow Street multi-deck car park in Box Hill Central which provides 562 car parking bays, including nine
disabled parking bays, 12 bicycle racks, four electric vehicle charging stations, 12 motorcycle spaces for

workers, shoppers and other visitors.

A national design competition was conducted for the Whitehorse Centre to attract Australia’s best design
teams. The winning architect BKK + KTA (in association) have been appointed to finalise the concept design
phase and commence the schematic design process. Onsite construction of the Nunawading Community Hub
commenced and includes works to preserve the heritage school building and provision of new community

spaces. Completion is expected mid-2020.

Annual Community Satisfaction Survey Results

Council has performed well in the annual Community Satisfaction Survey coordinated by the Department of
Environment, Land, Water and Planning. JWS Research, on behalf of Local Government Victoria, surveyed 69
participating councils across Victoria. Five hundred Whitehorse residents and ratepayers over the age of 18
were selected at random for a telephone interview in between 1 February to 31 March 2019. Results reveal
that Council received strong positive ratings on the core measures of customer service and overall
performance. High-performing service areas included arts centres and libraries, waste management and
recreational facilities.

Excellence in Asset Management Award

Whitehorse City Council was recognised at the 2019 IPWEA (Vic) Public Works Conference as the winner of
the Excellence in Asset Management Award for the development of a software tool for the “Holistic
Predictive Modelling of Council Buildings”. The award acknowledges Council’s work in developing a new
methodology to determine accurate renewal funding requirements for public buildings — the first of its type

in Australia.

Continuous Improvement Program

In 2018/19, ten staff were trained in our customised Continuous Improvement methodology, bringing our
total number ofimprovement championsto 23. This increased capacity to undertake improvement initiatives

within existing resources.

In 2018/19, our program delivered 13 projects with a further 26 in progress, resulting in financial benefits
worth $0.67 million. These projects improved responsiveness for our customers, and thus their overall

experience with council.

Digital Transformation

Year Two of Council's Digital Transformation Strategy saw the acceleration of the Apply and Pay Online
service, delivering a total of 37 transitioned processes that improve customer service, integrate with

Council's systems and provide transactional efficiencies.
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Live Streaming of Council and Committee Meetings

The Streaming and Publishing Recordings of Council Meetings Policy was adopted by Council at a meeting
held on 15 October 2018 and streaming of live video and audio of Council Meetings, Special Council Meetings
and Special Committee of Council Meetings began on 12 November 2018. Access to webcasts of live Council
meetings, viewing of archived meetings and links to meeting schedules, agendas and minutes are accessible
on the Council’s Meeting Webcast webpage. Figures provided by our live streaming service provider have

confirmed there is good uptake of this new initiative.

Whitehorse Festival Season

The Festivals Unit successfully delivered the Whitehorse Festival Season that included Spring Festival,
Whitehorse Carols, Australia Day Concert and fireworks, Global Fiesta and the Swing Pop Boom! series.

Tree Protection

Blanket tree protection controls were introduced for residential zoned areas in the City of Whitehorse.
Council completed and adopted further strategic work required by the state government to support
permanent tree protection controls. Amendment C219 to implement the controls was authorised by the

Minister for Planning enabling Council to exhibit the proposed controls for community comment.

Statement on Family Violence and the Prevention of Violence against Women
and Children

The Whitehorse City Council Statement on Family Violence and the Prevention of Violence against Women

and Children was adopted by Council on 24 June 2019.

Whitehorse City Council says no to violence. Council is committed to working together with the community to
model and promote equal and respectful relationships. We want a community where everyone is valued and
safe.

Box Hill MAC Review

Areview of the vision and strategic directions for the Box Hill Metropolitan Activity Centre
commenced in 2018/19 and continues into 2019/20.

Implementation of Mobile Devices for Reactive Work Orders

The City Works Team now uses mobile devices to generate, receive, action and close reactive work orders.
The mobile devices allow work orders to be issued directly to field staff without delay are and are displayed

in map-form on the mobile device to improve efficiencies in work scheduling.

As an example, a resident may send a photo of graffiti in a public area that needs to be removed. A work
order can be generated, attaching the photo and sending it direct to the mobile device in the graffitiremoval
truck. The graffiti removal officer can remove the graffiti and take a photo of the completed works. While
the officer is onsite they may notice that adrainage pit is blocked and they can generate a work order for the

drainage maintenance crew to attend.

Open SpaceDevelopment (Chaucer Street, Box Hill South)

Council purchased a residential property in Chaucer Street Box Hill South for development into public open
space in an identified area of shortfall. Our Leisure and Recreation and ParksWide teams completed the
project which involved demolition of the house, significant earthworks and drainage and landscaping to

create a community open space area with playground.
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Municipal Early Years and Youth Plans

Successful completion of all remaining actions scheduled in the 2014-18 Municipal Early Years Plan — “A City
for All Children”, and the successful completion of all remaining actions scheduled in the 2014-18 Municipal
Youth Plan— “A City for All Young People”.

Residential Parking Permits

New online applications went live on 6 June 2019 providing an online platform for customers to apply and
pay for new residential parking permits. The benefits will include an improved customer experience through
faster processing and single point management eliminating unnecessary steps from multiple departments,

minimising paperwork or payment issues which in turn will improve customer experience and efficiency.

Risk Framework and Risk Plan

Areview and realignment of the Risk Policy, Risk Framework and Risk Plan to Australian and international
standards for the entire organisation was completed.

Whitehorse Men’s Action Group

The Whitehorse Men's Action Group was established and contributed to a number of activities throughout
the financial year including Council's White Ribbon Day Breakfast, the Whitehorse Celebrates Equality and

Respect campaign, the Polished Man campaign and the Rotary Club's International Women's Day Breakfast.

Library Community Survey

A community survey was carried out in November 2018 and elicited over 5000 responses. Results indicated

that library services are highly valued by the community and have a positive influence in their lives.
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Challenges and Opportunities in 2018/19

Annual Community Satisfaction Survey Results

Council has identified areas for improvement as part of the Annual Community Satisfaction Survey, which
will be taken into account in Council’s future planning. These areas included planning and building permits,
consultation and engagement (including making community decisions) and keeping the community

informed.

Rate Capping

Raterises in 2018/19 were capped at the CPl of 2.25 per cent in line with the Fair Go Rates system. Council
continues to review services and advocate against cost shifting to maintain our ability to provide high-quality

services and infrastructure to our community.
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Vision, Mission and Values

Our Vision

We aspire to be a healthy, vibrant, prosperous and sustainable community supported by strong leadership

and community partnerships.

Our Mission

Whitehorse City Council works in partnership with the community to develop and grow our municipality
through good governance, proactive strategicplanning and advocacy, efficient and responsive services, and

quality infrastructure.

Our Values
In pursuing our goals, Whitehorse City Council believes in and is committed to the following values:

Consultation and Communication

Ensure that members of our community are both, sufficiently informed and able to contribute, to Council’s

decision-making processes.

Democracy and Leadership

Recognise and value community participation in Council’s decision-making as well as Council's role in

providing leadership to the community.

Equity and Social Justice

Respect and celebrate our social diversity to promote an inclusive community.

Integrity

Make decisions and act in ways that reflect our values.

Openness and Accountability

Being transparent in our decision-making, Council welcomes public scrutiny and community feedback.

Sustainability

Make decisions about our social, economic, built and natural environments that will benefit both present
and future generations.

Wellbeing

Commit to supporting the community in all areas of health and wellbeing.
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Financial Year in Review

Adjusted Underlying Result

Council achieved an adjusted underlying surplus for 2018/19 of $70.51 million compared to $35.35 million in
2017/18. The adjusted underlying result assists in the determination of whether Council is operating

sustainably.

The adjusted underlying surplus for the year excludes non-monetary assets contributed to Council (such as
drainage and roads from developers or land from state government bodies such as VicRoads), non-recurrent

government grants received for capital purposes and contributions for capital works.

Council's adjusted underlying result ratio for the 2018/19 year was 29.45 per cent (2017/18: 17.85 per cent).
This is a strong result that indicates Council’s capacityto provide for the renewal of community assets and

to fund future major community infrastructure projects as determined by Council.

Adjusted Underlying Result Ratio*

35%
30%
25%
20%
15%
10%

5%

0%

2017/18 2018/19

*Adjusted underlying surplus/Adjusted underlying revenue
t:] Gain on sale of 517-521 Station Street - $34.84m

Operating Result

Council achieved an operating surplus of $71.5 million, compared to the budgeted surplus of $37.84 million.
The operating surplus includes the impact of a one-off $34.84m net gain from the sale of 517-521 Station
Street Box Hill. The operating result includes non-cash items such as non-monetary assets contributed to
Council (such as drainage, roads and land, non-recurrent government grants received for capital purposes

and contributions for capital works.
The key variances to budget were as a result of:

s 51.07 million increase in parking infringement income due to an increase in infringements issued relating
to the extended hours monitoring service, and a $0.35 million increase in statutory planning fees due to

continued strong demand for planning application permits.

e operating grants were $4.32 million and higher than anticipated reflecting $2.41 million of the 2019/20
Financial Assistance Grant provided in June 2019 by Victoria Grants Commission. Health and Family
Services also received a $1.17 million increase in childcare subsidies, which was largely offset by a

reduction in childcare user fees.

e S50.50million of additional recycling income including $0.28 million of cutstanding rebates, for the period

March to June 2018 and a $0.22 million of additional income for engineering assets.
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Operating Income

The total operating income for the year of $240.38 million was derived from a number of sources as per the

graph below:

® Rates and charges 48.18%
m Statutory fees and fines 3.82%
B User fees 16.32%
B Grants —operating8.79%
® Grants —capital0.11%
m Contributions 3.8%
MNetgain on disposal of fixed assets 14.65%
W interest income 2.44%

m Share ofnet gain in associates 0.05%

m Other income 1.84%

Operating Expenditure

The total operating expenditure for the year of $168.88 million was incurred from a number of sources as

per the graph below:

w Employee costs 44.88%

B Materials and services 35.54%

B Depreciation and amortisation

14.93%

m Borrowing costs 0.12%

m Contributions expense 3.08%

m Other expenses 1.45%

Overall Financial Position

At 30 June 2019, Council’s total assets were $3.61 billion (2017/18: $3.82 billion) and total liabilities were
$55.48 million (2017/18: $48.93 million), resulting in net assets of $3.55 billion (2017/18: $3.77 billion).
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Capital Works Program

Council allocates funding on an annual basis to the renewal of the community’s assets, which are valued at
over $3.6 billion (including land). Funding is also allocated to new, upgrade and asset expansion programs to
deliver improvements that enhance the City's infrastructure and our ability to deliver services to the

community. During 2018/19, Council completed capital works projects to the value of $50.5 million.

Complete Carried Over On Hold Incomplete

In overall financial terms, 78.5 per cent of the $64.34 million adopted capital works budget for 2018/19 was

expended.

Further highlights include:

*  buildings and building improvements: $27.18 million

e roads, paths and bridges: $8.57 million

e plant and equipment including information technology, fittings and furniture: $5.65 million
e recreation, leisure and community facilities: $3.19 million

s parks, open space and streetscapes: $2.91 million

e drainage: $2.3 million

e otherinfrastructure: $0.70 million

2018/19 Capital Works Expenditure by Asset Class

M Buildings and building improvements
54%

M Roads, paths and bridges 17%

M Plant and equipment 11%

M Recreational, leisure and community
facilities 6%

W Parks, open space and streetscapes 6%

M Drainage 5%

Otherinfrastructure 1%

Annual Report 2018-19 |13

Page 135



Whitehorse City Council
Ordinary Council Meeting 21 October 2019

9.3.1 - ATTACHMENT 1. Annual Report 2018-19

2018/19 Capital Works Expenditure by Asset Category

BFR enewal 56%
BWUpgrade 8%
Expansion 3%

BNew 33%

Asset Management

Whitehorse City Council is responsible for themanagement of assets valued at more than $2.73 billion. These

include, but are not limited to:

e 605 kilometres of roads

e 32 kilometres of laneways

e 1185 kilometres of kerb and channel

e 1176 kilometres of footpath

e 855 kilometres of stormwater drainage network

e 372 buildings and facilities including: early childhood and maternal care, leisure and recreation,
community and cultural facilities

e 53 sports fields

* 174 playgrounds

e 75,000 street trees

e 690 hectares of open space including: quality bushland reserves, parks, formal gardens, recreation
reserves and trails.

These assets play an integral part in delivering the services provided by Council to serve our municipality.
Council manages its asset management responsibilities through the adopted Asset Management Policy and
the implementation Strategy. The strategy contains a number of actions which include the development and
regular update of Asset Management Plans for various asset management classes. Asset Management Plans

direct Council’s investment in maintenance and capital renewal for Council’'s assets.
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Asset Management Plan Status

Asset Management First AMP Latest AMP .
Next Version

Plan (AMP) Developed Developed

B e : e ; o Review commencing in 2019
S une une (expected completion in June 2020)
In progress
Roads AMP May 2008 June 2014 )
(expected completion —July 2019)
Drainage AMP May 2008 May 2019 Scheduled for 2022
Buildings AMP May 2008 August 2018  Scheduled for 2022
: In progress
Open Space AMP Sept 2007 April 2014 :
(expected completion - July 2019)
Plant and Fleet AMP May 2008 June 2019 Scheduled for 2022
Information May 2008 March2019  Scheduled for 2022
Technology AMP ay arc eduied for

Financial Outlook

Council’s long-term planning strategyis aimed at creating a sustainable financial environment which enables
Council to continue to provide the community with high-quality services and infrastructure into the medium
and long term. Council’s Long-Term Financial Plan is a continuation of Council’s responsible financial
program. It is a financial plan aiming to:
* balance the community’s needs and ensure that Council continues to be financially sustainable in
the long term
* increase Council’s commitment to sustainable asset renewal and maintenance of the community’s
assets
*  maintain a strong cash position for financial sustainability and the flexibility to respond to
opportunities and unplanned major costs should they arise
* achieve efficiencies through targeted savings and an ongoing commitment to contain costs
* make rate and fee increases that are both manageable and sustainable

¢ provide a framework to deliver balanced budgets including sustainable annualunderlying surpluses.

Council has prepared our budget for 2019/20 based on an average general rateincreaseof 2.5 per cent which
isin line with the rate cap set by the Minister for Local Government under the Fair Go Rates System. Council
has been practicaland fiscally responsible when preparing this budget to ensure that Council is able to deliver
services and capital works that will meet the needs of our diverse community for many years to come.
Council will continue to have one of the lowest average rates per assessment in metropolitan Melbourne.

Financial Sustainability

Ahigh-level Strategic Resource Plan for the years 2019-2023 has been developed to assist Council in adopting
a budget within a prudent longer-term financial framework. The key objective of the plan is financial
sustainability in the medium to long term, while still achieving the strategic objectives as specified in the
Council Plan 2017-2021. Council will achieve a surplus in the 2019/20 financial year while continuing to place

higher priority on the renewal of the community’s infrastructure.
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Supporting Graphs

The following graphs highlight Council’s Long-Term Financial Plan for average rates, adjusted underlying

result and capital works expenditure.

Average Rates
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Planned average rate increase*

* Note: The planned general rateincrease excludes supplementary ratesand interest on overdue rates, and

is subject to future year rate cap determinations by the Minister for Local Government.

Operating Result
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Capital Works Expenditure
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Refer to page 91 onwards for the complete Financial Statements and Performance Statement.
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Our City

T

More than 173
of residents are
born overseas

(TTTR BLITEL A

3.1% of residents

of the population report their
are aged health as excellent

OVER 85 TR

Vic Pop Health Survey 2014

Located 15 kilometres east of Melbourne’s CBD, the City of Whitehorse is a major hub of cultural,
commercial, business and innovative activity in the eastern suburbs of Melbourne. The municipality is
bounded by the City of Manningham to the north, the cities of Maroondah and Knox to the east, the City of
Monash to the south and the City of Boroondara to the west. Whitehorse suburbs include Blackburn,
Blackburn North, Blackburn South, Box Hill, Box Hill North, Box Hill South, Burwood, Burwood East, Forest
Hill, Mitcham, Mont Albert, Mont Albert North, Nunawading, Surrey Hills, Vermont and Vermont South.

Whitehorse is a vibrant municipality, with over 176,000 residents. The city is culturally diverse, with 38.4 per
cent of residents born overseas and a third from languages other than English speaking backgrounds. In
total, more than 120 languages are spoken. The most common languages other than English are Mandarin
(12.9 per cent), Cantonese (5.3 per cent), Greek (2.5 per cent), Italian (1.4 per cent) and Vietnamese (1.3 per
cent).
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Elected by the community, Council is the decision-making body that setsthe strategic direction and policy of
the municipality, consulting with community and working closely with the Chief Executive Officer and Council
administration. The City of Whitehorse has 10 Councillors elected by residents to govern the city. The

municipality is divided into five wards: Central, Elgar, Morack, Riversdale and Springfield.

:
g
8
=

Riversdale Morack

Councillors were elected as representatives of the City of Whitehorse on 22 October 2016 for a four-year
term. Councillor Blair Barker was elected via countback on 9 May 2017, following theresignation of Councillor
Tanya Tescher. Collectively, they have a responsibility for setting the strategic direction for the municipality,
developing policy, identifying service standards and monitoring performance. The Mayor of Whitehorse is

elected by the Councillors to serve as the principal ambassador for the city for a 12-month term.

Whitehorse City Council Councillors

Front Row (Left to Right): CrTinaiu, CrRaylene Car, Cr Denise Massoud, Cr Sharon Blis and Cr Prue Cutts
Back Row (Left to Right): Cr Blair Barker, CrAndrew Davenport, Cr Ben Stennett, Cr Bill Bennett —Mayor and Cr Andrew Munme
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Central Ward

Cr Denise Massoud

Phone: 0409 230 499

Email: denise. massoud@ whitehorse.vic.gov.au

Date Elected: 22 October 2016
Term: 20122016, 2016—current
Mayoral Term: 2016—-2017

Elgar Ward

Cr Andrew Munroe
Phone: 0429 138 140

Email: andrew.munroe@ white horse.vic.gov.au

Date Elected: 22 October 2016
Term: 2008-2012, 2012-2016, 2016—current
Mayoral Terms: 2012-2013, 2014-2015

Cr Tina Liu

Phone: 0418 121 357
Email: tina.liu@whitehorse.vic.gov.au

Date Elected: 22 October 2016

Term: 2016—current

Cr Blair Barker
Phone: 0459 857 280

Email: blair.barker@ whitehorse. vic.gov.au

Date Elected: 15 May 2017
Term: 2017—current™®
* Cr Barker was elected via countback on 9 May 2017 (Follawing the

resignation of Cr Tanya Tescher, and officially swornin os a Councillor on
15 May 2017

Cr Raylene Carr

Phone: 0400 886 889

Email: raylene.carr@ whitehorse.vic.gov.au

Date Elected: 22 October 2016
Term: 2008-2012, 2012-2016, 2016—current

ersdale Ward

Cr Bill Bennett (Mayor)

Phone: 0409 195 530

Email: bill.bennett@whitehorse.vic.gov.au

Date Elected: 22 October 2016
Term: 2012-2016, 2016—current
Mayoral Term: 2018-2019

Cr Sharon Ellis
Phone: 0419 397 194

Email: sharon.ellis@whitehorse.vic.gov.au

Date Elected: 22 October 2016

Term: 2003-2005, 2005-2008, 2008-2012, 2012—-
2016, 2016—current

Mayoral Terms: 2005-2006, 2013-2014

Springfield Ward

Cr Andrew Davenport
Phone: 0407 652 145
Email: andrew.davenport @ whitehorse.vic.gov.au

Date Elected: 22 October 2016
Term: 2012-2016, 2016—current

Mayoral Term: 2017-2018

Cr Ben Stennett

Phone: 0448 375 937

Email: ben.stennett@whitehorse.vic.gov.au

Date Elected: 22 October 2016
Term: 2007-2008, 2008-2012, 2012-2016, 2016—

current
Mayoral Term: 2010-2011

Cr Prue Cutts

Phone: 0409 867 540

Email: prue.cutts@whitehorse.vic. gov.au

Date Elected: 22 October 2016

Term: 2016—current
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Our Organisation

Whitehorse City Council values the contribution of our dedicated employees and volunteers in delivering

more than 100 different services to more than 170,000 residents in the community.

Council prides itself on providing a safe and satisfying working environment, committed to ensuring the

wellbeing of all employees and volunteers while theyachieve Council’s objectives tothe best of their abilities.

Organisational Structure

As at 30 June 2019, this is the organisation chart: -

Chigf
Noelene Duff

General I Gen ager
Corporate Senvices ( Human Senices nfrastructure
Peter Smith Jeff Green Terry Wilkinson Nigel Brown
Fnance and Corporate Engineering and Communiy Assets and Capital Strategic Merketng
L- Performance -] Environmental Senvices - Developrment L- Works and Cormmunication
Stuart Cann Ilias Kostopoulos Debbie Seddon Steve Tierney Rowena Mormow
Digial and Busnes Planning and Home and Communiy Mejor Projects and Ciic Sanvices
b Technology - Building - Services k= Buidings Tony De Fazio
Mark Ackland Kim Marriott May Hassan Siobhan Belmore
Faesrd @i Inv@:ment and Hezkh and Farnily Gy Works
["| Pauline Bennett L e 1 & I Simon Kinsey
DeborahShambrook Tony Johnson
Compiance Artsand.CuturaI Parkswide
[l Steve Morison B SR - Steve Day
Shayne Price

Property and Rates
Tony Peak

Lekure and Recreation
Services
Kendall Sinclair

In response to operational requirements, Council may conduct a review of the service delivery structure.

During 2018/19, Council revised several departments to enhance business operations. A review was

conducted in our Organisation Development Department which has now been renamed to People and

Culture.

functions.

Annual Report 2018-19

In addition, a review has commenced of our communications, digital marketing and marketing
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Executive Management Team

Whitehorse City Council’s Executive Management Team comprises Noelene
Duff, the Chief Executive Officer and four General Managers. Noelene
reports directly to Council, with the Communication and Civic Services

departments reporting directly to Noelene.

Noelene is supported by:

Peter Smith
General Manager Corporate Services

Areas of responsibility include: Finance and Corporate Performance, Digital
and Business Technology, People and Culture, Compliance and Property and
Rates

Jeff Green
General ManagerCity Development

Areas of responsibilityinclude: Engineering and Environmental
Services, Planning and Building and Investment and Economic

Development

Terry Wilkinson
General Manager Human Services

Areas of responsibility include: Community Development, Whitehorse
Home and Community Services, Health and Family Services, Leisure and

Recreation Services, and Arts and Cultural Services

Nigel Brown
Acting General Manager Infrastructure

Areas of responsibility include: Assets and Capital Works, Major
Projects and Buildings, City Works and ParksWide
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Council’s People

As at 30 June 2019, a total of 1387 staff were employed by Council, comprising full-time, part-time,
temporary and casual positions.

Overall, Council staff increased by 21 during the year to fill vacant positions and meetincreased legislative,

project or operational requirements. This is approximately 1.5 per cent higher than last year.

Staff by Functional Area 2018/19 — as at30 June 2019

Gender Headcount

Directorate

Total | FulTime Part Time Casud
Gl

Tl ‘ b . ‘ Femae | Mde Femalke | Make | Female

Chief Executive
Office

City Devel opment

CorporateSenvices

Human Services

Infrastructure

Totd

EFT = Equivalent Full Time *Excludes vacant positionsCasual EFT calculated by actual hours

Council Staff by Employment Classification

Female EFT Male EFT | Total EFT

Band 1 0 1 1

Band 2 101 43 144
Band 3 41 66 107
Band 4 104 39 143
Band 5 61 33 94
Band 6 66 41 107
Band 7 32 34 66
Band 8 4 6 10
Other* 68 40 108
Total 477 303 780

A =Temporary EFT (65 EFT) and Casual EFT(101EFT) have beenincluded
* ‘Other’ includes non-banded workforce members induding nurses, sessio nal(leisure centre ) s &aff, tu tors, school crossing

supenvisors and senior officers
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Council’s People and Culture Strategic Framework and the Whitehorse City Council Collective Agreement

2016 are central to our people management strategies.
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Council’s People and Culture Strategic Framework

Workforce Planning and Professional Development

Acritical component of our People and Culture Strategic Framework is effective workforce planning to ensure
the appropriate resources are available to deliver Council services. During 2018-19 Council finalised its

participation in a sector-wide project designed to increase our ability to undertake workforce planning.

Council encourages all employees to reach their full potential by pursuing and developing their career and
professional development interests. A range of formal and informal learning opportunities and development
activities are provided to employees at Whitehorse City Council, identified in consultation with management

and employees through Council's annuzl Performance Appraisal and Development program.

Equal Opportunity

Whitehorse City Council takesits equal opportunity responsibilities seriously and is committed to upholding
the principles of the Equal Opportunity Act 2010. Council is committed to providing a workplace free of all
forms of discrimination, bullying and harassment in all aspects of the employment and volunteering
relationship. We aim for equality of opportunity for all employees and volunteers to ensure that the

principles of the Human Rights Charter are embedded in our employee and volunteer policies, practices and
culture.

The objective of Council's Equal Employment Opportunity program is to ensure there is no discrimination
relating to the characteristics listed under the Equal Opportunity Act 2010 such as race, colour, sex, marital
status, parenthood, physical or mental impairment, age, religious or political affiliation, gender identity and
sexual orientation. Further objectives include ensuring the workplace is free from bullying and harassment.
Council seeks to attract and retain the most talented employees and volunteers, and to create a positive
environment. Our goal is to provide a clear and consistent approach to managing and resolving equal

opportunity and human rightsissues.
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The Equal Opportunity and Human Rights program is monitored by the Equal Opportunity and Human Rights
Committee that promote employee and management awareness, consider relevant issues and contribute to

issue resolution and advice.

Collective Agreement

During the past year, Council has continued to implement the provisions of the Whitehorse City Council
Collective Agreement 2016 that expires in December 2019. Negotiations for a new Collective Agreement
commenced in early 2019. The Whitehorse City Council Consultative Committee is an important consultation
mechanism for the organisation. Itis comprised of five delegates each of employees, union and management

who consult on a range of issues arising from the Collective Agreement, relevant legislation and industrial

relations mattersand seeks to contribute to maintaining a cooperative, productive and satisfying workplace.

Volunteers

Council engages 361 volunteers across various programs Volunteers

including Meals on Wheels, advisory committees, Council’s
j Female 228
ArtSpace, Bushland Education program and homework support.
. Male 133
Council acknowledges the valuable role that our volunteers play
in contributing to the community. Total 361

Health and Wellbeing at Work

Whitehorse City Council ensures there is a focus on health and wellbeing to support and promote a safe,
healthy and productive work environment. The aim is to encourage self-engagement and motivation to
adopt healthy habits which are beneficial for a healthy work—life balance. During 2018/19, Council promoted
a calendar of targeted health and wellbeing initiatives focused on identified areas of need. These included:
physical activity, healthy eating, smoking, alcohol and mental health. The health and wellbeing of staff and
associated initiatives have received further support in 2018/19 with the addition of a temporary Health and
Wellbeing Officer within the Risk, Health and Safety Team.

Injury Management

Whitehorse City Council continues to achieve and maintain positive return-to-work results. This is achieved
through early return-to-work strategies. Council aims to work closely with the injured employee and their
treatment provider to find suitable duties for the employee to perform while they recover. Council
performance continues to be betterthan itsindustry cohorts as assessed and credited by Council’'s WorkSafe

insurance agent.

Safety Activities

Council is committed to providing a work environment that is safe and without risk to health and safety.
Employee consultation in relation to Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) occurs on several levels. The
Corporate OHS Consultative Committee is the main consultative mechanism. Consultation also occurs via

local OHS team meetings and is integrated into other health and safety processes.

OHS training is risk-based and is driven from a training needs analysis used to identify and target training
requirements of the various positions within Council. An OHS training calendar has been developed and, via
the learning and development system, individual department training plans were created. Further
developments in the health and safety arena have included the expansion of wellness and injury prevention

activities to deliver an effective, proactive and customer-focused Wellness and Injury Prevention program.
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Risk Review

Council’s strategic and operational risks are reviewed on a monthly basis through a risk review timetable at
a monthly Risk Management Committee. Managers attend to present their high and medium risks and the
controls to the committee to demonstrate ownership and allow for robust risk conversations. Council fulfils
our governance requirements by providing the minutes of these meetings and specific risk reports to

Council’s Audit Advisory Committee, which ensures risks are effectively monitored, reviewed and reported.

Council’sInsurance

Council has an insurance program in place to cover our identified insurable risk. Insurance is reviewed in
detail annually to ensure adequate insurance coverage. In addition, Council's “uninsured” risk is assessed to
identify any insurance gaps. Council continues to manage risk in the area of road management and
application of the Victorian Road Manage ment Act 2004. All claims against Council are reviewed against a

legal framework. Currently, Council's public liability and professional indemnity insurance are with the MAV
Scheme.

Managing Risk
Council acknowledges our obligation to:

* provide a safe environment for all staff, contractors, residents and visitors
*  manage its financial resources in a responsible manner
e comply with all legislation relevant to its local government activities

* maintain and protect its physical assets.

Whitehorse City Council recognises risk management as an essential business strategy for current and future
operations of the organisation and is fundamental to Council’s ability to deliver on our strategic objective of
strong leadership and governance in partnership with community. Council has a responsibility in developing
a risk management culture through effective communication and training.

Council’s current Risk Management Policy, structured by the Risk Management Standard 1SO 31000-2018,
seeks to develop a systematic approach to:

* identify and prioritise risks

¢ develop and implement responses to minimise risks

* link risk assessment issues to operational and strategic plans

¢ determine the level of resourcing required to respond to specific risk categories.

Council has a Risk Management Framework that is appropriate to our activities and operating environment.
It provides an effective process for the identification, analysis and management of impacts (both negative
and positive) on finances, people, business processes and systems, the environment, reputation and image.
This approach supports the sustainability and safeguarding of Council’'s assets, including people, finances,

property and reputation.
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Our Performance

Integrated Planning and Reporting

Council’s integrated planning and reporting framework guides Council in identifying community needs and

aspirations over the long term (Council Vision), medium term (Council Plan) and short term (Annual

Budget, incorporating the Annual Plan), and then holding ourselves accountable (Annual Reportand
Audited Statements).

The purpose of integrated planning and reporting is:

to determine the priorities for the municipality in terms of its future outlook, how our community wants

to live and the city we desire to be

to consider how change will impact the city and how this presents an opportunity to shape our future

to establish clear strategic direction for responding to change

to prioritise projects and services which will deliver the best return on investment

toinform Council’s long-term financial planning and budgeting

toinform annual Council planning and business planning across Council departments

to provide a line of sight for employees to see how their individual work tasks contribute to the overall

strategic direction of Council and community.

Council's integrated planning and reporting framework
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Council Vision

The Council Vision is a 10-year plan informed by community engagement, research and consultation and

articulates the aspirations of the community about the future through five strategic directions.

Council Plan

The Council Plan details Council’s contribution to the delivery of the Council Vision through an array of high-
level goals sitting beneath each strategic direction featured within the Council Vision. The Council Plan
focuses on Council's approach to working with the community, key stakeholders, community organisations
and other levels of government in order to achieve these goals over the next four years. The Council Plan
also informs Council’s long-term financial planning and Council's 10-year Capital Works program. Finally, the
Council Plan contains the Strategic Resource Plan which is a rolling four-year plan that outlines the financial

and non-financial resources that Council requires to achieve the Council Plan goals and related approaches.

Municipal Public Health and Wellbeing Plan

The Municipal Public Health and Wellbeing Plan outlines key priorities and objectives which work towards
improving municipal health and wellbeing in partnership with the community, key stakeholders, community

organisations and other levels of government.

Municipal Strategic Statement

The Municipal Strategic Statement outlines Council’s key strategic visionary documents, providing the

overarching strategic directions for land use and development in the City of Whitehorse.

Annual Plan

The Annual Plan is an annual action plan for Council based on the Council Vision and Council Plan and is
contained within the Annual Budget (which outlines Council’s annual commitment of resources to deliver
the Annual Plan, as well as Council's services). It outlines the major initiatives, initiatives, financial statements
and service performance indicators as outlined in the Local Government Performance Reporting Framework
(LGPRF).
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Details of Our Performance

The Council Plan forms the basis for our performance and thus this section should be read in conjunction
with our Council Plan. Inthe proceeding pages, each strategic direction includes:

e related goals and approaches from our Council Plan
e Apnual Plan Initiatives - achievements for 2018/19
s services — highlight achievements for 2018/19

e Measures of Success: strategic indicator results for 2018/19

‘ Our Peformance \

PLANNING

Measures
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Strategic Direction One: Support a healthy, vibrant, inclusive and
diverse community

Health and wellbeing of our community is a key priority and working closely with the community is critical
. :

J

to ensure the delivery of, and access to, services and programs which are sufficiently flexible and

Goal1.1: Asafe, inclusive, resilient and diverse community which benefits from good health and

wellbeing through the delivery of services, fadlities and initiatives

Our Approach

1.1.1  In partnership, plan and deliver high-quality responsive services and advocate for our diverse
community based on current and future needs.

1.1.2 Encourage and facilitate connections across the diverse age groups through activities and social
interaction in our community.

1.1.3 Continue to work with the community and stakeholders in relation to community safety, including
family violence, mental health, drugs and alcohol.

1.1.4 Work with community organisations to encourage social connections and support community
participation.

1.1.5 Continue to encourage and support volunteering to enable community participation opportunities.

1.1.6 Continue to provide opportunities for people to engage in the arts, festivals, recreation and sports
leading to social connectedness and cultural diversity.

1.1.7 Increase awareness of and celebrate the diversity of our community.

The following initiatives highlight Council’s priority actions that contribute to our approach for 2018/19. They

do not constitute all actions delivered by Council.

Nunawading Community Hub Development

Develop the Nunawading Community Hub and engage with stakeholders to develop an inviting, highly
accessible place with a range of flexible internal and external spaces for active and passive activities,

providing for a broad range of groups and individuals now and into the future.

Ireland Brown Constructions were engaged in September 2018 and commenced construction onsite in
November 2018. Works completed include partial excavation for the underground services, car parks and
landscaping. The precast concrete lift core has been completed along with the pouring of the ground floor
slab. The steel framing on the ground floor is currently in progress. The refurbishment of the heritage school
building is underway and structural underpinning works is due to commence shortly. Completion is expected
mid-2020.
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Whitehorse Centre

Commence redevelopment of the Whitehorse Centre to upgrade and expand facilities to meet current and
future community needs for performing arts, exhibitions and functions. This will include an increase in
audience capacity and stage size, an additional smaller theatre, an increase in foyer space and improved

disability access while retaining the sound shell.

A national design competition was held to attract Australia’s best design teams. The winning architect was
BKK + KTA (in association) and project design meetings are in progress to finalise the concept design phase

and commence the schematic design process.

Strathdon House

Commence redevelopment for the future of the Strathdon homestead and precinct.

Lovell Chen is the appointed architect and has been engaged to carry out a building condition survey. The
House Collection Inventory has been carried out to form part of the history display and fruit tree grafting has

commenced.

Sports and Planning Development

Manage sports club growth and demand in Whitehorse proactively with employment of a Sports Planning

and Development Officer.

A Sports Development and Participation Officer was employed and commenced in this role in November
2018. This position is responsible for proactively planning and managing current and future use of key Council
recreation and sporting facilities from a policy development and club development perspective, with an

emphasis on participation, physical activity and health-focused outcomes.

Highlights from the 2018/19 financial year are described below.

Libraries

This service represents Council’s contribution to the Whitehorse Manningham Regional Library Corporation

which provides public library services at four locations within the municipality.

The local launch of the Libraries Change Lives campaign was held at Box Hill Library and included
presentations from the Library Board Chair, Councillor Tina Liu, local author Hazel Edwards and other
community members. Whitehorse Manningham Regional Library Corporation, Chief Executive Officer Sally
Both and Councillor Tina Liu, also attended the Libraries Change Lives event held at Parliament House in June

2019. The event showcased the value of public libraries to the community.

In January 2019, the Nunawading Library featured on the ABC's 7.30 Report which highlighted the
importance of libraries in our communities. The program filmed a story time session that had almost 100
parents and children in attendance. The Coordinator Youth Services, Robyn Burns, was also interviewed and

spoke about the importance of early literacy programsin childhood learning and development.
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Community Development

This service focuses on the development and implementation of policies and strategies, and programs and
initiatives to respond to community wellbeing needs. It also provides community grants to local not-for-profit

groups and organisations and offers support with community festivals.

Council launched a new online engagement platform, Your Say Whitehorse, allowing Council to receive
community feedback through online forums and targeted surveys, aswell asto share information via custom-

branded project pages.

The Inner East Faith Communities Unite for Safety and Respect project, funded by Women’s Health East, was
a successful collaboration between the City Councils and Interfaith Networks of Whitehorse, Monash,
Manningham and Boroondara. The purpose of the project was to discuss the reality of family violence in our
community and to strengthen interfaith relationships and partnerships across the inner east region.

To support and promote girls’ engagement with science, technology, engineering and mathematics (STEM),
the Miss Makes Code community event in March 2019 reached 95 children and adult participants. Council
also participated in the Gambling Help Awareness Week and is now a full member of the Alliance for
Gambling Reform. As part of our commitment to men’s mental health and wellbeing, a number of activities

were delivered to over 150 participants as part of Men’s Health Week 2018.

Arts and Cultural Services

This service provides a diverse and ongoing program of arts, cultural and heritage events as well as access to

the Whitehorse Art Collection, meeting room hire and function services.

The Festivals Unit successfully delivered the Whitehorse Festival Season that included Spring Festival,
Whitehorse Carols, Australia Day Concert and fireworks, Global Fiesta and the Swing Pop Boom! series. It
also offers support with community festivals including Chinese New Year and the Moon Festival. The 2018
Heritage Week theme was “A Walk in the Park” and showcased the City of Whitehorse gardens and green

spaces across 17 events.

Box Hill Community Arts Centre has experienced a great year, with consistently high bookings for Council-
run courses and workshops across all age groups. The Box Hill Town Hall continues to caterfor a wide array
of community and corporate events including celebrations, festivals, conferences and numerous citizenship
ceremonies.

The Whitehorse Artspace hosted seven exhibitions inits gallery space within the Box Hill Town Hall.

The Whitehorse Centre’s professional Theatre and Music Season and Midweek Matinee programs were very
well received with many shows selling out. Theatre hire clients, particularly the community musical theatre
groups, have also enjoyed sold out performances, further enhancing a broad theatre experience for the City
of Whitehorse residents. The Whitehorse Centre hosted a number of Council events for community members
including the Women’s Forum luncheons, Sports Awards and Parent Forums.
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Leisure Facilities

This service provides a range of leisure facilities including Morack Golf Course, Aqualink Box Hill and Aqualink

Nunawading, Sportlink and Nunawading Community Centre.

Teams came from all over Victoria to compete in the Whitehorse Netball Association’s major annual
tournament at the Sportlink facility. Over 15 associations and 65 teams used the eight courts for the full day;
this was a fast-paced and highly competitive competition.

Over 3000 visitors attended the Melbourne Taekwondo Centre tournament with 300 martial arts
competitors showcasing their skills. The tournament ran across all three stadium courts at Box Hill Aqualink
and attracted hundreds of spectators. Nunawading Basketball Association conducted its annual Queen’s
Birthday basketball tournament with approximately 720 players participating. The event was supported by

600 spectators and is the largest single tournament the centre hosts.

Active Communities

This service manages community sport and recreation operations, use and development including the
utilisation of sporting grounds and pavilions and provides support to community groups including club

development opportunities.

Council hosted a club development session for all sports and recreation clubs within the municipality titled
“Empowering Women in Sport”. Councillor Bill Bennett Mayor of Whitehorse provided the opening address
for the evening's session which was facilitated by Meaghan Densley from Sports Community. “Empowering
Women in Sport” focused on the changing face of women’s sports and the capacity of sports to advance
gender equality. This will assist clubs with encouraging women to seek opportunities in leadership roles. The
session was delivered as part of Council's ongoing commitment to provide development and support
opportunities for clubs located within the municipality. Participants found the session to be informative and

valuable to their club.

Recreation and Open Space Development

This service provides planning and strategy development for open space and recreation facilities and

infrastructure.

Works associated with the construction of a Mountain Bike Skills Loop and upgrade of the existing BMX Track
at Heatherdale Reserve were completed. The original proposal wasreceived from alocal group of boys within
the community requesting that Council consider a mountain bike track in the vicinity of the existing BMX
track. A draft concept plan was developed and consultation was undertaken with key stakeholder groups
and local residents. The skills loop includes several elements such as mounds, humps, rocks and berms. The
track was opened in December and provides the opportunity for families to ride together and develop riding
skills in a safe environment. Additional planting was undertaken to enhance the riding experience as well as
maintain privacy for adjoining residents.

Council saw the appointment of new members to the Whitehorse Sport and Recreation Network for a two-
year term. This network provides Council with advice and guidance on the future of sports and recreation
development within the City of Whitehorse.
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SportsFields

This service is responsible for the design, installation, maintenance and renewal of sports field infrastructure

and project manageme nt of sports field capital projects.

Council provided seasonal maintenance and specialist sports surface preparation at 53 sports fields within
the municipality which provided opportunities for a variety of community sports. New multi-purpose training
nets were designed and constructed at Forest Hill Reserve. The middle oval at Mahoneys Reserve was
upgraded ensuring improved sports surfaces for the tenant clubs and the community. Sports field
infrastructure, such as coaches boxes and goal posts were audited and replaced in line with the Open Space
Asset Management Plan.

Home and Community Services

This service provides home delivered and community-based meals, personal and respite care, transport,

domestic and home maintenance, planned activities and social support.

Whitehorse City Council (WCC) Home and Community Services (WHACS) Department provides services to
over 4500 people annually of all ages who are frail aged and/or have a disability, with younger people
currently accounting for approximately 1.1 per cent of all current service users. Services provided include
assessment, domestic assistance, personal care, community transport, occupational therapy, home
maintenance and modifications and delivered meals services. Service provision is underpinned by a wellness
and enablement framework that aims to enhance individual capacity to live independently in the community
through support with a wide range of daily living activities.

Results of the WHACS Annual Client Review has demonstrated quality service outcomes to the consumers
with 97.74 per cent stating that services they receive from WHACS made & difference to them, and 731
people reflected that WHACS services supported them with tasks they are no longer able to do, which
increased their participation in community life and allowed them to continue living at home. The high
importance of elderly support services to the community is also highlighted in the 2019 Whitehorse

Community Satisfaction Survey.

Family Services

This service area provides centre-based childcare Whitehorse Early Learning Service (WELS), integrated

kindergarten, inclusion support, maternal and child health and youth support services.

Maternal and child health consultations involved 9025 families with nurses completing nearly 18,000
consultations. We supported 90 highly vulnerable families and collaborated with other service providers to
deliver the Mother Goose Program;a specialised parent group targeted at vulnerable families. Arevised and
updated Family Resource Guide was developed and we supported five playgroups and delivered eight

Parenting Information forums.

Successful transition of families over to an electronic sign in and out system for the Whitehorse Early Learning
Services centres following improved efficiencies with the enrolment placement process resulting in an
improved customer experience and a 1.6 per cent increase in average utilisation for the period January to
February 2019.

Council Youth Services engaged and worked with approximately 8400 young people this year and included
3200 instances of Youth Connexions (Council’s drop-in centre) and outreach support, 441 students attending

the homework support program, 875 students benefiting from School Focused Youth Service interventions
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in schools, approximately 3700 young people attending events (FReeZa events, Spring Fest Youth Area and
Victorian Youth Week), 24 young people actively involved in youth committees, 120 young people
participating in school holiday activities and 80 young people attending the Municipal Youth Forum. There
was a diverse range of strategiesimplemented by the Youth Services Unit to engage young people, including
the youth ‘drop in’ centre, outreach, school holiday activities, specific events and online / social media
engagement.

Environmental Health

This service provides health education and protection services such as immunisations, food safety

manage ment, communicable disease surveillance, tobacco control and environmental protection.

Childhood immunisation coverage ratesremain high across the municipality averaging at nearly 94 per cent
in 2018 with a total of 9109 vaccinations administered to 4390 children for the year as part of Council' s public
childhood immunisation program. A total of 6144 vaccinations were administered as part of Council’s school
immunisation program. There is a notable decline in the number of immunisation encounters through

Council due to a shift towards families using general practitioner (GP) services instead.

The Food Safe program continues to drive improvements in food safety with 93.5 per cent of premises being
compliant in 2018. To maintain Council's statutory requirements under the Food Act and Public Health and
Wellbeing Act we undertook 1507 mandatory assessments/inspections, 190 complaint inspections, 318
routine inspections, 298 non-compliance/follow up inspections, and issued 52 formal orders/notices which

included planning infringement notices and seizures.

Compliance

This service delivers regulatory functions including: domestic animal management, school crossing

supervision, Council’s local law framework and managing parking controls across the municipality.

A new online application function for residential parking permits applications went live in June 2019
providing an online platform for customers to apply and pay for new residential parking permits. Benefits
will include an improved customer experience through faster processing and single point management,
eliminating unnecessary steps from multiple departments, and minimising paperwork or payment issues
which in turn will improve customer experience and efficiency.

Council implemented a strategy to reduce the impact of abandoned shopping trolleys around Box Hill. The
new approach included improved engagement with retailers, increased collection regimes and the
introduction of multilingual communication methods designed to educate local residents regarding the need

to return trolleys to allocated locations and reporting any issues.

An extensive review of dog-off-lead provision within the City of Whitehorse was completed resulting in three
additional off-lead sites declared. There are now 22 dog off-lead locations in the City of Whitehorse.

Enhanced safety strategies for Parking and Local Laws Officers were introduced through the procurement of

body-worn camerasto supplement existing health and safety measures.

In 2018/19, 50,643 infringements were issued for the year, an increase of 14 per cent to the previous year.

Annual Report 2018-19 | 35

Page 157



Whitehorse City Council
Ordinary Council Meeting 21 October 2019

9.3.1 — ATTACHMENT 1. Annual Report 2018-19

Strategic Direction One
- Measures of Success
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Strategic Direction Two: Maintain and enhance our built
environment to ensure a liveable and sustainable city

The City of Whitehorse community values the municipality for its open spaces, the tree-lined streets and

range of sustainable, accessible, safe transport nodes t

d
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Goal 2.1: A well-connected city with a balanced approach to growth supported by infrastructure

and developmentthatrespectsourneighbourhood character.

Our Approach

21.1 Development which respects our natural and built environments and neighbourhood character
while achieving a balanced approach to growth in accordance with relevant legislation.

2.1.2 Advocate for greater housing diversity including affordable and social housing.

2.1.3 Advocate for enhanced transport accessibility and improved transport routes and modes (including
active transport).

21.4 Maintain, renew and sustainably invest in our community infrastructure that is relevant, modern
and accessible, and can accommodate multipurpose usage.

2.1.5 Maintain,enhance and create shared community spaces that promote the neighbourhood character

and provide a safe and enjoyable meeting place for everyone.

The following initiatives highlight Council’s priority actions that contribute to our approach for 2018/19. They

do not constitute all actions delivered by Council.

Harrow Street Car Park Redevelopment

Construction of the multi-deck car park.

Buxton Constructions were engaged September 2018 and commenced construction onsite late September
2018. Construction works have progressed well anticipating a late July 2019 completion. The community
space tenancy fitout works has commenced and is due for completion late August 2019. Pioneer Parkis to
be completed by ParksWide with works scheduled to commence mid-late July 2019. Tenders for the Station
Street pedestrian operated signals close 19 July 2019, followed by construction to commence late September
2019.
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Pavilion Redevelopment

Commence the redevelopment of the Morton Park Reserve Pavilion, Walker Park Reserve Pavilion, Elgar

Park South Pavilion and Terrara Park Pavilion

Morton and Walker Park Pavilions

Demolition and earthworks for Walker Park are in progress, with concrete works due to start shortly. The
anticipated completion date for Walker Park is mid- December 2019. The site compound and temporary
facilities for Morton Park are being established. Commencement has been delayed due a nationwide
shortage of temporary facilities, and an increased vigilance with legislative requirements for temporary

facilities. Moreton Park Pavilion is scheduled for completion early 2020.
Elgar South Pavilion

The appointment of a head contractor is currently in progress with works scheduled to commence onsite
late August 2019. Anticipated completion is mid-May 2020.

Terrara Park Pavilion

Katz Architecture PL are progressing through the design development phase with the completion of tender

documentation anticipated September/October 2019.

Morack Golf Course

Design development for Morack Golf Course Pavilion, driving range and mini golf facility.

Centrum Architects were appointed to the project and development of concept designs is well underway.
Consultation has recently been undertaken regarding the concept designs with the golf course operator and

resident golf clubs with the appointment of key consultants completed.

Transport Strategy for Box Hill Metropolitan Activity Centre (MAC)

Commence development of an integrated transport strategy for the Box Hill MAC and surrounds to address

current and future transport and traffic issues.

Completed a Background Study prior to developing an Integrated Transport Strategy for the Box Hill MAC.

Residential Corridors Study

Implementation of guidelines from the Residential Corridors Study to address design of new development in

the Residential Growth Zone along major growth road corridors.

The Residential Corridors Built Form Guidelines were finalised and adopted by Council on 29 January 2019.
Council also resolved to seek authorisation for a planning scheme amendment toimplement the guidelines

and the planning controls have been prepared.
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Highlights from the 2018/19 financial year are described below.

Planning

This service provides statutory and strategic land use planning functions, ensuring compliance of land use and

developments under the White horse Planning Scheme.
Strategic Planning

A planning scheme amendment to implement the permanent tree protection controls was initiated to
support “blanket” tree protection controls across the municipality for those areas not already covered by a

permanent Significant Landscape Overlay.

Council adopted the Student Accommodation Strategy with next steps being future planning scheme
amendments. A grant from the state government is facilitating background work and a policy for affordable

housing.

Twenty-one of the 22 successful applicants for the annual Heritage Assistance Fund completed their projects
and another successful biennial Built Environment Awards evening was held in June highlighting innovative

and sustainable design around the theme “Change in the Middle Suburbs”.

Statutory Planning

Council received a total of 1648 applications and determined 1686 with decisions made within an average of
105 gross processing days, which is an improvement on last year and less than the metropolitan average of
123 days. There has been an increase in the number of existing permits being amended, as the development
industry shifts. This is supported by data which shows 243 permits sought to be amended for the year,

compared to 170 for the previous year.

Council received 581 VicSmart applications in comparison to 341 received the previous year and 126 in
2016/17. This significant increase is due to the introduction of interim tree protection controls into the
planning scheme, and a broadening of VicSmart application classes by the state government. In comparison,
this is significantly higher than Banyule with 407 VicSmart applications and Maroondah with 345 VicSmart

applications. These councils are comparable with tree controls over large parts of these municipalities.

Whitehorse Council has in its Planning Scheme, a policy to guide environmentally sustainable development.
For this financial year, 160 sustainable design assessments have been undertaken for applications seeking
development of 3 - 9 dwellings, and 131 Sustainability Management Plans have been undertaken for

residential developments of greater than 10 dwellings and non-residential developments.

Building

This service provides the administration, education and enforcement of public safety, provision of a
community-focused building permit service, maintenance of registers and records as required by the Building
Act 1993.

Undertook 50 site inspections for public protection and hoarding permits, 2475 onsite building inspections
comprising 427 mandatory building inspections and 695 for report and consent inspections and 1353 building
enforcement inspections. Over 50 swimming pool and spa safety inspections were completed, and more than
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20 combustible cladding audits were undertaken with the Victorian Building Authority. Building enforcement

action was taken for 487 matters where non-compliant building works had taken place.

The team attended Training with the Victorian Building Authority on the new Building Regulations 2018 and
the new Building Code amendments to maintain continuing professional development accreditation and

undertook training to become proficient in the new Trapeze software used for building plan assessments.

Engineering Services

This service provides strategic traffic and sustainable transport planning and traffic investigations and
reports; capital works project scoping, design and construction supervision; civil asset protection; and the
strategic management of Council roads and drainage assets.

Design and Construction

This year saw the commencement of netball and basketball court reconstruction works at Mont Albert
Reserve, and the Service also granted the detailed design for sports field lighting upgrades at Morton Park
(West and East) ovals, finalised detail design works for streetscape improvement works at Blackburn Village
and Vermont Village shops and continued with conceptual and preliminary design for future stages of
streetscape improvement works at Mitcham Shopping Centre.

Extensive works were completed during the year from footpath construction, drainage improvement works,
and road reconstruction to resurfacing projects, car park resurfacing and streetscape improvement works.
Bicycle hoops were installed at Box Hill Gardens, bicycle and skateboard maintenance facilities at Box Hill
Skate Park, play space upgrades were completed at R E Gray Reserve, Nicoll Park, Lundgren Chain (North
East), Jean Lake Reserve, Gardiners Creek Reserve and Eley Road Reserve. Detailed designs were completed
for sports fields lighting upgrade at Bill Stewart (athletics track) and infield which is used for soccer.

Engineering Assets

Ongoing complex major developments in Box Hill have seen an increase in the number of customer requests
related to damage to assets by builders and service authorities this year. \We’ve undertaken investigations

and completed installation for various minor public lighting projects across the municipality.

Technology improvements have resulted in online applications for Building over the Easement, Legal Point

of Discharge and Flood Levels going live and available on Council's website.

CCTV survey of Council's stormwater network and modelling of Council's drainage assets and road pavement
was completed with commencement of data verification and modelling of other roads assets required for
completion of the Roads Asset Management Plan later in the year.

Transport

Provided various activities relating to travel behaviour activities involving partly funded Fit2Drive workshops
for Year 11 students attwo secondary schools, continued delivery of the L2P learner driver mentor program,
hosted Walk to School month activities in 30 primary schools during the month of October, and organised
cycling education programs including Mums on Bikes, CycleWise, Teenage Girls’ Bike Skills Course, School
Holidays Bike Skills program, and Bike Ed. Prioritised the first Easy Ride cycling routes for implementation
(EW6) and completed the preliminary design for this route. Continuing discussions with VicRoads regarding
pedestrian and cyclist infrastructure improvements to the Box Hill to Ashburton Strategic Cycling Corridor
and Box Hill to Ringwood Shared User Path and completed the Eastern Trails Strategy with representatives

of other municipalities in eastern Melbourne.
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Strong advocacy to the state government continued for improved community outcomes relating to the North
East Link project, including the lodgement of a written submission regarding the North East Link
Environmental Effects Statement outlining Council’s concerns about the project, and made strong
recommendations for improved community outcomes, particularly in relation to transport, ecology, open
space and community amenity. Other advocacy campaigns continue to the state government for the urgent
upgrade of the Box Hill Transport Interchange so that safety, connectivity, security and convenience issues

are addressed.

Public Street Lighting
This service provides street lighting throughout Whitehorse.

Council ceased the purchase of green power for public street lighting from July 2018, purchasing equivalent

offsets for contribution to energy-efficient and renewable energy projects.

City Works

Services are provided for the ongoing cleanliness and maintenance of Council’s roads, footpaths, kerb and
channel, stormwater drainage pits and pipes, roadside furniture, bridges, path structures and shopping
centres within the municipality including street sweeping, litter bin collection, removal of dumped rubbish
and the provision of an after-hours emergency response service.

Council continues to provide barbeque cleaning, township cleansing and cleaning of conventional and
automated public toilets. The timber road bridge at Yarran Dheran was replaced and boardwalks were
replaced in Joseph Street Reserve, Heatherdale Reserve, Kalang Park and Blackburn Lake Sanctuary. Itwas a

record year with debris collected by the street sweeping program with 3093 tonnes collected.

Fleet and Workshop

The team manages Council's fleet of vehicles, plant and equipment items including the operation of a

workshop and overall management of the functions of the Operations Centre.

The Fleet and Workshop Service continued to maintain Council's plant and fleet. Larger purchases of plant
and fleet included a bucket loader and trailer for the Recycling and Waste Centre, a large tipper truck, tractor
and an electric cart for Council’s nursery.

Major Projects

This service is responsible for the project management of capital building projects and the facilitation of major

projects.

The Major Projects and Buildings Team continued to deliver Council's high-priority projects as part of the

Capital Works program.
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Assets and Capital Works

This service is responsible for the development, monitoring and performance reporting of Council's Capital
Works Program, and the planning and implementation of asset management improvement initiatives across

the organisation including Council's Asset Management System.

It was a year of innovation for the Asset Management Team with new initiatives including the development
of a Holistic Predictive Modelling of Council Building software tool and the roll-out of a mobile computing
solution for City Works and Facilities Maintenance Field staff. New Asset Management plans were completed
for buildings, plant and fleet and 1T assets as well as a review of the Roads and Drainage Asset Management
Plan.

Various management plan reviews were completed and this year saw the roll-out of a mobile computing

solution for our City Works and Facilities Maintenance Field staff.

Council maintained our core maturity rating as defined in the National Asset Management Assessment

Framework with a score of 1047 out of 1100.

Capital works projects to the value of $50.5 million were completed as part of the 196 delivered programs,
projects and project stages delivered. The Capital Works program which prioritises renewal projects,
achieved a 92 per cent completion rate with renewal expenditure making up 56 per cent of the $50.5 million

spent.

Facilities Maintenance

This service provides reactive and preventative maintenance and minor capital renewal of Council's many
buildings and structures. It also includes scheduled inspections and maintenance to satisfy Building Code
Essential Safety Measures Re gulations.

Legislated essential safety measures were completed to all Councilowned assets with programmed works
and inspections including, but not limited to: pest control measures; mechanical servicing; thermostatic
mixing valve tests; roof and gutter cleaning and inspections; thermal imaging of switchboards; solar panel

maintenance; and testing and tagging of over 13,000 appliances and leads.

Associated Capital Works program maintenance included testing for asbestos and subsequent removal of
asbestos from five tennis club buildings and six sporting and community facilities, solar arrayand installation
of battery technology completed at the Horticultural Centre Function Rooms, an accessible ramp provided
to the Box Hill South Neighbourhood House and refurbishment works undertaken at the Florence Road Pre-

school and Koonung Pavilion kiosk.
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Strategic Direction Three: Protect and enhance our open space and
natural environments

The City of Whitehorse will continue to be one of the most liveable municipalities in Melbourne with a
strong commitment to sustainable practices and the protection and enhancement of both the builr and

natural environments.

Goal 3.1: A place where passive and open space is highly valued, shared and enhanced

Our Approach

3.1.1 Continue to sustainably manage, enhance and increase trees and vegetation in Council’s
streetscapes, parks and gardens, with species that enhance neighbourhood character, support
biodiversity and are adaptable to a changing climate.

3.1.2 Continue to retain, enhance and increase the amount of open spaces to meet the needs of our
diverse community with amenities that encourage opportunities for shared use.

3.1.3 Continue to educate and create awareness of the importance of sustaining our natural environment
including the importance of trees and vegetation in an urban environment.

The following initiatives highlight Council’s priority actions that contribute to our approach for 2018/19. They
do not constitute all actions delivered by Council.

Implement Municipal Wide Tree Study

Preparation and exhibition of an amendment to the Whitehorse Planning Scheme to implement an extension

to the Significant Landscape Overlay to all residential zoned land in the municipality.

Council prepared further strategic work to support “blanket” permanent tree protection controls and
adopted the study at its meeting on 18 March 2019. Proposed Amendment C219 was authorised by the
Minister for Planning in June 2019, allowing for an exhibition of the permanent controls. Interim tree
protection controls that have been in place since February 2018 were also extended to allow for the Planning

Scheme amendment process for the permanent controls to progress.

Review of Waste Management Strategy

Development of Council’'s new Waste Management Strategy and commence implementation of priority

actions.

Council’s new Waste Management Strategywas adopted by Council in December 2018. Four hundred people
provided comment on the draft in addition to over 700 who provided input into the strategy's development.
The strategy outlines extensive research into waste policies and strategic directions at local, state and
national levels, bench-marking with other councils, comprehensive community and external stakeholder
consultation, input from waste industry specialists, and a review of progress in implementing Council's

previous Waste Management Plan.
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Review of Potential Waste Services Charge

Preparation for the potential introduction of a waste services charge that allows for the cost of all kerbside
waste and recycling services to be covered by waste charges levied to those properties that use Council’s

kerbside waste and recycling services.

The major focus for this project throughout 2018/19 has been the review, analysis and progressive
improvements to a number of Council's bin-related processes and systems. Each process was analysed
thoroughly, following the entire flow of information from the initial resident request through to final billing
and payment, sometimes involving six different departments within Council as well as external waste and

recycling contractors.

The review and subsequent changes tovarious Council systems resulted in improvements to the customer
experience, the efficiency of processing each request, the accuracy of the data captured, and better service

and financial outcomes.

The review of all of Council's bin-related processes is continuing, as is the capture and management of bin

data for all properties that use Council bins.

Sustainability Strategy Implementation

Continue to deliver the key actions outlined in the Sustainability Strategy Action Plan as well as priority new

actions including working towards achieving net zero carbon emissions through carbon offsets.

One of the actions delivered this year includes the Sustainable Living Week program 29 May to 6 June. Over
1800 people attended 27 diverse workshops and activities on topics ranging from energy-saving measures,
solar energy, gardening, nature play, waste-free living, coral reef conservation, wildlife photography and the
joy of minimalism. Practical advice about making your home more sustainable (potentially even getting off-
grid), caring for indoor plants, environmentally sustainable design for buildings, and how to recognise edible

weeds were all added to the mix of interesting and well attended activities.

A Sustainable Learning Conference was held in May for educators across the City of Whitehorse and the
eastern region. Nine schools completed composting workshops and Council grants were awarded to 17
schools and early learning centres to undertake sustainable and waste reduction projects at their school or
kindergarten. Council also sponsored 11 schools participating in the schools program that supported
Stephanie Alexander's Kitchen Garden program.

Council continues to participate in a range of regional projects and climate change advocacy though its
membership of Eastern Alliance for Greenhouse Action (EAGA) along with eight other eastern and south-
eastern councils. Areas of focus that will continue in 2019 include updating the eastern region's Climate
Change Adaptation Plan, looking at ways to improve the network of electric vehicle charging stations, and

more energy-efficient road lights on major roads.

Other actions in the Sustainability Strategy continue as part of “business as usual” for Council and include
installing energy and water-saving appliances, lighting and devices in Council buildings; growing and using
native plants for Council's parks and gardens; looking after bushland at Blackburn Lake and Yarran Dheran;
promoting tree planting in public and private land to improve vegetation cover; and supporting a range of

community programs about enjoying and conserving our natural environment.
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Tree Education Program

Werk in an ongoing partnership with developers, residents and homeowners to increase the number of trees

and to improve the health of existing trees on private properties.

The Tree Education program released a video to support the 10 reasons to plant more trees campaign and
provided content to the Whitehorse News, and hosted 17 events hosted over the last financial year. Speakers
included an experienced local arborist who provided an overview of tree maintenance from plant selection

to senescence and a landscape designer who spoke about green walls.

A general “Sustainable Living in Whitehorse” presentation has been prepared in collaboration with the
Sustainability Unit with plans to deliver it at English Language classes attended by new residents, as thisis

regarded as a gap in our communications. The presentation was delivered once and was well received.

The Gardens for Wildlife program visited 81 gardens, producing individualised reportsfor each garden. New
guides have been recruited and four are currently in the process of being trained. A Wildlife of Whitehorse

poster has been developed and printed and distribution has commenced.

Tree Canopy Cover Assessment Tool

Progress the Urban Forest Strategy through research and implementation of a tree canopy cover assessment

tool.

Council completed a full audit of street trees in Mitcham that identifies multiple management attributes
including genus and species, tree age, health, and safe life expectancy. This will be used in the 2019/20
financial year as base data for assessing risks to the street tree population from pests, climate extremes and
a hotter dryer climate. In addition to assessment, Council obtained light detection and ranging (LIDAR) data
which showed the amount of canopy cover in the municipality. The data allows for a repeatable spatial

assessment of cover that will be used to measure canopy targets.
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Highlights from the 2018/19 financial year are described below.

Whitehorse Recyclingand Waste Centre

This is a service for the recycling and disposal of general or bulky nonhazardous waste, encouraging recycling

and the reduction of waste transported to landfill.

The City of Whitehorse Recycling and Waste Centre performed 138,597 transactions this year — on average,
that is 50 customers per hour. They received 60,341 tonnes of material to site, with 39,721 tonnes
transported to landfill. A total of 34.2 percent of the material that was brought to the site was diverted from
landfill and recycled. A new free e-waste collection service commenced atthe Centre in March 2019. E-waste

is any product that is powered by battery or electricity.

Sustainability, Waste and Recycling

This service facilitates planning for energy and water reduction programs and waste management strategic

planning. This service also includes contracts for waste collection including domestic garbage collection,
kerbside recycling, and hard and green waste collection.

The Sustainability Team continued to service the waste collection needs of the municipality with 3,086,957
kerbside garbage bin collections and over 30,000 hard waste bookings received and actioned. Council's
random bin inspection program continued to observe the contents of a sample of kerbside bins across the
City, and provide feedback to residents accordingly as part of Council's Gold Star Recycling Recognition

program.

There was increased community participation in Council's GreenMoney online rewards program, which
rewards community actions that reduced waste to landfill, increased recycling or improved the sustainability
of households or businesses. We continued to work with other councils, state government, recycling
contractors and Metro Waste Group in reviewing recycling contracts and responding to the impacts of the
recycling crisis as a result of the collapse of recycling markets and the ban by China in accepting mixed

recycling exports.

Three Community workshops were held inspiring residents to live more sustainably and we delivered several
community activities during National Recycling Week in November 2018, including a tour of waste and
recycling facilities, recycling displays at Forest Hill Chase and a community workshop. Undertook food waste

recycling at the 2018 Spring Festival, reducing the amount of waste that previously would go to landfill.

Open Space Maintenance

ParksWide is responsible for the management of Council’s bushland, open space and parklands including
developing plant stock, landscaping, pruning, grass cutting and fire management. The service also provides

an education program on ecological and environmental issues largely centred on Blackburn Lake Sanctuary.

Open space areas were maintained throughout the year via a range of operational programs including: weed
spraying, open space mowing, garden bed maintenance, general park clean-up and replacement of park
furniture in a number of locations with sustainable grown timber units including Somers Trail and Antonio
Park.
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The Natural Environment Team completed athree year project to capture and document the extent of flora,
fauna and fungi species that call our bushland reserves home. The Whitehorse Biodiversity Inventory
reviewed all available records including 119 Council reports spanning over two decades. Seasonal field data
was collected over two years in over 50 reserves. The resulting data will inform the goals of the urban
biodiversity strategyand provide a resource for officers and community members undertaking conservation
works in the municipality.

The Bushland Maintenance Services contract was renewed to enable the delivery of high-quality bushland
maintenance works in Council reserves. The Whitehorse Biodiversity Inventory project was finalised,
enabling Council to collate and combine previous and current biodiversity information into one central
database.

Tree Management

This service is responsible for the management of Council’s street and park trees to meet community
expectations as well as statutory and safety obligations. It includes planning for increasing the quantity and

quality of trees within Whitehorse as well as maintaining the health and amenity of existing trees.

Council's tree population was effectively managed through programmed activities; that is, cyclic pruning,
park and facility audits, vegetation line management clearance, and responding to reactive requests from

the community.

Afull audit of street treescommenced in Mitcham. This tree data identifies multiple management attributes
including: genus and species, tree age, health and safe life expectancy. This will be used in the 2019/20
financial year as base data for assessing risks to the street tree population from pests, climate extremes and
a hotter dryer climate.
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Strategic Direction Three
- Measures of Success
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Strategic Direction Four: Strategic leadership and open and
accessible government

Council recognises that it can only achieve the aspirations articulated in its Council Vision through the
engagement, participation and support ofthe community. Consultation and collaborative arrangements
to ensure that the community’s involvement is very much a part of the way Council plans the services,
projects and initiatives that contribute to the liveability and wellbeing of the community.

Goal 4.1: Good governance and resource management

Goal 4.2: Ahigh performing and engaged workforce

Goal 4.3: A Council that communi cates effectively, engaging with ourcommunityto enable the

delivery of services and facilities that meet the needs of our dive rse community

Our Approach

4.1.1 Continue toensure financial sustainability and continue business improvement programs.

4.1.2 Promote and enhance good governance practices and conduct.

4.1.3 Progress the implementation of the Local Government Act Review.

4.2.1 Promote leadership and development opportunities for Council employees.

4.2.2 Continue to maintain and develop a high-performing workforce that supports Council’'s ability to
deliver services efficiently and effectively.

4.2.3 Continue to participate in the Resilient Melbourne Strategy; working collaboratively to deliver
actions that will help make Whitehorse a viable, liveable and prosperous city, long into the future.

4.2.4 Continue to provide a high standard of customer service while improving the customer experience.

4.3.1 Communicate Council services, facilities and initiatives through a wide range of accessible channels.

4.3.2 Undertake adigital transformation that improves the customer experience, business processes and
provides operational benefits.

4.3.3 Apply the City of Whitehorse Community Engagement Framework to promote and improve the
practice of public participation and community engagement across our diverse activities.

4.3.4 Collaborate with our stakeholders toinform policies, plans, projects, services and infrastructure that

deliver positive relevant outcomes for the community.

The initiatives overleaf highlight Council’s priority actions contributing to our approach for 2018/19. They do

not constitute all actions delivered by Council.
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Digital Transformation Strategy

Implementation of Year Two of the Digital Strategy 2017.

Year Two of Council’s Digital Transformation Strategy saw the acceleration of the apply and payonline model,
building upon early proof of concept testing and delivering a total of 37 transitioned processes that improve
customer service, integrate with Council’s backend systems and provide transactional efficiencies. Following
selection of a preferred web content management system last year, tender processes were conducted to
appoint a web development partner and a web hosting partner. The Morack Golf website, built as a pilot site
using Council's new web platform, relaunched and was quickly followed by the WBIZ and Box Hill sites in
advance of Council's new corporate, intranet and functional site launches. Nominated content champions
across multiple departments were trained in the new platform, reviewed existing content and prepared

updated content for the new sites.

Strategic Land Management Program

Complete due diligence on identified Council landholdings.

Detailed site and feasibility work was undertaken of a nominated Council-owned site.

Implementation of requirements of the Local Government Act Review

Staged implementation in accordance with the state government timeline

A high-level review of the Local Government Bill 2018 has been undertaken by the Minister for Local
Government with additional reforms proposed as part of the Local Government Bill 2019. A reform paper has

been circulated to local governments for comment.

Live Streaming of Council and Committee Meetings

To implement the live streaming of Council and Committee meetings to assist the community in being
informed of Council decision-making, and ensuring transparency and accountability in Council proceedings

and processes.

The Streaming and Publishing Recordings of Council Meetings Policy was adopted by Council at a meeting
held on 15 October 2018 and streaming live video and audio of Council Meetings, Special Council Meetings
and Special Committee of Council Meetings began on 12 November 2018. Access to webcasts of live Council
meetings, viewing of archived meetings and links to meeting schedules, agendas and minutes are accessible
on the council's Meeting Webcast webpage. Figures provided by Live Streaming Service Provider has

confirmed there is good uptake of this new initiative.
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ContinuousImprovementProgram

Continue to implement organisation-wide Continuous Improvement program focusing on benefits such as

improving effectiveness, responsiveness, and systems and reporting.

Our Continuous Improvement program aims to provide a consistent methodology customised for the City of

Whitehorse based primarily on Lean principles. The framework is adaptable to the diversity of services

Council offers.

Our Continuous Improvement program trained 10 council staff in 2018/19, bringing our total number of

improvement champions to 23. The improvement champions identify and improve processes, embed the

technology made available through the Digital Strategy, increase capacity through hours saved, and improve

the overall customer experience. This approach increases the organisational capacity to deliver ongoing

business improvements.

10,974 Online Transactions
2435 Proactive requests
3288 Snap/Send/Solve
Registered Users;
6156 Email of rates
989 Flexi Buzz

Customer Experience

Continu

15 Impro =nt Program

Summary of Be

A

8317
Hours saved,

Increased capacity

Easier/Faster

$669,963

Dollar benefits

Financial
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CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS STATUS

% Improvement Champion Customer Experience () Easier/Faster ° Financial

26 PROJECTS IN PROGRESS 2018/19

1. Apply and Pay Online (9 Services) % ]

2. Performance and Development Plans (PADPs) % ()

3. Credit Cards @@

4. Accounts Payable Process (3@

5. Merchant Fees @ %

6. Snap Send Solve Integrationto Pathway % (L]
7. Parking Permits Online % @

8. Childhood Immunisation Process Review # o

9. Online Infringements %

10. Construction Permit Process Review #

11. Debt Collection for Rates Arrears *00

12. Standardised Pre-start Vehicle Plant Inspections *ﬁo
13. Early Childhood Services WELS Software Program W [ L]
14. Asset Protection Process Review ¥ (]

15. Annual Client Service Review WHACS % @)

16. WHACS Consumer Service Intake Process % @

17. Store Stock Inventory Process Review *0

18. Engineering Vehicle Crossing Permits ¥ @]

19. Programmed Works Process Review *e

20. Animal Registrations Online # o

21. Attendance Registers Process %

22. Down to Business Publication Process % Go

23. Graphic Design Process Review % )

24. Postage Cost Process Review *o

25. Procurement Vendor Process Review *e

26. Utilities Invoice *o

13 COMPLETED PROJECTS 2018/19— BENEFITS REPORTED
Early Childhood Services % @)

Customer Service Facilitations Tea m*c
Engineering Statement of Compliance ¥ )

Apply and Pay Online (36 Services) (@ m
Invoices — Facilities Maintenance *0

Customer Communication Effectiveness #
Intelligent Invoice Processing *oo

Customer Service — Missed Bins *a

Indigenous VegetationHarvesting ¥

10. Workshop Maintenance @)

11. Dispensation Lodgement ¥ (]

12. Compliance - First Call Resolution % @)

13. Final Notice Infringement Letters *0

L LN m R wNR
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Highlights from the 2018/19 financial year are described below.

Civic Services

This service includes customer service provision at Council's three service centres and governance services;

fostering international relations; and cleaning and maintaining the municipal offices.

Governance

Council’s Governance Team supported all Council meetings, Councillor briefing and strategic sessions. Audio
recordings of all formal Council meetings were made available on Council's website from the next working
day following each formal Council meeting to enhance transparency of Council's decision-making process
and asa reference for the community. Continued participation, oversight, and advice was provided in relation
to statutory compliance matters such as Freedom of Information, Registers of Interest, Instruments of
Delegation and Instruments of Authorisation, including statutory review of Instruments of Delegation from
Council under section 98(6) of the Local Government Act 1989. Council prepared for the Freedom of
Information Amendment (Office of the Victorian Information Commissioner) Act 2017 and arranged training

for staff and Councillors.

Civic Services’ Governance Team also supported the sister city relationship with the City of Matsudo, Japan
through collaboration with the Box Hill Community Arts Centre for Matsudo Week 2019 events, workshops
and projects, and a Green Tree Dayplanting event held in May 2019 atthe Box Hill Town Hall. The review of
internal ward boundaries was undertaken, and a submission was endorsed by Council and submitted to the

Victorian Electoral Commission.

Customer Service

Council’s Customer Service centres assisted over 48,000 customers with enquiries at service counters and
over the counter and also processed over 44,000 in-person payment transactions. An additional 275,000
transactions were made through alternate payment options such as post, internet, BPAY and Australia Post.
Overall trends indicate a slight decline of in-person transactions and phone calls, and a subsequent growth
in online servicing. During 2018/19, Council answered a total of 364,575 calls — a reduction of 4552 calls on
the prior year. A positive grade of service was delivered, with 88.34 per cent of customers connected to a

customer service officer within 20 seconds.

Council Support

This service manages citizenship ceremonies, legal expenses, Council receptions and functions, general office

expenses, Councillor development and training and the conduct of Council elections.

Council delivered operational requirements in line with organisational requirements. Mayoral commitments
and Councillors’ conference registrations and event RSVPs, Mayoral/Councillor functions, and scheduling
meetings on behalf of the Mayor as required with internal and external stakeholders were managed.
Scheduling of citizenship ceremonies to accommodate the federal department’s candidate list was
undertaken in line with federal and state requirements and guidelines. Mayoral and Councillor requests for

administrative/secretarial service were effectively managed and actioned.
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Communications

This service manages the production of Council publications, graphic design, media liaison, strategic
communications plans and produces printed and electronic communication for the community, Councillors

and the organisation.

Last year Whitehorse News was redesigned based on community feedback. There have been 12 editions
issued with 850 e-news subscribers. Council issued 130 proactive media releases and responded to 78 media

enquiries.

People and Culture

This service provides human resource management services including staff recruitment, corporate training

and development, industrial relations and volunteer advisory services.

A major staff survey was conducted in October 2018 to ascertain employee engagement and satisfaction
levels. These were high in comparison to national local government and private sector benchmarking.
Workforce planning continued for a number of teams in the organisation experiencing major change and a
Workforce Planning Framework for the organisation was agreed in line with a sector-wide project led by
Local Government Professionals Inc (LGPro). The Emerging Leaders program concluded with as successful
cohort graduating from it, and the Induction program had & major review and rebranding in line with

improved technology options for this important process.

Processes and procedures continue to be developed for new employment legislation covering local
government, which includes the Reportable Conduct Scheme and further enhancements to the Integrity

Framework.

Risk, Health and Safety

This service administers Council’s Occupational Health and Safety Program, ensures compliance with
occupational health and safety legislation, manages Council’s insurance program and implements the risk

manage ment framework.

The management of risk within Council is an enabling function to assist Council to meet the expectations of
the community and our many stakeholders. The Risk Management Framework aims to effectively manage
compliance and governance, establish risk management practices to support Council's strategic goals and
implement a framework that embraces AS/NZS/ISO 31000 Risk Management Principles and Guidelines.

Council annually reviews the insurable risk profile and insurance products, toensure a cost effective program.

Risk, health and safety training is maintained on an annual basis to ensure Council is meeting our compliance
requirements under the Occupational Health and Safety Act 2004 and associated Regulations. Training is
provided to ensure employees are able to complete their tasks without risk to their own and others health
and safety. Risk assessments are regularly reviewed with safe operating procedures developed to ensure
employees are completing required tasks safely.

Council continues to focus on the rise of occupational viclence related incidents. This includes ensuring
strategies are in place for staff to feel safe when at work through reporting, awareness campaigns and
training. Employees’ health and wellbeing continues to be a priority. Council has achieved 80 per cent of the

Victorian Governments Healthy Workplaces Achievement program.
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Finance and Corporate Performance

This service manages Council's corporate planning and reporting, continuous improvement, financial

manage ment, payroll, and procurement, tendering and contract administration.

The 2019/20 Annual Budget and Year Three of the 2017-2021 Council Plan were prepared, including an
update of the Strategic Resource Plan. The Procurement Policy was amended to align with Year 2 of the
Procurement Strategy and specifically centred on Councils commitment to continuous improvement, cost
and risk reduction, and community and commercial benefits. Council’s internal auditor, Crowe Horwath,
conducted five internal audits that were reported to the Audit Advisory Committee. A number of
recommendations were implemented to strengthen internal controls and processes.

Our Continuous Improvement program trained 10 council staff in 2018/19, bringing our total number of
improvement champions to 23. This approach increases our capacity to undertake improvement initiatives
within existing resources, embedding a culture of continuous improvement. In 2018/19, our program
delivered 13 projects with a further 26 in progress, attributing to an improved customer experience, 8317

hours in increased capacity and $669,963 in financial benefits.

CorporateInformation

This service manages and maintains Council's corporate record system and information across the

organisation.

The Corporate Information Team responded to internal system enquiries and privacy enquires, processe d
incoming correspondence in a timely manner, provided action tracking reports to the Executive Management

Team and Managers, and continued to implement the Data Migration Strategy.

Information Technology

This service manages and maintains Council's computer systems and networks.

This year, Council improved application and server capabilities through enhancing the information
technology systems and infrastructure. Efficient backup and disaster recovery enhancements were set up at
the Civic Centre and Box Hill Town Hall to increase service availability for customers and staff.

A whole-of-business desktop and laptop standard operating environment was implemented across user
devices that dramatically simplified device updates, improved staff productivity and enhanced the security
of the systems. Internal information technology systems and processes were streamlined which included
improved security measures undertaken to reduce the opportunity for cyber-attacks on Whitehorse City
Council's infrastructure.

Property

This service manages Council properties, conducts property valuations, and maintains the Geographic

Information System.

Council evaluated submissions for a Supplementary Valuations contract and awarded the contract to

independent valuation firm that executed the Harrow Street Car Park operation tender.

Valuations were updated for accounting purposes of Council's landholdings, Council-owned buildings and
land under Council-administered roads, and the team completed land tax valuation objections notices in

accordance with the Valuation of Land Act 1960, and leases for various Council-owned properties.
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Geographic Information System(GIS)

New web map services were implemented to support the asset management mobile solution with mobile
applications deployed to support Sustainability (utility meters) and ParksWide (remnant indigenous plants

and seed harvesting) departments.

Council acquired new aerial imagery of 2018 and 2019 time periods and negotiated an enterprise agreement
with Esri Australia (for GIS software, support and online services).

Rates

This service undertakes rate revenues and Fire Services Property Levy collection.

Council has successfully completed the rates end-of-year rollover. Council collected 98.33 per cent of
2018/19 financial year rates, with the fourth and final instalment issued to 32,329 ratepayers totalling $14.5

million. Overdue instalment notices were issued to 2598 ratepayers totalling $1.4 million.

Watts Street Parking
This service provides car parking facilities in Watts Street, Box Hill.

High occupancy rates this year meant a 6 per cent increase in gross revenue and greater than originally

forecasted income.

Emergency Management and Business Continuity

This service implements Council’s responsibilities as detailed in the Emergency Management Act 1986, the

Municipal Emergency Management Plan and Business Continuity Policy.

Departmental readiness across the organisation for the management of business continuity and emergency
management events was enhanced through the development and maintenance of localised business

continuity recovery plans and emergency management preparedness arrangements.

A desktop business continuity exercise was held with all divisions and departments on 21 June 20189, testing
the organisation’s capacity and capability to respond to business disruption events. A successful disaster
recovery exercise was undertaken in August 2018 to test the Civic Centre to Operations Centre’s data link.
Emergency management exercises were conducted both locally and regionally. There were six emergency

management Council activations and 12 business continuity incidents during the year.

Digital
This service provides the transition to digital platforms across the organisation.

In Digital marketing, a pproximately 40 digital campaigns per month were conducted across various web and
social sites, increasing awareness of Councils activities, boosting attendance at events and raising responses
rates to surveys. Council’s corporate Facebook site was launched in August 2018 and now has over 3000
followers. Digital content has been produced in-house for use on both the new websites and in social
channels. A total of three Customer Engagement Panels have been conducted to date to help inform the
layout and content of information presented across web and social channels. The Single View of Customer

project has progressed with the appointment of a vendor to conduct the data quality phase.
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Strategic Direction Four
- Measures of Success

88% 4 bg;infss irl'.nﬂro\.':amenl]:c
o initiatives with savings o
calls $669,963

96% 37 satisfaction
mail @ Q with advocacy
processes transformed to improve L advocacy

online customer service transactions as 4 :
- . . Y o ey U campaigns
7 8% part of the Digital Transformation Strategy 6 6 e

service
requests

Community

Over participants engaged in community engagement

responded to within 1 00 0 activities in the development of policies, strategies
required timeframes or major projects

N 3 78 57

— initiatives completed Community ] : : :
J— through the Customer Senvice  satisfaction with satisfaction with community
) Improvement Project customer service consultation and engagement

compliance with the annual communication channels
Governance and Vanagement used to promote, engage
Checklist (LGPRF) and inform services,

fadlities and initiatives
] 4.39% -
"M of Council decisions made at 25'557 lele

meetings closed to the public
(LGPRF) social media followers (&J

project completed A
1 00% 1 as part of the Resilient ﬁ 30

Melbourne Strategy.

2087 =2 184 &8  8.74%

attendees at corporate ¢ attendees in staff
training courses I leadership programs turnover

Refer to Council’s Performance Statement for financial performance and capacity
indicators from the Local Government Performance Reporting Framework.
* Changesare madeacoss Coundl to meet the requirements of thenew Local Government Act
- The new Act is yet to beratified

* Maintain Coundils for Gender Equity program national accreditation - this program is nolongerin operation
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The following initiatives highlight Council's priority actions contributing to our approach for 2018/19. They

do not constitute all actions delivered by Council.

Major Initiati

Review Vision of Box Hill Metropolitan Activity Centre

Review the Vision for the Box Hill Metropolitan Activity Centre; Stage 1 — project planning, appointment of

consultant and key stakeholder consultation.

Initial community consultation, Stakeholder Reference Group meetings and Stage 1 background analysis has
been completed. The Box Hill Metropolitan Activity Centre Analysis and Options report that has been

produced has been released for community consultation before moving into Phase 2 of the project.

Initiatives

Parking Meter Replacement in Box Hill

Replacement and modernisation of all parking meters in the Box Hill area, providing enhanced flexibility and

availability of payment options for customers.

The parking meter replacement tender was awarded in October 2018 with contracts signed in October. The
contract provides for the supply, installation and removal of old machines and a five-year routine

maintenance program.
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A hundred new parking meters were subsequently installed and were fully operational on 15 April 2019
providing customers with a reliable service with multiple payments options. Faulty meter reports have been

reduced by 90 per cent with further improvements anticipated.

Pay-by-phone options were extended providing customers with an easy, cashless and secure alternative to
pay for parking.

Nunawading Structure Plan Review

Progress the Nunawading Structure Plan Review, which will form the basis of a future Planning Scheme

Amendment for the centre.

Preparation of a project brief commenced. The project will recommence in 2019,/20.

Highlights from the 2018/19 financial year are described below.

Investment and Economic Development

This service works in partnership with a range of organisations to support a local economic environment that

attracts investment.

We delivered the Whitehorse Business Week (WBW) 2018 program with seven major events attracting 770
business representatives. Events were presented at a number of venues across the City of Whitehorse with
arange of keynote speakers and topics. A record number of 22 sponsors participated in WBW 2018. During
WBW, the first Melbourne East Regional Event was held in the City of Whitehorse, a partnership with the
councils of Manningham, Maroondah, Monash, Knox, Whitehorse and Yarra Rangesand over 160 businesses,
business groups, and institutions attended from across Melbourne’s east region. The City of Whitehorse led
the production of a video that showcases the benefits of living, working and playing in the Melbourne’s east
and was previewed for the first time at the event.

We successfully secured $20,000 Business Victoria Local Events funding from Small Business Victoria to run

a range of workshops and presentations from April 2019 until June 2020.

The Whitehorse Tertiary Business Skills program a partnership between Whitehorse City Council and Deakin
University - celebrated its 10th Anniversary with and this milestone was further elevated through achieving
a silver award at the 2018 National Local Government Innovation Awards. The 2018 program engaged 26
students and 24 businesses over the 16-week program, providing work integrated learning and practical

engagement between students and businesses.

The Box Hill Logo Competition ran from 18 March to 29 April 2019 and received 65 submissions from
Whitehorse tertiary institutions, secondary schools, businesses and residents. The winning logo was voted

for by the Box Hill logo judging panel who were made up of representatives from the local community.

The Festive Window Competition was revamped and held through the Instagram platform for the first time.
Shoppers were encouraged to upload a photo of their favourite festive window to win. Nominated

businesses also became eligible to win, with over $6,000 of prizes given away.
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Deakin University to develop
training programs for young
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Whitehorse Tertiary Business Skills Program with
26 with students and 24 businesses involved.
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* Business community satisfadtion rating results for 2019 were notavailable at time of publishing
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Governance and Statutory Information

Governance

Whitehorse City Council is constituted under the Local Government Act 1989 to provide leadership for the
good governance of the municipal district and the local community. Council has a number of roles

including:

e taking into account the diverse needs of the local community in decision-making

e providing leadership by establishing strategic objectives and monitoring achievements
e ensuring that resources are managed in a responsible and accountable manner

e advocating the interests of the local community to other communities and governments

e fostering community cohesion and encouraging active participation in civic life.

Council is committed to effective and sustainable forms of democratic and corporate governance as the
key to ensuring that Council and our administration meet the community’s priorities. The community has
many opportunities to provide input into Council's decision-making processes including community
consultation, public forums such as ward meetings and the ability to make submissions to Special

Committees of Council.

Council's formal decision-making processes are conducted through Council meetings and Special
Committees of Council. Council delegates some of our decision-making to Council staff. These delegations

are exercised in accordance with adopted Council policies.

Council Meetings Including Special Committees

Council conducts open public meetings on the second and third Monday of each month. Members of the
community are welcome to attend these meetings and observe from the gallery. Council meetings also
provide the opportunity for community members to submit a question to Council, make a submission or
speak to an item.

For the 2018/19 year Council held the following meetings:

* 12 Ordinary Council meetings
* 3 Special Council Meeting
* 11 Special Committee of Council Meetings (Special Committees section).
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The following table provides a summary of Councillor attendance at Council meetings and Special Council
Meetings for the 2018/19 financial year.

Meetings of Council

Leave of absence

Cc il S ial Meeti ] :
eunci pecia eetings granted to Councillors

Cr Andrew Munroe

12

Cr Denise Massoud

Cr Tina Liu

12

12

Cr Blair Barker

Cr Bill Bennett

12

12

Cr Raylene Carr

Cr Sharon Eliis

11

10

Cr Andrew Davenport 12 3 0

Cr Ben Stennett 10 3 2

Cr Prue Cutts 12 3 0

Special Committee
The Local Government Act 1989 allows councils to establish one or more special committees consisting of:

* councillors
* council staff
¢ other persons

* any combination of the above.

Council has established a Special Committee of Council which comprises all Councillors. The Committee
has delegated decision-making power from Council and is a Special Committee in accordance with section
86 of the Local Government Act 1989.

The provisions of Council's Local Law relating to Meeting Procedures, as applicable to the Special
Committee, apply to committee meetings. An important role of the committee is to enhance the
consultative process and facilitate public participation and involvement in meetings of the committee in
accordance with Council’s Council Plan strategies — good governance, our meeting procedures and
Common Seal Local Law 2013.

The committee shall operate in accordance with its instrument of delegation. For example, the committee
may note information reports, and consider proposals requiring community input and consultation, such

as masterplans, studies on policy development and draft local laws.
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Committee

Cr Andrew Munroe

Special Committee of

Council

10

Leave of absence
granted to Councillors

Cr Denise Massoud

Cr Tina Liu

11

11

Cr Blair Barker

Cr Bill Bennett

11

11

Cr Raylene Carr 9 2

Cr Sharon Ellis 8 3

Cr Andrew Davenport 11 0

Cr Ben Stennett 11 o]

Cr Prue Cutts 11 o]

Code of Conduct

The Local Government Amendment (Improved Governance) Act 2015 required councils to develop and
approve a Councillor Code of Conduct by 4 July 2016. The revised code was adopted by Council at the
Special Meeting of Council held on 27 June 2016. After the General Election held on Saturday 22 October
2016, Council called a Special Council Meeting on 20 February 2017 to review the Councillor Code of
Conduct.

On 20 February 2017, Council adopted a revised Councillor Code of Conduct which is designed to:

* assist Councillors to maintain the highest standards of conduct and behaviour as well as provide a
means to deal with problems they may encounter
*  attract the highest level of confidence from Council’s stakeholders

*  assist the Mayor and Councillors to discharge the responsibilities of their public office appropriately.

In addition to setting out the Councillor Conduct Principles, the code also outlines:

* other conduct definitions under the Act, such as those relating to misuse of position, improper
direction, breach of confidentiality and conflict of interest

* roles and relationships

¢ dispute resolution procedures.
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Conflict of Interest

Councillors are elected by the residents and ratepayers to actin the best interests of the community. This
is a position of trust that requires Councillors to actin the public interest. When a council delegates its
powers to a council officer or a committee, the committee or officer also needs to actin the interest of the
public.

A conflict of interest occurs when a personal or private interest might compromise the ability to actin the
public interest. A conflict of interest exists even if no improper act has resulted from it. Council has
guidelines to assist Councillors and staff, as well as a comprehensive procedure to accommodate the
disclosure of a conflict of interest. Declaration of a conflict of interest is a standard agenda item for all

Council and committee meetings.

While the procedures vary depending on the particular role and circumstances, in general they involve
disclosing the relevant interests in a specific way and then stepping aside from the relevant decision-
making process or from the exercise of the public duty. Conflicts of interest disclosed at Ordinary Council
Meetings, Special Council Meetings and Special Committee of Council Meetings are recorded in the

minutes of the meetings. Aregister is maintained to record all other disclosed conflicts of interest.

During 2018/19, six conflicts of interest were declared at Council and Special Committee Meetings.

Councillor Allowances and Councillor Expenses

In accordance with Section 74 of the Local Government Act 1989, Councillors are entitled to receive an
allowance while performing their duty as a councillor. The Mayor is also entitled to receive a higher

allowance.

The state government sets the upper and lower limits for all allowances paid to councillors and mayors.
Councils are divided into three categories based on the income and population of each Council; in this

instance, Whitehorse City Council is recognised as a category three council.

For the period to 30 November 2018, the councillor annual allowance for a Category 3 council (as defined
by the Local Government act 1989) was fixed at $30,223 per annum and the allowance for the mayor was
$96,534 per annum. The Minister for Local Government approved an annual adjustment of 2.0 per cent to
take effect as from 1 December 2018. The annual allowances were adjusted for the period 1 December
2018 to 30 June 2019 at 530,827 per annum for the Councillor allowance and $98,465 per annum for the
Mayoral allowance. Councillors also received the equivalent of the Superannuation Guarantee
Contribution of 9.5 per cent for the 2018/19 year.

These allowances are not subject to tax withholding arrangements.
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Summary of the allowances paid to each Councillor during the year:

Total Allowances

Cr Andrew Munroe $33,480.04
Cr Denise Massoud $33,480.04

Cr Tina Liu $33,480.04

Cr Blair Barker $33,480.04

Cr Bill Bennett

(Mayor 28 Oct — current) 583,125.09

Cr Raylene Carr $33,480.04

Cr Sharon Ellis $33,480.04

Cr Andrew Davenport

$57,293.18
(Mayor 1 July — 28 Oct)

Cr Ben Stennett $33,480.04

Cr Prue Cutts $33,480.04

Summary of the expenses paid for each Councillor during the year:

Expenses (excluding GST)

Functions Al E LU Communication WAICH

Central Ward

Cr Andrew Munroe 53,821 5785 5578 S0 $5,184

Cr Denise Massoud 54,808 51,807 51,088 5519 58,222

ElgarWard

Cr Tina Liu 53,837 51,039 5559 S0 $5,435

Cr Blair Barker 5857 5459 $579 S0 $1,895

Morack Ward

Cr Bill Bennett $3,354 $1,202 $461 SO $5,017

Cr Raylene Carr 5562 51,506 5475 S0 $2,543

Riversdale Ward

Cr Sharon Ellis $2,669 $1,536 $642 S0 $4,847

Cr Andrew Davenport 57,543 51,543 5546 5972 $10,604

Springfield Ward

Cr Ben Stennett 5328 5718 $557 S0 $1,603

Cr Prue Cutts 54,221 $1,773 5736 SO $6,730
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Governance and Management Checklist

The following are the results in the prescribed form of Council’s assessment againstthe prescribed

governance and management checklist. Throughout this table, unless otherwise stated, “The Act” refers

to the Local Government Act 1989.

Governance and Management Items

1.
Policy outlining Council’s commitment
to engaging with the communityon
matters of publicinterest

Community Engagement Policy

Assessment

Policy

Work will  shortly commence on the
development of a Community Engagement
Policy which will build on the work of
Council’s current Community Engagement
Framework.

Date of current framework: 23 June 2014

‘ Completed

2.
Guidelines to assist staff to determine
when and howto engage with the
community

Community Engagement Guidelines

Guidelines
Community Engagement Guide

Date of current guidelines: October 2015

3.
Plan undersection 126 of the Act
outlining the financial and non-financial
resources required for at least the next
four financial years

Strategic Resource Plan

Adopted in accordance with section 126 of
the Act

Council Plan 2017-2021 Year Three
Date of adoption: 24 June 2019

4.
Plan undersection 130 of the Act setting
outthe servicesto be provided and
initiatives to be undertaken overthe
next 12 months and the funding and
otherresourcesrequired

Annual Budget

Adopted in accordance with section 130 of
the Act

Adopted Budget 2019/20
Date of adoption: 24 June 2019

5.
Plans thatset outthe asset
maintenance and renewal needs for key
infrastructure assetclasses for at least
the next 10 years

Asset Management Plans

Plans
Date of operation of current plans:

Summary Asset Management Plan & May
2014, Roads Asset Management Plan 4 June
2014 (under review), Drainage Asset
Management Plan 14 June 2014 (under
review), IT Asset Management Plan 1 March
2019, Buildings Asset Management Plan 1
September 2018, Open Space Asset
Management Plan 22 April 2014 (under
review) and Plant and Fleet Asset
Management Plan 1 June 2019

6.
Strategy setting out the rating structure
of Council to levy rates and charges

Rating Strategy

Strategy
Rating Strategy

Date of current strategy: 22 June 2014
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‘ Governance and Management Items Assessment ‘ Completed
7. Risk Policy Risk Management Policy
Poli tlining C il it t . .
ey oulone Counlscommimen | sk wanepemenc sty and i
r.l.p i E Management Plan formulate the Risk v
Council's operations
Management Framework.
Date of current policy: 18 June 2019
8. Fraud Policy Policy
Policy outlining Cot..m.l:ll. s.l:ommltr.nent Fraud Policy
and approach to minimising therisk of v
fraud Date of operation of current policy:
1 April 2017
9. Municipal Emergency Management | Prepared and maintained in accordance with
Plan section 20 of the Emergency Management
Plan undersection 20 of the Emergency | Act 1986. v
Managefnent 53 LR O e Municipal Emergency Management Plan
prevention, responseand recovery
Date of preparation: 14 February 2017
10. Procurement Policy Prepared and approved in accordance with
Policy undersection 186A of the Act section 186A of the Act
outlining the mattn.ars, practices and Procurement Policy
procedures that will applyto all
purchases ofgoods, services and works | Date of approval: 24 June 2019
11. Business Continuity Plan Plan
Plan setting outthe actions that will be ; .
i Business Continuity Plan
undertaken to ensure that key services v
continue to operatein the eventofa Date of operation of current plan:
disaster 31 July 2018
12. Disaster Recovery Plan Plan
Plan setting outthe actions that will be .
Disaster Recovery Plan
undertaken to recoverand restore v
business capability in theevent ofa Date of operation of current plan:
disaster 2July 2018
13. Risk Management Framework Risk Management Framework
F k outlining C il” ch . . .
tramewm: m_l km::ngthm::nm s :}pproa Risk Management Policy, Risk Management
e ma:agmg risks to the touncits Strategy and Risk Management Plan v
operations formulate the Risk Manage ment Framework.
Date of operation of current framework:
18 June 2019
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‘ Governance and Management Items

14. Audit Committee

Advisory committee of Councilunder
section 139 of the Act whoserole is to
overseethe integrity of Council's
financial reporting, processes to manage
risks to the Council’s operations and for
compliance with applicable legal,
ethical, and regulatoryrequirements

Annual Report 2018-19

Assessment

Established in accordance with section 139 of
the Act

Audit Advisory Committee

Date of establishment: 1 November 1996

‘ Completed

15. Internal Audit

Independent accounting professionals
engaged by the Council to provide
analyses and recommendations aimed
at improving Council’s governance, risk
and management controls

Engaged
Crowe Horwath
Date of engagement of current provider:

1 July 2017

16. Performance Reporting Framework
A setofindicators measuringfinancial
and non-financial performance including
the performance indicators referred to
in section 131 of the Act

Framework
Performance Reporting Framework
Date of operation of current framework:

24 June 2019

17. Council Plan Reporting
Reportreviewing the performance of
the Council against the Council Plan
includingthe resultsin relation to the
strategicindicators for the first six
months of the financial year

Reports
Council Plan Reporting
Dates of report: 15 October 2018

Six month report: 25 February 2019

18. Financial Reporting

Quarterly statementsto Councilunder
section 138 of the Act comparing
budgeted revenue and expenditure with
actual revenue and expenditure

Statements presented to Council in
accordance with section 138(1) of the Act

Date statements presented:
15 October 2018, 20 November 2018,
25 February 2019, 21 May 2019

19. Risk Reporting

Six-monthly reports of strategicrisks to
Council's operations, their likelihood
and consequences ofoccurring and risk
minimisation strategies

Reports to Audit Advisory Committee and
Executive Risk Management Committee

Dates of reports: 19 November 2018,
20 May 2019

20. Performance Reporting
Six-monthly reports of indicators
measuring results againstfinancial and
non-financial performance, including
performance indicators referred to in
section 131 of the Act

Reports
Dates of reports: 15 October 2018,
27 May 2019
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‘ Governance and Management Items Assessment ‘ Completed
21. Annual Report Considered at meeting of Council in
Annual reportunder sections 131, 132 accordance with section 134 of the Act
and 133 ofthe Act to the community v
containing areport of operations and
audited financial and performance Date of consideration: 15 October 2018
statements
22. Councillor Code of Conduct Reviewed in accordance with section 76C of
Code undersection 76C of the Act the Act
settingoutthe conduct principles and v
the dispute resolution processesto be
followed by Councillors Date reviewed: 20 February 2017
23. Delegations Reviewed in accordance with section 98(6) of
A documentsetting outthe powers, the Act
du.tles andﬁfnctlonsof ST Date of review: Instrument of Delegation
Chief Executive Officer thathas been . . , v
from Council to Chief Executive Officer — 16
o DL G July 2018, Instrument of Delegation by
Council to members of council staff — 27 May
2019
24. Meeting Procedures Meeting procedures local law made in
A local law governing the conduct of accordance with section 91(1) of the Act
meetings of Council and special v
committees
Date local law made: 19 August 2013

| certify that this information presents fairly the status of Council’'s governance and management

arrangements.

S=we Q0.

Simon McMillan
Chief Executive Officer

Dated: 23 September 2019

Annual Report 2018-19
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Audit Operations

Audit Advisory Committee

The Audit Advisory Committee is an advisory committee whose role is determined by the Local Government
Act 1989 and Council.

The key objective of the Audit Advisory Committee is to provide independent assurance and assistance to
the Chief Executive Officer and Council on Council’s Risk, Control and Compliance Framework, and its

external accountability and legislative compliance responsibilities.

The Audit Advisory Committee’s role is to report and provide appropriate advice and recommendations on
matters relevant to its charter in order to assist Council in certain decision-making processes.

The Audit Advisory Committee comprises two appointed Councillors and two independent persons with

technical expertise and industry experience, one of whom is appointed as Chairperson.

The first independent member and Chair of the Audit Advisory Committee is Mr Michael Said, who was
appointed in July 2004. He is also Chair of the Audit Committees for shires of Colac Otway, Moorabool and

Cardinia City Council.

The second independent member is Ms Lisa Woolmer, who was appointed in September 2017. She has a
strong background and qualifications in audit and accounting, combined with contemporary experience
working with audit committees across the public sector.

The Audit Advisory Committee members during the 2018/19 financial year were:

¢ Mike Said — Chairperson / Independent member (July 2004 to present)

* Lisa Woolmer — Independent member (September 2017 to present)

*  Cr Denise Massoud — Councillor representative (November 2016 to present)
* Cr Ben Stennett — Councillor representative (April 2017 to November 2018)
* Cr Raylene Carr — Councillor representative (March 2019 to present)

The Chief Executive Officer is required to be present at the meetings, and the General Manager Corporate
Services and the Head of Finance and Corporate Performance attend the meetings unless advised to the
contrary. The internal auditor is invited to each meeting and the external auditor is invited where

appropriate.

Internal Audit

Council’s internal auditor, Crowe Horwath, supports the Audit Advisory Committee by providing
independent and objective assurance and advisory services on governance, risk management, internal

controls and compliance.

The Strategic Internal Audit Plan (SIAP) is developed by the internal auditor in consultation with the Chief
Executive Officer, general managers, selected managers and the Audit Advisory Committee. Itis a three-
year plan of internal audit projects and is based on past internal audit activity, Council’s strategic risk
register, audit activity proposed by the Victorian Auditor-General’s Officer, and risks prevalent in the local
government sector. The SIAP is revised annually to ensure the audit resources remain focused on the

appropriate areas.
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The Audit Advisory Committee endorsed the SIAP for July 2018 to June 2021 in September 2018. The Audit
Advisory Committee also recommended that Council approve the 2018/19 Annual Audit Plan, within the
SIAP. Council approved this in October 2018.

As part of the 2018/19 Annual Audit Plan, the Audit Advisory Committee received reports on the following:

Fleet Management

Credit Cards

IT Security and Access Controls

Follow-up of Higher Risk Past Audit Recommendations

Asset (Infrastructure) Management

ooy R wN e

Privacy and Data Protection Act Management

Internal audit reports detail the observations and recommendations from the review. All observations
identified are given a risk rating. Recommendations are assigned to the responsible officer and tracked in
Council’'s performance management system. Responsible officers provide status updates thatare reviewed

by the internal auditor and reported to the Audit Advisory Committee.

The internal auditor attends Audit Advisory Committee meetings where required to report on the status
of the SIAP, present findings of completed reviews, and provide an update on the progress of past audit

recommendations.

External Audit

The external auditor is the Victorian Auditor-General’s Office who conducted the Annual Financial Report

and Performance Statement audits for the 2018/19 financial year.
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Statutory Information

The following information is provided in accordance with legislative and other requirements applying to

Council.

Privacy and Data Protection

The Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014 states that Council must not contravene Information Privacy
Principles in respect of personal information it has collected, held, managed, used, disclosed or transferred.

Council’s Privacy Policy is a public document available from Council’'s website at

www.whitehorse.vic.gov.au or on request. The policy was reviewed in September 2015.
No complaints were received or investigated for breaches by Council during 2018/19.

For any enquiries regarding Council’s obligations under the Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014 and
Health Records Act 2001 and Council’s Privacy and Data Protection Policy, please contact Council’s Privacy

Officer on 03 9262 6333 or customer.service@whitehorse.vic.gov.au.

Council's Privacy Officer: Coordinator Corporate Information

Freedom of Information

In accordance with section 7(4AA)(a) and 7(4AA)(b) of the Freedom of Information Act 1982 (FOI Act), a
council is required to publish certain statements in its Annual Report, or separately such as on its website,
concerning its functions and information available. Council provides the following summary of the

application and operation of the FOI Act.

Access to documents may be obtained through written request to the Freedom of Information Officer, as

detailed in section 17 of the FOI Act and in summary as follows:

* |t should be in writing

* |t should identify as clearly as possible which document is being requested

* |t should be accompanied by the appropriate application fee (the fee may be waived in certain
circumstances).

Requests for documents in the possession of Council should be addressed to the Freedom of Information

Officer. Requests can also be lodged by email.

Access charges may also apply once documents have been processed and a decision on access is made (for

example, photocopying and search and retrieval charges).

Further information regarding Freedom of Information can be found at the Freedom of Information
Commissioner website www.foicommissioner.vic.gov.au and on the Whitehorse City Council website

www.whitehorse.vic.gov.au.
For the period 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 therewere 27 requests made regarding freedom of information:

* partaccesswas granted on three occasions

* full access wasgranted on 13 occasions

* access was denied on one occasion

* documents were processed outside the FOI process on one occasion
*  six requests remained in process at 30 June 2019
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* one applicant did not proceed with their request
* tworequests were transferred to other agencies
* there were no occasions where the FOI Act did not apply

* there were no occasions where no documents existed which met the specific terms of the request.
There were no requests for review of a decision relating to requests processed throughout the year.

There were no applications for review lodged with the Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal (VCAT)

relating to requests processed throughout the year.
The provisions of the FOI Act under which the above decisions were made:

* access denied in full — sections 30(1), 31(1), 33(1), 35(1)(a) of the FOI Act
* access denied in part — sections 30(1), 33(1) of the FOI Act.
The names and designation of the officers with authority to make a decision on a request are:

*  Principal Officer: Chief Executive Officer
*  Freedom of Information Officer: Executive Manager Governance and Customer Service
*  Freedom of Information Officer: Team Leader Governance.

*  Governance Project Officer

Road Management Act 2004

The Road Management Act 2004 requires Council to develop a road management plan, which in effect
provides opportunity to establish a policy defence against civil liability claims associated with the
management of our road network. Council’s road management plan outlines roads under management,
inspection regimes and service and maintenance standards against which Council will manage our roads
and road-related assets. Inaccordance with section 22 of the Road Management Act 2004, Council must

publish a copy or summary of any Ministerial direction in its Annual Report.

In 2018/19, Council did not receive any Ministerial Directions in relation to the Road Management Act
2004.

National Competition Policy

Whitehorse City Council continues to comply with the requirements of the National Competition Policy and
The Australian Consumer Law legislation in the operation of our business. The City of Whitehorse’s
significant businesses operate in accordance with the principles of competitive neutrality to ensure that
Council does not unduly influence the private market in the provision of services. Council’s Procurement

Policy is inclusive of National Competition requirements.
Council’s officer responsible for National Competition Policy: Head of Finance and Corporate Performance

Contracts

During the year Council did not enter into any contracts valued at $150,000 or more in accordance with
section 186(5) (a) and (c) of the Local Government Act 1989, or without first engaging in a competitive

process.

Council has an ongoing commitment to competitive neutrality as a matter of good business and

transparency and adheres to competitive neutrality principles.
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Protected Disclosure Act 2012

The Protected Disclosure Act 2012 came into effect on 10 February 2013 creating a (new) legislative
framework for receiving protected disclosures and protecting those who make them. As Whitehorse City
Council is committed to integrity and commitment in all our operations, we have had a Protected Disclosure
Policy and procedures since the commencement of the legislation. A review of the procedures was
conducted during 2018/19. The updated procedures are available on Council’s website and at Council’s

offices. During 2018/19, two potential disclosures were made which Council assessed.

Council’s Protected Disclosure Coordinator/Responsible Person: Head of People and Culture

Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities

The Victorian Charter of Human Rights and Responsibilities (1 January 2008) contains 20 protected civil and
political rights. In accordance with the Charter, it is unlawful for a public authority to act in a way thatis
incompatible with a human right, or in making a decision, to fail to give proper consideration to a relevant
human right. Whitehorse City Council continues to give consideration to human rights in all our decision-
making processes including the formulation of local laws.

The Charter of Human Rights aims to:
¢ promote dialogue about human rights
* enable participation for all, but especially marginalised or disadvantaged groups;

* enhance accountability and transparency.

Therefore, Council must:

* respect human rights
*  protect human rights
*  promote human rights

* fulfil (realise, avoid the loss of) human rights.

Council’'s Equal Opportunity and Human Rights Committee oversees the implementation of Council’'s
Human Rights Plan.

Best Value

In accordance with the Local Government Act 1989, Council applies best value principles to our strategic
and service planning processes. At Whitehorse City Council this happens through our regular process of
future planning, and ensuring continuous review and improvement across Council’s service areas.

This means:

*  All services provided by Council must meet quality and cost standards

* Each service provided by Council must be accessible to those members of the community for whom
the service is intended

*  All services provided by Council must be responsive to the needs of the community

*  Council works towards providing continuous improvement in our service provisions for our community

* Council has a program of regular consultation with our community about the services we provide

* Council reports regularly to our community on our achievements against the principles.

Please refer to the Continuous Improvement Section of this report for an overview of projects undertaken

and benefits achieved through our Continuous Improvement program.
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Documents Available for Inspection

In accordancewith section 222 of the Local Government Act 1989 (the Act), prescribed documents outlined

below are either available on Council’s website or can be inspected by appointment

a) adocument containing details of overseas or interstate travel (other than interstate travel by land for
less than three days) undertaken in an official capacity by any Councillor or member of Council staffin
the previous 12 months, including the name of the Councillor or member of Council staff, the dateson
which the travel began and ended, the destination, the purpose and the total cost to Council of the
travel, including accommodation costs; to inspect this document contact Team Leader Governance
9262 6337

b) the agendas for, and minutes of, Ordinary and Special Meetings held in the previous 12 months which
are kept under section 93 of the Act, other than those agendas and minutes relating to a part of a
meeting which was closed to members of the public under section 89 of the Act and are confidential
information within the meaning of section 77(2) of the Act; published on Council's website

c) the minutes of Meetings of Special Committees established under section 86 of the Act and held in the
previous 12 months, other than those minutes relating to a part of a meeting which was closed to
members of the public under section 89 of the Actand are confidential information within the meaning
of section 77(2) of the Act; published on Council's website

d) aregister of delegations kept under sections 87(1) and 98(4) of the Act, including the date on which the
last review took place under sections 86(6) and 98(6) respectively, of the Act; to inspect this document

contact Team Leader Governance 9262 6337

e) adocument containing details of all leases involving land which were entered into by Council as lessor,
including thelessee and the terms and the value of the lease; to inspect this document contact Manager

Property and Rates 9262 6469

f) a register maintained under section 224(1A) of the Act of authorised officers appointed under that

section; toinspect this register contact Team Leader Governance 9262 6337

g) alist of donations and grants made by Council during the previous 12 months, including the names of
persons who, or bodies which, have received a donation or grant and the amount of each donation or
grant; toinspect this list contact Financial Accountant 9262 6321.

Food Act 1984

In accordance with section 7E of the Food Act 1984, Council is required to publish a summary of any
Ministerial Directions received during the financial year in our Annual Report. No such Ministerial

Directions were received by Council during the financial year.
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Disability Action Plan

The Victorian Disability Act 2006 requires public bodies such as Council to develop a disability action plan
to reduce the barriers and discrimination experienced by people with disability in the community.
Whitehorse City Council is committed to working with our partners with the aim of creatinga community
that is accessible, welcoming and inclusive. Of the 176,196 residents in the City of Whitehorse,
approximately 18.3 per cent report a level of disability, representing nearly 32,596 people in our
community. Almost half of all Australians will experience mentalillness at some time in their life, with one

in five Australians, or 35,239 City of Whitehorse residents, experiencing mental illness each year.

Council recognises thatinitiatives to create amore accessible and inclusive community cannot be achieved
without addressing the specific needs and rights of people with disabilities including people experiencing

mental illness, their families and carers.
Outlined below are some of the actions undertaken during the 2018/19 financial year:

* through a range of projects, networks and initiatives, raised awareness of the experiences of people
with a disability in partnership with a range of community and disability organisations including
Nadrasca, Regional Family Violence Partnership, and Inner East Primary Care Partnership

¢ the Whitehorse Disability Advisory Committee was engaged in a broad range of consultations
including: Councils submission to the Royal Commission into Victoria’s Mental Health Services, Councils
Digital Transformation Strategy and the Whitehorse People with Disability and Sports Project

* encouraged social connectedness through inclusive events such as Global Fiesta, Australia Day, Carols
concerts, Aqualink programs, Whitehorse Centre programs, Box Hill Community Arts program and
Youth Connexions including the FreeZa event

* providing designated viewing areas and accessible facilities has contributed to growing numbers of
people with disability attending Council events

* the Box Hill Community Arts Centre continues to offer arts and other programs that are inclusive of
people with disability

* continued to monitor the impact of the NDIS on the local community, especially people with disability
who are not eligible for NDIS funding, supporting residents to transition into NDIS through the
provision of relevant information sessions; and transitioning existing clients into the NDIS services and
activity groups. Council has also facilitated information NDIS information sessions with networks such
as the Whitehorse EarlyYears Network and working in partnership with organisations participating in
the CALD and NDIS Community of Practice

* increased the accessibility of Council facilities Box Hill Gardens play ribbon an pathway connections
and Bluebell Hill Reserve Concept Plan. Tender documents for Morton Park, Walker Park and Elgar Park
South Pavilion have all contained Access to Premises Standards requirements. Council has continued
advocacy with Public Transport Victoria for improved accessibility at bus stops

* Council continued to promote the business case for employing people with disability though articlesin
the Down To Business newsletter and promoting the accessibility as part of the Boost Your Business
events

*  Councils Youth Services and MetroAccess Officer continue to promote the Whitehorse Strengths Based
Career Planning Guide through local schools, disability and youth services in the municipality assisting
young people to identify their strengths and interests

*  Council continued to deliver Accessible Communication Training for Council officers and community
groups, provided rate notices and fee-for-service invoices in large print and Braille, and provided

options for customers to provide feedback in different forms.
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Domestic Animal Management Plan November 2017

In accordance with the Domestic Animals Act 1994, Council is required to prepare a Domestic Animal
Management Plan (DAMP) at four-yearly intervals and evaluate its implementation in the Annual Report.

The 2017-2020 DAMP was endorsed by Council at a meeting in November 2017. The DAMP has been
developed through consultation with the community, key stakeholders, the Domestic Animal Management
Plan Advisory Committee (DAMPAC) and key Council staff members.

DAMPAC is the cornerstone of Whitehorse City Council’'s Domestic Animal Management Strategy.
Together with the DAMP, it provides a framework for Council to manage our statutory responsibilities
associated with domestic animal management, recognising that animal management is an ever-moving

environment requiring ongoing assessment and development to address emerging issues.

The 2017-2020 DAMP objectives are to provide a safe, harmonious environment by promoting responsible
pet ownership to residents and the community throughout the City of Whitehorse, focusing on key issues
such as effective control of dogs in public places such as parks and streets, registration levels, education

programs and enforcement.

Other key compulsory information in the 2017-2020 DAMP includes staffing levels, training standards, key

workload performance indicators, current programs and other services available.

In detail, the 2017-2020 DAMP outlines planned programs and initiatives including training and
development, community education, responsible pet ownership strategies, identification and registration

of animals that assist with the key objective of reuniting lost and found animals with their owners.

The first stage of the community consultation in relation to the development of this plan was conducted in
2017 and focused on identifying broad overarching community issues associated with domestic animal
management. This was carried out by two surveys; multiple pop-up displays at prominent locations and
the provision of hard copies of the survey at a number of shopping centres and other key locations. The

survey identified five key community issues as follows:

¢ enforcement of the legislation
¢ further education

* animal registration

* cat curfew

e off/on lead areas.

These five issues along with other related matters form part of the four-year action plan.

In 2018, the DAMPAC Terms of Reference were reviewed and the provision of dog off-lead areas assessed

with a determination of the need to increase the number and spread of locations across the municipality.
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Carer’s Recognition Act 2012

The Carers Recognition Act 2012 recognises, promotes and values the role of carers and the important
contribution that people in care relationships make to our community. The impact of this legislation is both

on Council's obligations asan employer and as a provider of services.

Council’'s Flexibility program and the family violence provisions of the Whitehorse City Council Collective
Agreement 2016 facilitate consideration of individual circumstances in relevant decision-making for carer

requests of staff.

Council internal training programs such as Disability Awareness and Accessible Communications workshops
raise awareness of the critical role carershave in the lives of people with disability, older people and others

in the community.

Over the past year Council has provided a range of services and supports for carersincluding:

* respite services for primary carers to have a break from caring responsibilities

*  short-term care coordination to consumers and their carers in transitioning to the NDIS

* providing information through the Whitehorse City Council Regional Assessment Service, women's
forums, NDIS workshops, and parenting information forums

* promoting a broad range of festivals, events and activities to carers in our community

* strengthening services through participation in the Eastern Metropolitan Region Carers Respite

Services Support Network.

Community Grants

The Community Grants program supports the Whitehorse community by providing funding to not-for-
profit community organisations to facilitate services that meet community needs, provide value for
money, promote community spirit and celebrate the City of Whitehorse’s heritage and diversity. The
Community Grants program does this through funding:
* activities that support people from groups at risk of social isolation to connect with others in
their community and with local services
* activities that share understanding of the City of Whitehorse's diverse cultures and generations
* making local neighbourhood connections and building neighbourhood support networks
e improving the skills and capacity of community members and groups to lead and support
community connection and build resilient communities
e maximise access to, and use of Council/public facilities and community spaces
* activities that contribute to sustainability and support our community to adapt
* activities that improve the health and wellbeing of people in the City of Whitehorse.

The value of grants across the three categories for the 2018/19 financial year is outlined below.

Cash Grants $873,230

Discount Support Hall Hire $295,101

Discount Support Free Tipping [$32,500

TOTAL $1,200,831
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Performance Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Understanding the Performance Statement

Council is required to prepare and include a Performance Statement within its Annual Report. The
Performance Statement includes the results of the prescribed sustainable capacity, service performance
and financial performance indicators and measures, together with a description of the municipal district
and an explanation of material variations in the results. This statement has been prepared to meet the
requirements of the Local Government Act 1989 and Local Gevernment (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2014.

Where applicable the results in the Performance Statement have been prepared on accounting bases
consistent with those reported in the Financial Statements. The other results are based on information

drawn from Council information systems or from third parties (for example, Australian Bureau of Statistics).

The Performance Statement presentsthe actual results for the current year and for the prescribed financial
performance indicators and measures, the results forecast by Council’s strategic resource plan. The Local
Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 requires explanation of any material variations in
the results contained in the Performance Statement. Council has adopted materiality thresholds relevant
to each indicator and measure, and explanations have not been provided for variations below the
materiality thresholds unless the variance is considered to be material because of its nature. Council has,

however, provided comments against every indicator to assist readers in interpreting the results.

The forecast figures included in the Performance Statement are those adopted by Council in the Strategic
Resource Plan 2019-2023 on 24 June 2019 and which forms part of the Council Plan 2017-2021. The
Strategic Resource Plan 2019-2023 includes estimates based on key assumptions about the future that
were relevant at the time of adoption and aimed at achieving sustainability over the long-term. Detailed
information on the actual financial results is contained in the General Purpose Financial Statements. The
Strategic Resource Plan 2019-2023 can be obtained by contacting Council or from Council's website

www.whitehorse.vic.gov.au/Corporate-Documents.html.
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Description of Municipality

The City of Whitehorse is located just 15 kilometres east of Melbourne and covers an area of 64 square
kilometres. The municipality has an estimated residential population of 176,196 residents (Australian
Bureau of Statistics, 2019). Whitehorse has a diverse population. According to the 2016 census, 38 per cent
of residents were born overseas and 37 per cent speak a language other than English at home. The most
common languages are Mandarin, Cantonese, Greek, Italian, Vietnamese, Hindi, Sinhalese, Korean and
Persian/Dari. Whitehorse City Council provides high-quality services and facilities across a range of areas
including community services, environmental services, customer services, health and wellbeing, planning
and building, parks and gardens and more. Whitehorse has more than 631 hectares of open space,
including quality bushland reserves, parks, formal gardens, recreation reserves and trails, combined with
tree-lined residential streetscapes to form a pleasant urban environment.
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Certification of the Performance Statement

In my opinion, the accompanying performance statement has been prepared in accordance with the
Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

P,
Stuart CPA

Principal Accounting Officer
Dated: 26 August 2019

In our opinion, the accompanying performance statement of Whitehorse City Council for the year ended
30June 2019 presents fairly the results of council’s performance in accordance with the Local Government
Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

The performance statement contains the relevant performance indicators, measures and resultsin relation
to service performance, financial performance and sustainable capacity.

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any particulars in the
performance statement to be misleading or inaccurate.

We have been authorised by the council and by the Local Government (Planning and Reporting)
Regulations 2014 to certify this performance statement in its final form.

g_

Ra';lene Carr
Councillor
Dated: 26 August 2019

a CS9es LLLE
1

Denise Massoud
Councillor
Dated: 26 August 2019

| /@e/:ﬁa/k:

A.[Tony) De Fazio
Acting Chief Executive Officer
Dated: 26 August 2019
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Independent AUd itOl"S Report Victorian Auditor-General's Office

To the Councillors of Whitehorse City Council

Opinion | have audited the accompanying performance statement of Whitehorse City
Council (the council) which comprises the:

. description of municipality for the year ended 30 June 2019

. sustainable capacity indicators for the year ended 30 June 2019

. service performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2019
. financial performance indicators for the year ended 30 June 2019
. notes to the performance statement

. certification of the performance statement.

In my opinion, the performance statement presents fairly, in all material
respects, the performance of the council for the year ended 30 June 2019, in
accordance with the performance reporting requirements of Part 6 of the
Local Government Act 1989.

Basis for Opinion | have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which
incorporates the Australian Standards on Assurance Engagements. | further
describe my responsibilities under that Act and those standards in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Performance Statement section

of my report.

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and |
are independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of
the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of
the performance statement in Victoria. My staff and | have also fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate

to provide a basis for my opinion.

Councillors' The Councillors of the council are responsible for the preparation and fair
responsibilities for the  presentation of the performance statement in accordance with the
performance performance reporting requirements of the Local Government Act 1989, and
statement for such internal control as the Councillors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation and fair presentation of the statement of performance that is

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion
responsibilities for the 0N the performance statement based on the audit. My objectives for the audit
audit of the are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the performance
performance statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to
statement fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Standards on Assurance
Engagements will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Level 31 / 35 Callins Street, Melbourne Vie 3000
T 03 8601 7000 enquiries@oudit.vic.gov.au www.oudiivic.gov.au
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Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually orin the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the decisions of users taken on the basis of this performance

statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Standards on Assurance
Engagements, | exercise professional judgement and maintain professional

scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

- identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
performance statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

» obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the auditin
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the council’s internal control

» evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
performance statement, including the disclosures, and whether the
performance statement represents the underlying events and results in

amanner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the Councillors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including

any significant deficiencies in internal control that | identify during my audit.

MELBOURNE Jonathan Kyvelidis
26 September 2019 as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria
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Annual Financial Report 2018/19

The Annual Financial Report is one of Council’s key reports to the community. It
shows Council’s financial performance during the year and the financial position
at the end of the year.

The Annual Financial Reportis prepared under the requirements of the Local Government Act 1989, the Local
Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014, Australian Accounting Standards and
Interpretations as well as the Local Government Model Financial Report, which are designed to standardise

financial reporting for local government bodies throughout Victoria.

Council is committed to accountability. For this reason this simple guide has been developed to assist readers

understand the Annual Financial Report.

Understanding the Annual Financial Report
Council’s Annual Financial Report contains the following sections:

* Comprehensive Income Statement

* Balance Sheet

* Statement of Changes in Equity

* Statement of Cash Flows

* Statement of Capital Works

* Notes to the Financial Statements

* Certification of the Annual Financial Report

*  Auditor General's Independent Audit Report

These sections are described in more detail below.

Comprehensive Income Statement

The Comprehensive Income Statement measures Council’s financial performance over the year and shows if
a surplus or a deficitresults from delivering Council’s services. The Comprehensive Income Statement shows

total income, total expenses and the surplus (deficit) for the year.

The Statement includes all sources of income less all operating expenses or expenses incurred in delivering
these services. This includes depreciation, which is the writing down over time the value of buildings, roads,
footpaths, drains and all other infrastructure assets which are used to provide Council services.

These assets are depreciated over the life of the asset as they are used. Capital costs or new assets purchased
or created during the year are excluded from the Statement but as indicated above, are depreciated as they

are used.

The Statement is prepared on an “accrual” basis. This means that income is recognised when earned and

expenses are recognised when incurred, regardless of when the cash is actually received or paid.
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Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet is a snapshot of Council’s financial position at the end of the financial year. It shows what
Council owns as assets and what it owes as liabilities. Assets and liabilities are separated into current and
non-current. Current Assets are assets that are either cash or could be readily converted to cash within 12
months while liabilities are regarded as current when they require payment or are entitled to be paid within
this same timeframe.

The components of the Balance Sheet are explained below.

Current and non-current assets include:

* Cash and cash equivalents — This includes cash held in banks and petty cash. It also includes Council's
cash investments in term deposits with a maturity of ninety days or less.

*  Other Financial assets — This includes term deposits with a maturity of greater than ninety days.

* Trade and other receivables — This represents monies owed to Council by rate payers, parking debtors,
and other debtors.

®  Other assets — This includes inventories and prepayments.

* |nvestments in associates— This represents the value of Council’s ownerships and investments in the
Whitehorse Manningham Regional Library Corporation and Narre Warren User Group.

*  Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment—This is the most significant component of Council's worth
and includes land, buildings, roads, drainage, land improvements, plant and machinery, equipment,

furniture and fittings, other structures, and the art collection.

Current and non-current liabilities include:

* Trade and other payables — This represents monies owed to creditors by Council and deposits held in
trust.

*  Provisions — This includes annual leave and long service leave employee entitlements.

* Interest-bearing loans and borrowings — This relates to loans and borrowings from financial institutions.

Net assets are calculated as total assets less total liabilities and represent the net worth of Council, which

has been built up over many years. Net assets equal total equity.

The components of total equity are:

*  Accumulated surplus — This refers to the value of all net assets accumulated over time less funds
transferred to other reserves.

* Reserves — This consists of the asset revaluation reserve which is the difference between the previously
recorded value of assets and their current valuations and other reserves which comprise various reserves

where funds have been allocated from the accumulated surplus for specific purposes.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

The Statement of Changes in Equity summarises the change in Council's net worth (or net assets). The
Statement of Changes in Equity also shows the total comprehensive income for the year, which consists of
the surplus (deficit) for the year and any other comprehensive income (asset revaluations), and transfers

between accumulated surplus and other reserves.

Statement of Cash Flows

The Statement of Cash Flows shows Council’s cash inflows and cash outflows for the financial year and
the net “cash in hand” position. It differs from the Comprehensive Income Statement in that:

* it excludes non-cash expenses, such as depreciation

* it excludes the accruals taken into account by the Comprehensive Income Statement

* it includes payments or receipts in relation to capital items

* itincludes any “financing” activities, such as any additional cash that Council may hold as a result of

proceeds from borrowings.

Council uses the Statement of Cash Flows in conjunction with the rest of the Financial Statements to evaluate
changes in net assets, analyse the financial structure (including the liquidity and solvency of Council), and
make decisions concerning the amounts and timing of cash flows in order to adapt to changing circumstances
and opportunities.

The Statement of Cash Flows contains three sections:

* Cash flows from operating activities — This relates to revenue-producing activities. It includes receipts
from rates, user fees and charges, grants and subsidies, interest received, and other income. This is offset
by payments for employee benefits, materials and services and other expenses.

* Cash flows from investing activities — This relates to transactions associated with the acquisition and
disposal of long-term assets and other investments. It includes proceeds from the sale of assets,
payments for the acquisition of assets and net cash movements in term deposits (investments).

* Cash flows from financing activities — This relates to transactions associated with loans and borrowings

and includes loan repayments and interest payments (finance costs).

Statement of Capital Works

The Statement of Capital Works is a summary of all amounts expended by Council on capital works for the
financial year. It shows a breakdown of the expenditure by area including land, buildings, plant machinery
and equipment, fixtures, fittings and furniture, roads, drainage, parks, open space and streetscapes. The
Statement of Capital Works also splits the total capital works expenditure into asset renewal, upgrade, new
assets or asset expansion. Asset renewal expenditure is expenditure on existing assets through renewing,

restoring and replacing existing assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide further information in relation to the rules and assumptions
used to prepare the Financial Statements as well as additional information and detail about specific items
within the Statements. The Notes also advise the reader if there have been any changes to Accounting
Standards, accounting policies or Legislation which may change the way the Statements are prepared (see
Note 1 of the Annual Financial Report).

Within the five Financial Statements, there is a Note column to indicate which Note the reader can refer to
for additional information.

Information in the Notes is particularly useful where there has been a significant change from the previous
year's comparative figure. The Notes should be read together with other parts of the Financial Report to get
a clear picture of Council’s financial performance and financial position.

Certification of the Financial Report

The Certification of the Financial Report is made by the Principal Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive

Officer and two Councillors on behalf of Council.

The certification by the Principal Accounting Officer is made by the person responsible for the preparation
of the Financial Report. It certifies that in their opinion, the reports have met all the statutory and

professional reporting requirements.

The certification by the Chief Executive Officer and representative Councillors certifies that in their opinion,

the Financial Reportis presented fairly and is not misleading or inaccurate.

Auditor-General’s Independent Auditor’s Report

The Victorian Auditor-General's Independent Audit Report provides the reader with an independent opinion
on the Financial Report and will advise the reader if there are any issues of concern.

Whitehorse City Council received a clear audit for 2018/19 with no high or moderate risks identified.
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Financial Statements

WHITEHORSE CITY COUNCIL
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
For the year ended 30 June 2019
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WHITEHORSE CITY COUNCIL - ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 2018/19

CERTIFICATION OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989, the
Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 , Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional
reporting requirements.

Dated: 26 August 2019
Nunawading

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly the financial transactions of Whitehorse City Council for the year
ended 30 June 2019 and the financial position of Council as at that date,

As at the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would render any particulars in the financial statements to be
misleading or inaccurate.

We have been authorised by Council and by the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 to certify the financial
statements in their final form.

w CLS B L u.t(&

Denise Massoud
Councillor

Dated: 26 August 2019
Nunawading

Raylene Carr
Councillor

Dated: 26 August 2019
Nunawading

D e

A.(Tony) De Fazio

Acting Chief Executive icer
Dated: 26 August 2019
Nunawading
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Inde pe ndent AUdltOI"S Re port Victorian Auditor-General's Office
To the Councillors of Whitehorse City Council
Opinion | have audited the financial report of Whitehorse City Council (the council) which comprises
the:
. balance sheet as at 30 June 2019
. comprehensive income statement for the year then ended
. statement of changes in equity for the year then ended
. statement of cash flows for the year then ended
. statement of capital works for the year then ended
. notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies
. certification of the financial report.

In my opinion the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the council as at 30 June 2019 and its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of Part 6 of the
Local Government Act 1989 and applicable Australian Accounting Standards.

Basis for | have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which incorporates the

Opinion Australian Auditing Standards. | further describe my responsibilities under that Act and
those standards in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section
of my report.

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staffand | are
independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Victoria. My

staff and | have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Councillors’ The Councillors of the council are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of

responsibilities the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Local

for the Government Act 1989, and for such internal control as the Councillors determine is
financial necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that is free
report from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the council’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it is inappropriate todo so.

Llevel 31 / 35 Callins Street, Melbourne Vic 3000

T 038601 7000 enquiries@audit.vic.gov.au www.oudit.vic.gov.au
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Auditor’'s As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial

responsibilities report based on the audit. My objectives for the audit are to obtain reasonable assurance
for the audit about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether
of the financial due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable
report assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected

to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the council’s internal control

- evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Councillors

- conclude on the appropriateness of the Councillors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the council’s ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
council to cease to continue as a going concern.

- evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the Councillors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that | identify during my audit.

MELBOURNE Jonathan Kyvelidis
26 September 2019 as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria
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Note 2019 2018
$'000 $'000

Income

Rates and charges 31 115,808 111,953
Statutory fees and fines 32 9,173 8,240
User fees 33 39,224 38,906
Grants - operating 34 21,124 19,587
Grants - capital 34 264 914
Contributions 35 9,144 12,125
Met gain on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 36 35,227 539
Interest income 5,875 3,830
Share of net gain/(loss) in associates 6.3 111 (1,003)
Other income a7 4,433 4,395
Total Income 240,383 199,486
Expenses

Employee costs 41 75.799 72,004
Materials and services 42 60,027 56,631
Depreciation and amaortisation 43 25212 24,918
Bomrowing costs N1 229
Contributions expense - Whitehorse Manningham Library 5,196 5,154
Other expenses 4.4 2,434 2714
Total expenses 168,879 161,650
Surplus for the year 71,504 37,836

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to surplus in future periods
Met asset revaluation (decrement) 91 (293,934) (1,906)

Total comprehensive result (222,430) 35,930

The Comprehensive Income Statement should be read with the accompanying notes.
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Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Other financial assets

Trade and other receivables

Mon-current assets classified as held for sale
Other assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Trade and other receivables

Investment in associates and joint operation
Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Trust funds and deposits

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Provisions

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Interest bearing loans and borrowings
Provisions

Other liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

Equity

Accumulated surplus
Reserves

Total equity

The Balance Sheet should be read with the accompanying notes.

Annual Report 2018-19

Note

5.1(a)

5.1(b)

5.4(c)
6.1
5.2

9.1

2019 2018

$'000 $'000
22 468 10,999
219,849 163,326
13,567 11,083
1,800 18,774
1.215 1.153
258,899 205,335
39 41
5,848 5,737
3,339,851 3,609,360
1,046 1,092
3,346,784 3,616,230
3,605,683 3,821,565
20,447 15,365
10,964 10,592
5.047 57
16,451 15,468
52,909 41.482
- 5,042
1.532 1.500
1.034 903
2,566 7,445
55,475 48 927
3,550,208 3,772 638
1.484 533 1,454,895
2,065,675 2,317,743
3,550,208 3772638
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Asset
Accumulated revaluation

surplus reserve Other reserves Total
2019 Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at beginning of the financial year 1,454,895 2232819 84,924 3772638
Surplus for the year 71504 - - 71,504
Net asset revaluation increment 9.1 - (293,934) - (293,934)
Transfers to other reserves 9.1 22672 - 64,538 87,210
Transfers from other reserves 9.1 (64,538) - (22,672) (87.210)
Balance at end of the financial year 1,484,533 1,938,885 126,790 3,550,208

Asset
Accumulated revaluation

surplus reserve Other reserves Total
2018 Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at beginning of the financial year 784,114 2234725 72,354 3,091,193
Surplus for the year 37836 - - 37,836
Adoption of Land Under Roads valuation (AASB 10571) 645515 - - 645,515
MNet asset revaluation increment 9.1 - (1,906) - (1,906)
Transfers to other reserves 9.1 3078 - 15,648 18,726
Transfers from other reserves 9.1 (15,648) - (3,078) (18,726)
Balance at end of the financial year 1,454,895 2,232,819 84,924 3,772,638
The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read with the accompanying notes.
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2019 2018
Inflows/ Inflows/
(Outflows) (Outflows)
Note $'000 $'000

Cash flows from operating activities

Rates and charges 115,331 111,784
Statutory fees and fines 8,948 8,041
User fees 40,656 41,018
Grants - operating 21,918 20,394
Grants - capital 274 951
Contributions - monetary 8,817 11,472
Interest received 5,229 3,830
MNet Trust funds and deposits 372 693
Other receipts 4,228 3,883
Net GST refund 2,829 3,079
Employee costs (74,814) (71,667)
Materials and services (60,007) (61,601)
Other payments (8,387) (8,603)
Net cash provided by operating activities 92 65,394 63,274

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (50,547) (35,740)
Proceeds from sale of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 36 53,406 3,435
Payments for investments (267,849) (189,826)
Proceeds from sale of investments 211,326 152,223
Payment of loans and advances from community organisations 2 3
Net cash used in investing activities (53,662) (69,905)

Cash flows from financing activities

Finance costs (211) (230)
Repayment of borrowings (52) (345)
Net cash used in financing activities (263) (575)
Met increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 11,469 (7,206)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year 10,999 18,205
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year 51 22,468 10,999
Financing arangements 57

Restrictions on cash assets 51

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read with the accompanying notes.

The net GST refund in 2017/18 has been amended to take into account the GST component of financing and investing activities.
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2019 2018
$'000 $'000

Property
Land 76 -
Buildings 23,993 5,670
Building Improvements 3,193 6,030
Total Property 27,262 11,700
Plant and Equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 4,490 3,581
Fixtures, fittings and furniture 108 265
Computers and telecommunications 1,057 1,647
Total Plant and Equipment 5,655 5,493
Infrastructure
Roads 5,171 5,541
Bridges 291 123
Footpaths and cycleways 3,17 3,387
Drainage 2,307 2,090
Recreational, leisure and community facilities 3,198 3,484
Parks, open space and streetscapes 2,921 2,625
Off street car parks 504 107
Other infrastructure 121 1,190
Total infrastructure 17,630 18,547
Total capital works expenditure 50,547 35,740
Represented by:
MNew asset expenditure 16,688 1,327
Asset renewal expenditure 28,316 29,408
Asset expansion expenditure 1,297 3,654
Asset upgrade expenditure 4,246 1,351
Total capital works expenditure 50,547 35,740

The above statement of capital works should be read with the accompanying notes.
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OVERVIEW

Introduction

The Whitehorse City Council was established by an Order of Governer in Council on 15th December 1994 and is a body corporate.
Council's main office is located at 379-397 Whitehorse Road, Nunawading VIC 3131.

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements are a general purpose financial report that consists of a Comprehensive Income Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement of
Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Capital Works and Notes accompanying these financial statements. The general purpose
financial report complies with the Australian Accounting Standards (AAS), other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards
Board, the Local Government Act 1989, and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 .

Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of accounting

The accrual basis of accounting has been used in the preparation of these financial statements, whereby assets, liabilities, equity,
income and expenses are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other socurces. The estimates and associated judgements are based on professicnal judgement derived from historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and also in future perieds that are
affected by the revision. Judgements and assumptions made by management in the application of AAS's that have significant effects on
the financial statements and estimates relate to:

- the fair value of land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to note 6.2)
- the impairment of land, buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to note 6.2)
- the determination of depreciation for buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment (refer to note 6.2)

- the determination of employee provisions (refer to note 5.5)

- the disaggregaticn of divisicnal income, expenses and total assets (refer to note 2.1)
- the determination of bad debts and provision of doubtful debts (refer to note 4.4)*
- other areas requiring judgements

* In relation to recognising credit losses, the revised AASB 9 Financial Instruments no longer recognises a credit event (e.g. a receivable
is past due) to have occurred before recognising credit losses. As a result, impairment losses will be recognised earlier and at more
regular intervals than previously under the ‘incurred loss model' of AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement .

Unless otherwise stated, all accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the prior year. Where appropriate, comparative
figures have been amended to accord with current presentation, and disclosure has been made of any material changes to
comparatives.

Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses, and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable
from the Australian Taxation Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of an item of the expense. Receivables and payables in the balance sheet are shown inclusive of GST.

Cash flows are presented in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis, except for the GST component of investing and financing
activities, which are disclosed as operating cash flows.
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NOTE 1 Performance against Budget

The performance against budget notes compare Council's financial plan, expressed through its annual budget, with actual performance.
The Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 requires explanation of any material variances. Council has adopted
a materiality threshold of 10% and $1 million where further explanation is warranted. Explanations have not been provided for variations
below the materiality threshold unless the material variance is considered to be significant in nature.

The budget figures detailed below are those adopted by Council on 25 June 2018. The Budget was based on assumptions that were
relevant at the time of adoption of the Budget. Council sets guidelines and parameters for income and expense targets in this budget in
order to meet Council's planning and financial performance targets for both the short and leng-term. The budget did not reflect any
changes to equity resulting from asset revaluations, as their impacts were not considered predictable.

These notes are prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Govemment Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and
Reporting) Regulations 2014.

1.1 Income and Expenditure

Budget Actual Variance Variance Ref

2019 2019 2019

$°000 $°000 $000 ¥
Income
Rates and charges 115,946 115,808 (138) 0.1)
Statutory fees and fines 7610 9,173 1,563 205 1
User fees 40,012 39,224 (788) (2.0)
Grants - operating 16,822 21,124 4302 256 2
Grants - capital - 264 264 100.0
Contributions 10,000 9,144 (856) (8.6)
Met gain on disposal of property, infrastructure,
plant and equipment 35,046 35,227 181 1
Interest income 5120 5.875 755 147
Share of net gain of associates - 1M 11 100.0
Other income 2,933 4,433 1,500 51.1 3
Total Income 233,489 240,383 6,894 30
Expenses
Employee costs 75,503 75,799 (296) (0.4)
Materials and services 60,444 60,027 417 0.7
Depreciation and amortisation 25720 25212 508 20
Interest expense 212 21 1 05
Centributions - Whitehorse Manningham Regional
Library Corporation 5178 5,196 (18) 0.3)
Other expenses 2,323 2,434 (111) (4.8)
Total expenses 169,380 168,879 501 0.3
Surplus for the year 64,109 71,504 7,395 115
Other comprehensive income
Revaluation of property, infrastructure, plant and
equipment - (293,934) (293,934) -
Total comprehensive result 64,109 (222,430) (286,539) (447.0)

(i) Explanation of material variances

1 Statutory fees and fines:

This variance mainly reflects a $1.068m increase in parking infringement income due to an increase in infringements issued
relating to the extended hours monitoring service, and a $0.349m increase in statutory planning fees due to continued strong
demand for planning application permits.

2 Grants - operating:

Grants - operating were $4.318m higher than budget mainly reflecting $2.410m of the 2019/20 Financial Assistance Grant being
provided in June 2019 by Victoria Grants Commission. Health and Family Services also received a $1.173m increase in childcare
subsidies, which are largely offset by a reduction in childcare user fees.

3 Other income:

This variance includes $0.500m of additional recycling income including $0.281m of cutstanding rebates for the period March to
June 2018 and a $0.219m increase in sale of collected metal and cardboard, $0.292m of additional income for Engineering
Assets.

Annual Report 2018-19 | 124

Page 246



Whitehorse City Council
Ordinary Council Meeting 21 October 2019

9.3.1 - ATTACHMENT 1. Annual Report 2018-19

NOTE 1 Performance against Budget

1.2 Capital Works

Budget Actual Variance Variance Ref
$'000 $°000 $'000 %

Property
Land 1,680 76 1,604 1000 4
Buildings 35,855 23,993 11,862 331 5
Building improvements 3,365 3,193 172 51
Total Property 40,900 27,262 13638
Plant and Equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 4,005 4,490 (485) (12.1)
Fixtures, fittings and furniture 577 108 469 813
Computers and telecommunications 1,084 1,067 v 25
Total Plant and Equipment 5,666 5,665 1
Infrastructure
Roads 4,686 5171 (485) (10.3)
Bridges 200 2N 91) (45.5)
Footpaths and cvcleways 3,148 3117 3 1.0
Drainage 1,855 2,307 (452) (24.4)
Recreational, leisure and community faciliies 2,379 3,198 (819) (34.4)
Waste management 80 - 80 100.0
Parks, open space and streetscapes 4 456 2,921 1535 344 6
Off street car parks 975 504 471 483
Other infrastructure - 121 (121) (100.0)
Total Infrastructure 17.779 17.630 149
Total capital works expenditure 64,345 50,547 13,798
Represented by:
MNew asset expenditure 20171 16,688 3483 17.3
Asset renewal expenditure 37,000 28,316 8684 235
Asset expansion expenditure 3,445 1,297 2148 624
Asset upgrade expenditure 3,729 4,246 (517) (13.9)
Total capital works expenditure 64,345 50,547 13,798

(i) Explanation of material variances

4 Land: Mo land purchases were settled in 2018/19, with the balance reflecting minor land improvements.

5 Buildings: This variance primarily reflects a change in timing of construction for the Nunawading Community Hub $7.033m,
Whitehorse Centre $2.100m and Elgar Park South Pavilion $1.260m redevelopments, and the Harrow Street Car Park development
$0.939m.

6. Parks, open space and streetscapes: The variance relates to the reclassification of capital expenditure to other asset categories
which were initially budgeted under Parks, open space and streetscapes. This included $1.133m for Recreational, Leisure and
Community Facilities, $0.218m for Footpaths and Cycleways and $0.409m for Roads.
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Note 2.1 Analysis of Council results by Division
Council delivers its functions and activities through the following divisions
Executive

The Executive division comprises three departments: Civic Services, Communications and City Management. Civic Services is
responsible for customer/resident services, as well as the provision of governance advice and procedural matters, Civic Centre
amenities services and print room operations. The Communications Department provides information on Council activities and
services to the community, staff and media. The Communications Department also facilitates advocacy, community
engagement and consultation on a range of key services, activities, issues, projects and events. City Management
incorporates the CEO office and strategic projects.

Corporate Services

The Corporate Services division is responsible for managing computer systems, recerds, human resources, training, risk
management, corporate projects, parking, local laws, animal management and school crossing supervision, and for co-
ordinating rates, valuations, property management and GIS functions. This division is also responsible for ensuring Council's
compliance in relation to Privacy, the Public Records Act and Record Management Standards.

City Development

Council's City Development division comprises Planning and Building, Engineering and Envirenmental Services, and
Investment and Economic Development. The Planning and Building Department is respensible for planning policy development
and ensuring that development complies with relevant planning legislation. The Investment and Economic Development Unit
facilitates local economic development in partnership with business and community networks. The Engineering and
Environmental Services Department is responsible for waste and recycling, traffic, strategic asset management, and design
and construction.

Human Services

Council's Human Services division comprises four departments: Home and Community Care, Community Development, Health
and Family Services, and Arts and Recreation Development Human Services provides support services for the frail aged
and/or people with disabilities, children, youth and families, public health services for all residents, community planning, social
pelicy and community development activities, events, cultural facilities, arts programs, Council's aquatic centres, public gelf
course and community centre, as well as planning and policy development for parks, open space and recreation resources.

Infrastructure
Council's Infrastructure division comprises: Assets and Capital Works, Major Projects and Buildings, City Works and

ParksWide. It is primarily responsible for maintaining and upgrading Council's assets and infrastructure, the City's open space
areas, the Whitehorse Recycling and Waste Centre as well as fleet of plant and vehicle assets.

Treasury
The Treasury function is respensible for managing Council's menetary transactions as wel as accounting for Council's Assets

(e.g. depreciation and the sale of assets). The monetary transactions include income from rates (and the associated interest),
the sale of assets and the Grants Commission.
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21 (b)S ry of r , BXp . grants and total assets by Division
Grants
Income Expenses Surplus included Total
(Deficit) in income Assets
2019 $000 $000 $°000 $000 $'000
Executive 66 5,696 (5,630) 8,459
Corporate Services 12,024 24 479 (12,455) 74 134,750
City Development 17,797 27,369 (9.572) 1 1,041,146
Human Services 37,187 53,212 (16,025) 15,618 1,268,753
Infrastructure 10,591 32,506 (21,915) 182 903,632
Treasury Function 162,718 25617 137,101 4,973 248 943
240,383 168,879 71,504 21,388 3,605,683
Grants
Income Expenses Surplus included Total
(Deficit) in income Assets
2018 $000 $000 $°000 $000 $'000
Executive 228 5,324 (5,096) 10,130
Corporate Services 10,373 21821 (11,448) 462 158,409
City Development 18,886 25,449 (6,563) 228 1,086,129
Human Services 36,474 52,317 (15,843) 13,967 1,407,636
Infrastructure 10,251 31,178 (20,927) 302 979,532
Treasury Function 123,274 25 561 97,713 5,542 179,729
194,480 Te1,65U 37,636 20,500 3,041,065
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Note 3

Funding for the delivery of our services
Revenue recognition
Income is recognised when Council obtains control of the contribution or the right to receive the contribution,

it is probable that the economic benefits comprising the contribution will flow to Council and the amount of the
centribution can be measured reliably.

Interest Income

Interest is recognised as it is eamed.

3.1 Rates and Charges
Council uses Capital Improved Value (CIV) as the basis of valuation of all properties within the municipal district.
CIV is the value of the property, inclusive of land, buildings and other improvements.
The valuation base used to calculate general rates for 2018/19 was:
General rate $ 77,832,055,000 (2017/18)  $64,452,917,500
Recreational rate 3 96,411,000 (2017/18) $75,769,000
The 2018/19 rate in the dollar of general rate assessments was 0.147 302 cents of each dollar of CIV (2017/18: 017143 cents).
The total quantum of "in-lieu of rates’ levied on recreational assessments was $40,106 in 2018/19 (2017/18: $38 967)

2019 2018
$000 $000

General rates 114 646 110,490
Supplementary rates and rate adjustments 794 1,123
Cultural and recreational 40 39
Interest on rates and charges 328 301
Total rates and charges 115,808 111,953
The date of the latest general revaluation of land for rating purposes within the municipal district was cenducted on 1 January
2018, and the valuation will be first applied in the rating year commencing 1 July 2018.
Annual rates and charges are recognised as revenues when Council issues annual rates notices. Supplementary rates are
recognised when a valuation and reassessment is completed and a supplemetary rates notice is issued.

3.2 Statutory Fees and Fines
Infringement and costs 4572 3,844
Court recoveries 611 723
Town planning fees 2402 2478
Land information certificates 146 150
Building services 932 622
Permits 510 423
Total statutory fees and fines 9173 8,240
Statutory fees and fines (including parking fees and fines) are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided, the
payment is received, or when the penalty has been applied, whichever occurs first.

3.3 UserFees
Aged and health services 2189 2,278
Arts and culture 2524 2532
Leisure centre and recreation 11,303 10,963
Child care/children's programs 2901 4141
Parking 3328 3,388
Registration and other permits 1,859 1,822
Building services 118 123
Waste management services 12,907 12,577
Other fees and charges 2095 1,082
Total user fees 39,224 38,906
User fees are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided or Council has otherwise eamed the income.
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$°000

15,927
4,574

20,501

6,328
2,702
1,389
4,628

45

15,092

1,566
216
648

1,161
462

18

4,071

19,163

257

424

424

19,587

835

835

28
51

79

79
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2019
$'000
Note 3 Funding for the delivery of our services (continued)
3.4 Funding from other levels of government
Grants were received in respect of the following :
Summary of grants
Commonwealth funded grants 16,917
State funded grants 4471
Total grants received 21,388
(a) Operating Grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Aged and disability services 6,702
Family and children 3828
General home care 1633
Financial Assistance Grants 4709
Other 45
16,917
Recurrent - State Government
Aged and disability services 1417
Community safety 141
Family and children 571
Matemal and child health 1,148
School crossing supervisors 574
Other 20
3,871
Total recurrent operating grants 20,788
Non-Recurrent - State Government
Family and children 67
Matural Disaster 137
Other 132
336
Total non-recurrent operating grants 336
Total operating grants 21124
(b) Capital Grants
Recurrent - Commonwealth Government
Roads to Recovery -
Total recurrent capital grants -
Non-recurrent - State Government
Buildings 120
Drainage 46
Footpaths and cycleways -
Infrastructure 98
264
Total non-recurrent capital grants 264
Total capital grants 264

914
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$°000

42
250
(42)
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2019
$000
Note 3 Funding for the delivery of our services (continued)
(c) Unspent grants received on condition that they be spent in a specific manner
Balance at start of year 250
Received during the financial year and remained unspent at balance date 555
Received in prior years and spent during the financial year (226)
Balance at year end 579

3.5

3.6

37

250

Grant income is recognised when Council obtains contrel of the centribution. Control is normally cbtained upon receipt (or

acquittal) or upon earlier notification that a grant has been secured.

Contributions

11,018
1,107

12,125

460
150
497

Meonetary 8497
Mon-monetary 647
Total contributions 9144
Contributions of nen monetary assets were received in relation to the following asset classes:
Land 33
Buildings -
Infrastructure 614
647

1,107

Monetary and non monetary contributions are recognised as revenue when Council obtains control over the contributed asset

Net gain on disposal of Property, Infrastructure, Plant and Equipment

3435
(2,896)

Proceeds of sale 53406
Written down value of assets disposed (18,179)
Total net gain on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 35227

539

The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has passed to the buyer.

Other Income

569
1,310
701
1,135
680

Cost recovery income 871
Recycling income 700
Rent 670
Swim school income 1,222
Other 970
Total other income 4433

4,395

Other income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is recognised when Council gains

centrol over the right to receive the income.

Annual Report 2018-19

[ 130

Page 252



Whitehorse City Council
Ordinary Council Meeting

21 October 2019

9.3.1 - ATTACHMENT 1.

Annual Report 2018-19

Note 4

The cost of delivering services
4.1 Employee costs

Wages and salaries
Casual staff
Superannuation
Fringe benefits tax
Staff development
WorkCover

Total employee costs

(b) Superannuation
Council made contributions to the following funds:

Defined benefit fund
Empleyer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super)

There were no employer contributions payable at reporting date.

Accumulation funds
Employer contributions to Local Autherities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super)
Employer contributions - other funds

Refer to note 9.3 for further information relating to Council’s superannuation obligations.
4.2 Materials and services

Building maintenance
Consultants

Arts and recreation contracts
City Works contracts
ParksWide contracts

Waste collection contracts
Recycling and Waste Centre contracts
Other contract payments
Council election

Energy efficient street lighting
General maintenance
Infermation technology
Insurance

Legal expenses

Materials and supplies

Office administration

Utilities

Other services

Total materials and services

4.3 Depreciation and amortisation

Property

Plant and equipment

Infrastructure

Intangibles

Total depreciation and amortisation

Refer to Note 5.2(b) and 6.2 for a more detailed breakdown of depreciation and amortisation charges and accounting policy.

4.4  Other expenses

Bad and doubtful debts

Community grants

Auditor's remuneration - VAGO - audit of the financial statements, performance
statement and grant acquittals

Auditor's remuneration - Internal audit
Counciller allowances

Operating lease rentals

Fire Services Property Levy

Share of loss in Regional Landfill Clayton South*
Other expenses

Total other expenses

*Refer to Note 5.6 for more details on Regional Landfill Clayton South
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2019 2018
$'000 $'000

61,333 58,626
5,885 5,383
6,064 5513
717 680
1073 988
727 814
75799 72,004
437 430
437 430
3325 3,160
2302 1,922
5627 5.062
2451 1,830
260 298
3,191 3,082
3789 3,307
4651 4488
13120 12718
5,308 5,148
4993 4,855
- 16

- 495
1119 1175
2,940 1672
1190 1.064
1911 1639
3664 4,034
2663 2,634
3921 3,777
5,156 4429
60,027 56,631
7130 7,257
3639 3,764
13999 13473
444 424
75212 743978
56 9

970 946

74 82

86 110

408 400
436 505
208 210
131 349

65 103
7434 2714
[ 131

Page 253



Whitehorse City Council

Ordinary Council Meeting 21 October 2019
9.3.1 - ATTACHMENT 1. Annual Report 2018-19
2019 2018
$'000 $'000
Note 5 Our financial position

5.1 Financial assets

(a) Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash at bank and on hand 17,468 10,999
Term deposits 5,000 -
Total cash and cash equivalents 22,468 10,999

(b} Other financial assets

Term deposits - current 219,849 163,326
Total other financial assets 219,849 163,326
Total Financial assets 242 317 174,325

Council's cash, cash equivalents and other financial assets are subject to extemal restrictions that limit amounts available for
discretionary use. These include:

Trust funds and deposits 10,964 10,592
Public open space reserve 42,003 33,235
Car parking in lieu reserve 34 34
Total restricted funds 53,001 43 861
Total unrestricted cash, cash equivalents and other financial assets 189,316 130,464

Intended allocations

Although not externally restricted, the following amounts have been allocated for specific future purposes by Council:

- Aged care reserve 4,924 10,638
- Development reserve 78,176 39,269
- Waste management reserve 1,368 1,737
- Art collection reserve 7 11
- Energy fund reserve 278 -

84,753 51,665

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits at call and other highly liquid investments with original maturities
of 90 days or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Other financial assets are valued at fair value, at balance date. Term deposits are measured at original cost. Any unrealised
gains and losses on holdings at balance date are recognised as either a revenue or expense.

(c) Trade and other receivables

Current

Statutory receivables

Rates debtors 3,908 3,432
Fire Services Property Levy debtors 428 404
Parking debtors 5,296 4,013
Provision for doubtful debts - parking debtors (3,522) (2.809)
GST Receivable 2,294 1,530
MNon statutory receivables

Unsecured loans and advances - 39
Community loan - Munawading Gymnastics and Sports Club 3 3
Provision for doubtful debts - community loan (1) (1)
Other debtors 5,354 4,681
Provision for doubtful debts - other debtors (193) (209)
Total trade and other receivables - current 13,567 11,083
Non-current

Non statutory receivables

Unsecured loans and advances 3 4
Community loan - Munawading Gymnastics and Sports Club 72 74
Provision for doubtful debts - community loan (36) (37)
Total trade and other receivables - non-current 39 41

Short term receivables are carried at invoice amount. Provision for doubtful debts is recognised based on an expected credit
loss model. This model considers both historic and forward looking information in determining the level of impairment. Long
term receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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$'000 $'000
Note 5 Council's financial position (continued)

(d) Ageing of Receivables

The ageing of the Council's trade & other receivables (excluding statutory receivables) that are not impaired was:

Current (not yet due) 5,098 4,366
30-60 days 152 198
61-90 days 28 13
Over 90 days 76 104
Other debtors 5,354 4,681

(e) Movement in provision for doubtful debts - other debtors

Balance at 1 July 209 287
New provisions recognised during the year 539 325
Amounts already provided for and written off as uncollectible (35) (18)
Amounts provided for but recovered during the year (520) (385)
Balance at 30 June 193 209

(f) Ageing of individually impaired Receivables

At balance date, other debtors representing financial assets with a nominal value of $0.193m (2017/18: $0.209m) were
impaired. The amount of the provision raised against these debtors was $0.193m (2017/18: $0.209m). They individually have
been impaired as a result of their doubtful collection. Many of the long outstanding past due amounts have been lodged with
Council's debt collectors or are on payment arangements.

The ageing of other debtors that have been individually determined as impaired at reporting date was:

Current (not yet due) 14 60
30-60 days 8 9
61-90 days 20 3
Over 90 days 151 137
Total trade & other receivables 193 209

(g) Operating lease receivables
Council has entered into a number of commercial property leases or licensing arangements. These arrangements consist of

operating leases with remaining non-cancellable tenures of between 1 and 10 years. Rental revisions are made on a variety
of bases including CP, fixed percentage and fixed dollar amount.

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2019 2018
$'000 $'000
Not later than one year 230 293
Later than one year and not later than five years 624 512
Later than five years 114 117
968 922
5.2 Non-financial assets
(a) Other assets
Prepayments 968 922
Inventories 266 241
Provision for stock obsolescence (19) (10)
Total other assets 1,215 1,153

Prepayments are those expenses paid before services are rendered which are expected to occur in a subsequent period.

Inventories consist of Stores, Materials and Nursery plant stock held for distribution are measured at cost, adjusted when
applicable for any loss of service potential. All other inventories, including land held for sale, are measured at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Where inventories are acquired for no cost or nominal consideration, they are measured at
current replacement cost at the date of acquistion.
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$'000 $'000
Note 5 Council's financial position (continued)

(b} Intangible assets

Software 1,046 1,092
Gross carrying amount

Balance at beginning of year 2,940 3,295
Additions 407 576
Disposals (249) (931)
Balance at end of year 3,098 2,940
Accumulated amortisation and impairment

Balance at beginning of year (1,848) (2,355)
Amortisation expense (444) (424)
Disposals 240 931
Balance at end of year (2,052) (1,848)
Net book value at the end of the year 1,046 1,092

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised as an expense on a systematic basis over the asset's useful life. Amortisation
is generally calculated on a straight line basis, at a rate that allocates the asset value, less any estimated residual value over
its estimated useful life. Estimates of the remaining lives and amortisation method are reviewed at least annually and
adjustments made where appropriate.

5.3 Payables
(a) Trade and other payables

Trade payables 20,447 15,365
Total trade and other payables 20,447 15,365

(b) Trust funds and deposits

MNarre Warren User Group 1,864 1,861
Fire Services Property Levy 1,492 1,282
Deposits for asset protection 5,400 5,444
Other deposits 2,208 2,005
Total trust funds and deposits 10,964 10,592

Amounts received as deposits and retention amounts controlled by Council are recognised as trust funds until they are
returned, transferred in accordance with the purpose of the receipt, or forfeited, resulting in Council gaining control of the
funds, are to be recognised as revenue at the time of forfeit

Purpose and nature of items

Marre Warren User Group (NWUG) - Council holds the cash investment for NWUG and surplus is generated from the interest
and gas royalty retumns less site monitoring costs.

Fire Services Property Levy - Council is the collection agent for the Fire Services Property Levy on behalf of the State
Government. Council remits amounts received on a quarterly basis. Amounts disclosed are to be remitted to the State
Government in line with this process.

Deposits for asset protection - Deposits are taken by Council in relation to building works to protect Council's assets.

Other deposits - Deposits are taken by Council as a form of surety in a number of circumstances such as tender deposits,
contract deposits and the use of civic facilities. Other deposits also include Retention amounts where Council has a
contractual right to retain certain amounts until a contractor has met certain requirements or a related warrant or defect period
has elapsed. Subject to the satisfactory completion of the contractual obligations, or the elapsing of time, these amounts will
be paid to the relevant contractor in line with Council's contractual obligations.
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Note 5

54

Council's financial position (continued)

Interest-bearing liabilities

Current
Loans and borrowings - secured (1)
Finance lease

Non-current
Loans and borrowings - secured (1)
Finance lease

Total

Annual Report 2018-19

(1) Council's borrowings are secured by way of mortgage over general rate income.

(a) The maturity profile for Council's borrowings is:
Mot later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

Borrowings are initially measured at fair value, being the cost of the interest bearing liabilities, net of transaction costs. The
measurement basis subsequent to initial recognition depends on whether Council has categorised its interest-bearing
liabilities as either financial liabilities designated at fair value through the profit and loss, or financial liabilities at amortised
cost. Any difference between the initial recognised amount and the redemption value is recognised in net result over the
period of the borrowing using the effective interest method. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the

interest bearing liabilities. Council determines the classification of its interest bearing liabilities at initial recognition.

(b) The maturity profile for Council's finance lease liabilities is:

Mot later than one year
Later than one year and not later than five years

Minimum future lease payments
Less future finance charges
Present value of minimum lease payments

The Finance Lease repayments are specified within the loan agreements with CarePark Pty Ltd.

Provisions

2019
Balance at beginning of the financial year

Additional provisions
Amounts used

Increase in the discounted amount arising
because of time and effect of any change in the
discount rate

Balance at the end of the financial year

2018
Balance at beginning of the financial year

Additional provisions
Amounts used

Increase in the discounted amount arising
because of time and effect of any change in the
discount rate

Balance at the end of the financial year

Annual Report 2018-19

2019 2018
$'000 $'000
5,000 -
a7 57
5,047 57
- 5,000
- 42
- 5,042
5,047 5,099
5,000 -
- 5,000
5,000 5,000
a7 57
- 42
47 99
51 109
4 10
47 99
Employee Other Total
Provisions Provisions
$'000 $'000 $'000
16,968 - 16,968
5,633 108 5,741
(5,483) - (5,483)
757 - 757
17,875 108 17,983
16,460 - 16,460
6,472 - 6,472
(5.940) - (5,940)
(24) - (24)
16,968 - 16,968
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$'000 $'000
Note 5 Council's financial position (continued)

(a) Employee provisions

Current provision expected to be wholly settled within 12 months

Annual leave 4,219 4,187
Long service leave 1,063 862
5,282 5,049
Current provision expected to be wholly settled after 12 months
Annual leave 1,064 1,026
Long service leave 9,997 9,393
11,061 10,419
Total current employee provisions 16,343 15,468
Non-current
Long service leave 1,532 1,500
Total non- current employee provisions 1,532 1,500
Aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions
Current 16,343 15,468
Non-current 1,532 1,500
Total aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions 17 875 16,968

(b) Other provisions

Current 108 -
108 -

The calculation of employee costs and benefits includes all relevant on-costs and are calculated as follows at reporting date:

Wages and salaries and annual leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and annual leave which are expected to be wholly seftled
within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in the provision for employee benefits in respect of employee services
up to the reporting date, classified as current liabilities and measured at their nominal values.

Liabilities that are not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in the provision for
employee benefits as current liabilities, measured at present value of the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are
settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of settlement.

Long service leave

Liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits. LSL is measured at present value.
Unconditional LSL is disclosed as a current liability. Conditional LSL that has been accrued, where an employee is yet to
reach a qualifying term of employment, is disclosed as a non-current liability.

2019 2018
Key assumptions
- discount rate 1.32% 2.65%
- wages escalation rate 3.50% 3.30%
- settlement rate 9.68% 8.58%
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$'000 $'000
Note 5 Council's financial position (continued)
5.6 Other Liabilities

Non-current
Clayton Landfill Funding Obligation 1,034 903
Total other liabilities - non-current 1,034 903
Council holds an interest of 14.12% (2017/18:14.12%) in Regional Landfill Clayton South. The principal activity is the
provision of a refuse disposal site for member Councils. The liability represents Council's share of future funding for the
Clayton landfill site's aftercare management costs. The Clayton landfill provision is calculated using the present value of
aftercare costs associated with the site based on independent advice from landfill experts Golder Associates.
The provision includes capping and gas infrastructure capital works and additional aftercare management costs for the next
26 years until 2045. The provision is reassessed at the end of each reporting period in order to ensure that it accurately
reflects the cost of aftercare management of the site. Further costs may arise for future aftercare of the landfill site however
at this stage, these costs are too uncertain to reliably determine. At balance date the landfill itself retains sufficient liquidity to
fund the post closure capital works and aftercare management costs for the medium term. It is, however likely that additional
Council funding will be required to support the entity in the longer term.
Whitehorse City Council has a joint arrangement interest in the Regional Landfill Clayton South together
with four other Councils:
Whitehorse City Council 14.12%
Monash City Council 16.80%
Boroondara City Council 35.22%
Glen Eira City Council 21.10%
Stonnington City Council 12 76%

100.00%

5.7 Financing Arrangements
Bank overdraft 100 100
Credit card faciliies 75 60
Total facilities 175 160
Used facilities 56 54
Unused facilities 119 106
175 160
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Note 5

Council's financial position (continued)

Commitments

Annual Report 2018-19

Council has entered into the following commitments. Commitments are not recognised in the Balance Sheet. Commitments
are disclosed at their nominal value and presented inclusive of the GST payable.

2019

Operating

Street sweeping

Community programs
Cleaning of Council buildings
Maintenance of Council assets
Professional services

Other services

Total operating commitments

Capital
Buildings

Information Technology
Parks open spaces and
streetscapes

Total capital commitments

2018

Operating

Street sweeping

Community programs

Cleaning of Council buildings
Maintenance of Council assets
Professional services

Other services

Total operating commitments

Capital

Buildings

Information Technology
Parks open spaces and
streetscapes

Total capital commitments

Annual Report 2018-19

Later than 2
1 year and years and not
Less than 1 not later than later than 5 Later than 5
year 2 years years years Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
1,168 531 - 1.699
87 - - 87
1,607 1,581 1.578 4,766
689 647 - 1,336
489 17 177 783
19,535 19,407 5,849 44,791
23,575 22,283 7,604 53,462
29,221 436 659 30,316
540 - - 540
29,761 436 659 30,856
569 68 11 648
262 87 - 349
346 125 2 473
472 338 - 810
607 119 - 726
3,412 606 606 4,624
5,668 1,343 619 7,630
203 - - 203
433 - - 433
431 - - 431
1,067 - - 1,067
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Note 5 Council's financial position (continued)

Operating lease commitments

At the repaorting date, the Council had the following obligations under non-cancellable operating | for the lease of
equipment and land and buildings for use within Council's activities (these obligations are not recognised as liabilities):
2019 2018
$'000 $'000
Mot later than one year 219 262

Later than one year and not later than five years 303 387
Later than five years - -

522 649

Lease payments for operating leases are required by the accounting standard to be recognised on a straight line basis, rather
than expensed in the years which they are incurred.

Note € Assets we manage

6.1 Non current assets classified as held for sale

Land 1,800 18,750
Buildings - 24
1,800 18,774

In April 2016 Council having considered public submissions resolved to sell the property known as 2-4 Bruce Street Box Hill
in accordance with the public notice published in The Age on 20 February 2016. The final sale settlement had not occurred
at balance date but will be settled on 1 July 2019.

In July 2016 Council resolved at a Special Meeting to accept a formal offer to sell the property known as
517-521 Station Street, Box Hill. The final sale settlement occurred on 8th of October 2018.

Non-current asset classified as held for sale (including disposal groups) is measured at the lower of its carrying amount and
fair value less costs of disposal, and are not subject to depreciation. Non-current assets, disposal groups and related
liabilities and assets are treated as current and classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable
and the asset's sale (or disposal group sale) are expected to be completed within approximately 12 months from the date of
classification.
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Note 6 Assets we manage
Acquisition

The purchase method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets, being the fair value of assets provided as
consideration at the date of acquisition plus any incidental costs aftributable fo the acquisition. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

Where assets are constructed by Council, cost includes all materials used in construction, direct labour and an appropriate
share of directly attributable variable and fixed overheads.

In accordance with Council's policy, the threshold limits have been applied when recognising assefs within an applicable
asset class and unless otherwise stated are consistent with the prior year.

Asset recognition thresholds and depreciation periods

Depreciation
Assetclass Period Threshold Limit
Land - -
Buildings 10-100 years $7,000
Plant, machinery and equipment 2-20 years $1,000
Fixtures, fittings and furniture 4-10 years $500
Computers and telecommunications 4-5 years $500
Roads 10-200 years $8,000
Bridges 10-200 years $3,000
Footpaths and gycleways 10-200 years $8,000
Drainage 20-200 years $2,000
Recreational, leisure and community facilties 5-25 years $3000
Parks, open space and streetscapes 5-25 years $3,000
Off street car parks 10-25 years $3000
Other infrastructure 10-200 years $3,000
Intangible assets 45 years $500

Land under roads
Council recognises Land under Roads at fair value.
Depreciation and amortisation

Buildings, infrastructure, plant and equipment, and other assets having limited useful lives are systematically depreciated or
amortised over their useful lives to Council in a manner which reflects consumption of the service potential embodied in
those assets. Estimates of remaining useful lives and residual values are made on a regular basis with major asset classes
reassessed annually. Depreciation and amortisation rates and methods are reviewed annually.

Where assets have separate identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components are
assigned distinct useful lives and residual values and a separate depreciation rate is determined for each component.

Straight line depreciation is charged based on the residual useful life as determined each year.
Depreciation periods used are consistent with the prior year unless otherwise stated.
Finance Leases

Leases of assets where substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the asset, are transferred to
Council are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised, recording an asset and a liability at the lower of the
fair value of the asset and the present value of the minimum lease payments, including any guaranteed residual value.
Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of the lease liability and the interest expense. Leased assets are
depreciated on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives to Council where it is likely that Council will abtain
ownership of the asset or over the term of the lease, whichever is the shorter. Leased assets are currently being amortised
over a 3 year period.

Repairs and maintenance

Where the repair relates to the replacement of a component of an asset and the cost exceeds the capitalisation threshold
the cost is capitalised and depreciated. The carrying value of the replaced asset is expensed.
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Note € Assets we manage (continued)

Valuation of Land and Buildings

A full valuation of land, land under roads and buildings was undertaken at 30 June 2019 by an independent valuation firm,
IMatheson Stephen Valuations. The name of the valuer from the firm is Andrew Brennan (AAPI Certified Practising Valuer
Registration 73379).The valuer conducted the previous formal valuation in 2016/17 with a valuation date of 30/06/17. The
valuer reports to Council's Property Supervisor Mr Rohan Fiedler (AAPI Certified Practising Valuer Registration 62553) and
Council's Manager Property and Rates, Mr Tony Peak (AAPI Certified Practising Valuer Registration 62445).

The valuation of land is at fair value, being market value based on highest and best use permitted by relevant land planning
provisions. Where land use is restricted through existing planning provisions the valuation is reduced to reflect this
limitation. Specialised land is valued at fair value using site values adjusted for englobo (undeveloped and/or unserviced)
characteristics, access rights, and private interests of other parties and entitlements of infrastructure assets and services.
This adjustment is an unobservable input in the valuation. The adjustment has no impact on the comprehensive income
statement.

The valuation of buildings is at fair value, being the depreciated replacement cost of the buildings based on the remaining
economic life. The valuations include unobservable inputs in the valuation. The adjustment has no impact on the
comprehensive income statement.

Any significant movements in the unobservable inputs for land and land under roads will have a significant impact on the
fair value of these assets.

Details of the Council's land and buildings and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2019 are as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Date of
$000 $000 $000 Valuation
Land - MNon specialised - 47,340 - 30/06/2019
Land - Specialised - - 1,821,454 30/06/2019
Land under Roads - - 565,895 30/06/2018
Buildings - MNon specialised - 10,200 - 30/06/2019
Buildings - Specialised - - 295,152 30/06/2019
Total - 57,540 2,682,501
2019 2018
Reconciliation of specialised land $'000 $'000
Land under Roads 565,895 645,515
Parks and reserves 1,821,454 2,057,729
Total specialised land 2,387,349 2,703,244
Annual Report 2018-19 | 145

Page 267



Whitehorse City Council
Ordinary Council Meeting 21 October 2019

9.3.1 - ATTACHMENT 1. Annual Report 2018-19

Note & Assets we managed (continued)
Valuation of Infrastructure

A formal valuation of Infrastructure assets is conducted as part of a 3 year rotation cycle unless a desktop review indicates
a material diference between the fair value and the carrying amount of the assets. The previous formal valuation of Road
assets was conducted in 2016/17 and a review of these assets did not warrant a full revaluation in 2018/19. Drainage
assets were revalued in 2018/19 as part of the 3 year rotation cycle.

Valuation of roads (which includes pavement, substructure, kerb and channel, footpaths, trafic management devices and
car parks) and drainage assets are undertaken by Council’s Manager of Engineering and Environmental Services, Mr llias
Kostopoulos Dip CE, Grad Dip Mun. Eng. and Man., MIE Aust, CPEng. The valuation is at fair value based on replacement
cost less accumulated depreciation as at the date of valuation. It should be noted that in calculating the written down
replacement cost of roads and drainage that valuations of infrastructure assets were made using a Greenfields assumption.

Details of the Council's infrastructure and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2019 are as follows:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Date of

$'000 $'000 $'000 Valuation
Roads - - 207,952 30/06/2017
Bridges - - 727 30/06/2017
Footpaths and cycleways - - 48,952 30/06/2017
Drainage - - 162,420 30/06/2019
Off street car parks - - 9,907 30/06/2017
Total - - 429,958

Description of significant unobservable inputs into level 3 valuations

Specialised Land

Specialised land is valued using a market based direct comparison technique, with adjustments made for unobservable
inputs including restrictive planning zones, encumbrances on title, adjustments for land size, shape, and topography. The
extent and impact of restrictions varies and results in a reduction to surrounding land values of between 2% and 95%. The
market value of land varies significantly depending on the characteristics of the land. Currently land values range between
525 and $11,000 per square metre.

Land under Roads

The Land under Roads valuation recognises the 2019 site value across the municipality, expressed as a an average site
value rate per square metre and adjusts this rate, firsly to assume an 'inglobo’ basis (where land is undeveloped, un-
subdivided and exists in its theortical 'raw' form) and secondly to reflect the possible or actual presence of carriageway
rights and infrastructure assets to the roadways. The aggregate adjustment for these two factors is a 95% deduction from
the average site value rate to arrive at a value for Land under Roads. The calculated value of Land under Roads per square
metre was $59.21 while the assessed area of roads was 9,557,568 square metres.

Specialised Buildings

Specialised buildings are valued using a depreciated replacement cost technique. Significant unobservable inputs include
the current replacement cost and remaining useful lives of buildings. Current replacement costs are calculated on a square
metre basis and ranges from $156 o $6,955 per square metre. The remaining useful lives of buildings are determined on
the basis of the current condition of buildings and vary from 1 years to 111 years. Replacement cost is sensitive to changes
in market conditions, with any increase or decrease in cost flowing through to the valuation. Useful lives of buildings are
sensitive to changes in expectations or requirements that could either shorten or extend the useful lives of buildings.

Annual Report 2018-19 | 146

Page 268



Whitehorse City Council
Ordinary Council Meeting 21 October 2019

9.3.1 - ATTACHMENT 1. Annual Report 2018-19

Note 6 Assets managed by Council (continued)
Infrastructure Assets

Infrastructure assets are valued based on the depreciated replacement cost. Significant unobservable inputs include the
current replacement cost and remaining useful lives of infrastructure. Current replacement costs for road assets are
calculated using unit rates based on both a cubic metre basis (ranges from $128 to $736 per cubic metre) and a square
metre basis (ranges from $7.30 to $205.73 per square metre) depending on the material used. Current replacement costs
for drainage are calculated using unit rates based on metres for pipes (ranges from $96 to $1,424 per metre) and per unit
for pits (ranges from $1,363 to $5,688 per pit). The remaining useful lives of infrastructure assets are determined on the
basis of the current condition of the asset and vary from 10 years to 200 years. Replacement cost is sensitive to changes in
market conditions, with any increase or decrease in cost flowing through to the valuation. Useful lives of infrastructure are
sensitive to changes in use, expectations or requirements that could either shorten or extend the useful lives of
infrastructure assets.
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2019 2018
$'000 $'000
Note € Assets we manage (continued)

6.3 Investments in Associates

Investments in associates accounted for by the equity method are:

- Whitehorse Manningham Regional Library Corporation 4,937 4,827
- Narre Warren User Group 911 910
Fair value of Council's investment in associates and joint operation 5,848 5,737
Share of net gain/(loss) of associates

- Whitehorse Manningham Regional Library Corporation 110 (973)
- Narre Warren User Group 1 (30)
Total share of net gain/(loss) at 30 June 111 (1,003)

Associates are all entities over which Council has significant influence but no control or jeint control. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost. Council's
associates are Whitehorse Manningham Regional Library Corporation and Marre Warren User Group.

Whitehorse Manningham Regional Library Corporation

On 21 December 1995 Council's library operation was combined with the Regional Authority to form Whitehorse Manningham
Regional Library Corporation (the Corporation). Council has a 60% interest (as per funding responsibilities) and a 68.17%
(2017/18: 68.43%) economic entitlement in the net assets of the Corporation but does not have effective control, as both
Whitehorse and Manningham Councils possess the same voting rights on the board of management. The Corporation is
established by agreement between the two participating councils. The principal activity of the Corporation is the lending of
books and other materials.

2019 2018

$000 $000
Council's share of accumulated surplus/(deficit)
Council's share of accumulated surplus/(deficit) at start of year 2,142 3,102
Share of surplus(deficit) for year 128 (965)
Transfers (to) from reserves (8) (15)
Amendment to share of surplus based on audited results - 20
Share of accumulated surplus at 30 June 2,262 2,142
Council's share of reserves
Council's share of reserve at start of year 2,685 2,698
Transfers (to) from reserves (10) (13)
Council's share of reserves at end of year 2,675 2,685
Movement in carrying value of investment
Carrying value of investment at start of year 4,827 5,800
Share of surplus (deficit) for the year 128 (965)
Transfers (to) from reserves (18) (28)
Amendment to share of surplus based on audited results - 20
Carrying value of investment at end of year 4,937 4,827

Narre Warren User Group

Council holds an interest of 48.88% (2017/18: 48.88%) in Marre Warren User Group (NWUG). The principal activity of NWUG
is to monitor the closed regional landfill that was previously used by Council. Contributions by Council to NWUG during the
period totalled nil (2017/18: nil). Council holds the cash investment for NWUG and surplus is generated from the interest and
gas royalty retums less site monitoring costs.

2019 2018
$000 $000
Movement in carrying value of investment
Carrying value of investment at start of year 910 940
Share of surplus for the year 1 (30)
Carrying value of investment at end of year 911 910
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People and relationships

Council and key management remuneration

(a) Related Parties

Parent entity

Whitehorse City Council is the parent entity.

Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Arrangements

Interests in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements are detailed in note 6.3.

(b) Key Management Personnel

Details of persons holding the position of Councillor or other members of key

management personnel at any time during the year are:

Councillors

Bill Bennett - Mayor from 30 October 2018

Raylene Carr

Andrew Davenport - Mayor from 30 October 2017 to 29 October 2018

Sharon Ellis
Ben Stennett
Denise Massoud
Andrew Munroe
Prue Cutts

Tina Liu

Blair Barker

Total Number of Councillors

Chief Executive Officer and other Key Management Personnel

(c) Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

Total remuneration of key management personnel was as follows:

Short-term benefits

Post-employment benefits

Long-term benefits
Termination benefits
Total

Total Remuneration includes salary. allowances. vehicle and superannuation
The numbers of key management personnel whose total remuneration from

Council and any related entities, fall within the following bands:

Total remuneration range

$1-59,999
$10,000 - $19,999
$20,000 - $29,999
$30,000 - $39,999
$50,000 - $59,999
$60,000 - 569,999
$70,000 - 79,999
$80,000 - 589,999
$210,000 - $219,999
$230,000 - $239,999
$250,000 - $259,999
$260,000 - $269,999
$270,000 - $279,999
$280,000 - $289,999
$380,000 - $389,999
$390,000 - $399,999
$420,000 - $429,999

Annual Report 2018-19

2019 2018
No. No.

10 10

6 5

16 15
2019 2018
$'000 $'000

1,723 1,729

146 122

- 21

1,869 1,872
2019 2018
No. No.

8 8

1 -

- 1

1 1

1 -

- 1

1 2

1 1

2 -

- 1

1 -

16 15
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Note 7 People and relationships (continued)
(d) Senior Officer Remuneration
A Senior Officer is an officer of Council, other than Key Management Personnel, who:
a) has management responsibilities and reports directly to the Chief Executive; or
b) whose total annual remuneration exceeds $148,000

The number of Senior Officers are shown below in their relevant income bands:

2019 2018
No. No.

Total remuneration range
$148,000 - $149,999 - 1
$150,000 - $159,999 6 2
$160,000 - $169,999 3 2
$170,000 - $179,999 3 4
$180,000 - $189,999 5 3
$190,000 - $199,999 1 2
$200,000 - $209,999 2 2
$210,000 - $219,999 2 1

22 17
Total Remuneration for the reporting year of Senior Officers included above amounted
fo: $3,908177 $3,062,416

7.2 Related party disclosure
(a) Transactions with related parties
During the period Council did not enter into any related party transactions that required disclosure.
(b) Outstanding balances with related parties
Council did not have any outstanding balances at the end of the reporting period in relation
to transactions with a related party that required disclosure.
(c) Loans to/from related parties
There were no loans in existence at balance date that have been made, guaranteed or
secured by the council to a related party that required disclosure.
(d) Commitments to/from related parties
There were no commitments in existence at balance date that have been
made, guaranteed or secured by the council to a related party that required disclosure.
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8.1 (a) Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but are disclosed by way of note and if quantifiable, are
measured at nominal value. Contingent liabilities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable respectively.

Superannuation

Council has obligations under a defined benefit superannuation scheme that may result in the need to make additional
contributions to the scheme, matters relating to this potential obligation are outlined below. As aresult of the volatility in
financial markets the likelihood of making such contributions in future periods exists.

Future superannuation contributions

The expected contributions to be paid to the Defined Benefit category of Vision Super for the year ending 30 June 2020 is
$0.450m.

Liability Mutual Insurance

Council is a participant of the MAV Liability Mutual Insurance (LMI) Scheme. The LMI scheme provides public liability and
professional indemnity insurance cover.The LMI scheme states that each participant will remain liable to make further
contributions to the scheme in respect of any insurance year in which it was a participant to the extent of its participant's
share of any shortfall in the provision set aside in respect of that insurance year, and such liability will continue whether or not
the participant remains a participant in future insurance years.

(b) Guarantee for loans to other entities

The amounts disclosed for financial guarantees in this note are the nominal amounts of the underlying loans that are
guaranteed by the Council, not the fair value of the financial guarantees.

Loan balance Loan Loan balance Loan
outstanding guarantee outstanding guarantee

limit limit

2019 2019 2018 2018

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Vermont South Club 175 184 193 193
The Whitehorse Club 301 500 334 500
Elgar Park Regional Hockey Association 200 229 229 229
676 913 756 922

Financial guarantee contracts are not recognised as a liability in the balance sheet unless the lender has exercised their right
to call on the guarantee or Council has other reasons to believe that itis probable that the right will be exercised.

8.2 Change in accounting standards

The following new AAS's have been issued that are mandatory for the 30 June 2019 reporting period.

Financial Instruments (AASB 9)

AASB 9 adopts an ‘expected loss model' for impairment assessment, where the expected losses are recognised throughout
the life of a loan or other financial asset measured at amortised cost, and not only after loss event has been identified. The
revised standard no longer requires a credit event (e.g. a receivable is past due) to have occurred before recognising credit
losses. As a result, impairment losses will be recognised earlier and at more regular intervals than under the existing ‘incurred
loss model of AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Disagqregated Disclosures (AASB 1052)

AASB 1052 requires disclosure of information about the assets, income and expenses of the local government according to
the broad functions or activities of the local government, whether they be related to service delivery or undertaken for
commercial objectives. Please refer to Note 2.1 for this disclosure.
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8.2 Change in accounting standards (continued)

The following new AAS's have been issued that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2019 reporting period. Council has
assessed these pending standards and has identified the following potential impacts that will flow from the application of
these standards in future reporting periods.

Revenue from confracts with customers (AASB 15) (applies 201920 for LG sector)

The standard shifts the focus from the transaction-level to a contract-based approach. Recognition is determined based on
what the customer expects to be entitled to (rights and obligations ), while measurement encompasses estimation by the
entity of the amount expected to be entitled for performing under the contract. The full impact of this standard is not known
however it is most likely to impact where contracts extend over time, where there are rights and obligations that may vary the
timing or amount of the consideration, or where there are multiple performance elements. This has the potential to impact on
the recognition of certain grant income.

Amendments fo Australian Accounting Standards — Deferral of AASB 15 for Not-for-Profit Entities (AASB 2016-7)
(applies 2019/20)

This Standard defers the mandatory effective date of AASB 15 for not-for-profit entities from 1 January 2018 to 1 January
2019.

Leases (AASB 16) (applies 2019/20)

The classification of leases as either finance leases or operating leases is eliminated for lessees. Leases will be recognised
in the Balance Sheet by capitalising the present value of the minimum lease payments and showing a right-of-use’ asset,
while future lease payments will be recognised as a financial liability. The nature of the expense recognised in the profit or
loss will change. Rather than being shown as rent, or as leasing costs, it will be recognised as depreciation on the right-of-
use' asset, and an interest charge on the lease liability. The interest charge will be calculated using the effective interest
method, which will result in a gradual reduction of interest expense over the lease term.

Council has elected to adopt the modified retrospective approach to the transition to the new lease standard. This will mean
that only existing operating leases for non low value assets, with remaining terms greater than 12 months, will be recognised
on transition (1 July 2019). Based on our current lease commitments and an assumption of a continuation of the current
leasing arrangements Council expects that the transition to the new standard will see the initial recognition of $1.2m in lease
related assets and an equivalent liability

Income of Not-for-Profit Entities (AASB 1058 ) (applies 2019/20)

This standard is expected to apply to certain transactions currently accounted for under AASBE 1004 Contributions and
establishes revenue recognition principles for transactions where the consideration to acquire an asset is significantly less
than fair value to enable a not-for-profit entity to further its objectives.

8.3 Financial Instruments
(a) Objectives and policies

The Council's principal financial instruments comprise cash assets, term deposits, receivables (excluding statutory
receivables), payables (excluding statutory payables) and bank borrowings. Details of the significant accounting policies and
methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and
expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument is disclosed in the
Motes to the Financial Statements. Risk managementis carried out by senior management under policies approved by the
Council. These policies include identification and analysis of the risk exposure to Council and appropriate procedures,
controls and risk minimisation.

(b) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of our financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in

market prices. The Council's exposure to market risk is primarily through interest rate risk with only insignificant exposure to
other price risks and no exposure to foreign currency risk.
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Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the value of a financial instrument or cash flows associated with the instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. Council's interest rate liability risk arises primarily from long term loans and
borrowings at fixed rates which exposes Council to fair value interest rate risk. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the
future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Council has minimal
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk through its cash and deposits that are at floating rates.

Investment of surplus funds is made with approved financial institutions under the Local Govemment Act 1989,

Council manages interest rate risk by adopting an investment policy that ensures:

- diversification of investment product,
- monitoring of retum on investment, and
- benchmarking of returns and comparison with budget.

There has been no significant change in the Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing
interest rate risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

Interest rate movements have not been sufficiently significant during the year to have an impact on the Council's year end
result.

() Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obligations under a financial instrument and cause
Council to make a financial loss. Council has exposure to credit risk on some financial assets included in our balance sheet.
To help manage this risk:

- Council may require collateral where appropriate; and

- Council only invests surplus funds with financial institutions which have a recognised credit rating specified in Council's
investment palicy.

Receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across the ratepayer, business and government

sectors. Credit risk associated with Council's financial assets is minimal because the main debtor is secured by a
charge over the rateable property.

There are no material financial assets which are individually determined fo be impaired.

Council may also be subject to credit risk for transactions which are not included in the balance sheet, such as when Council
provides a guarantee for another party. Details of Council's guarantees for loans to other entities are disclosed in Note 8.1(b).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date to recognised financial assets is the carrying amount,
net of any provisions for impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial
statements. Council does not hold any collateral.
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(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a result of Council's operational liquidity requirements it will not have sufficient funds to
settle the transaction when required or will be forced to sell a financial asset at below value or may be unable to settle or
recover a financial asset.

To help reduce these risks, Council:

- has a liquidity policy which targets a minimum and average level of cash and cash equivalents to be maintained;

- has readily accessible standby facilities and other funding arrangements in place;

- has a liquidity portfolio structure that requires surplus funds to be invested within various bands of liquid instruments;
- monitors budget to actual performance on a regular basis; and

- sets limits on borrowings relating to the percentage of loans to rate revenue and percentage of loan principal
repayments to rate revenue.

Council's maximum exposure to liquidity risk is the carrying amounts of financial liabilities as disclosed in the
balance sheet and the amounts relating to financial guarantees disclosed in Note 8.1(b) and is deemed insignificant
on prior periods' data and curent assessment of risk.

There has been no significant change in Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing liquidity
risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

With the exception of borrowings, all financial liabilities are expected to be settled within normal terms of trade. Details of the
maturity profile for borrowings are disclosed at Note 5.4.

Unless otherwise stated, the camying amounts of financial instruments reflect their fair value.
(f) Sensitivity disclosure analysis

Taking into account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and management's knowledge and
experience of the financial markets, Council believes the following movements are 'reasonably possible' over the next 12
months:

- A parallel shift of + 0.25% and - 0.75% in market interest rates (AUD) from year-end rates of 2.57%.

These movements will not have a material impact on the valuation of Council's financial assets and liabilities however there
may be a material impact of approximately $1.5m on the results of Council's operations if interest rates are reduced by 0.75%
aver the course of the vear

8.4 Fair value measurement
Fair value hierarchy

Council's financial assets and liabilities are not valued in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, Council's financial assets
and liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

Council measures certain assets and liabilities at fair value where required or permitted by Australian Accounting Standards.
AASB 13 Fair value measurement, aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a definition of fair value
and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across Australian Accounting Standards.

AASB 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
fransaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value under AASB 13 is an exit price regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within a fair
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurementas a
whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable; and

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Council has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
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In addition, Council determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

Revaluation

Subsequent to the initial recognition of assets, non-current physical assets, other than plant and equipment are measured at
fair value, being the price that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability) in an ordery transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. At balance date, the Council reviewed the carrying value of the
individual classes of assets measured at fair value to ensure that each asset materially approximated its fair value. Where the
carrying value materially differed from the fair value at balance date, the class of asset was revalued.

Fair value valuations are determined in accordance with a valuation hierarchy. Changes to the valuation hierarchy will only
occurif an external change in the restrictions or limitations of use of an asset result in changes to the permissible or practical
highest and best use of the asset. In addition, Council undertakes a formal revaluation of land, buildings, and infrastructure
assets on a regular basis ranging from two to three years. The valuation is performed by experience Council Officers and
independent experts.

Where the assets are revalued, the revaluation increments are credited directly to the asset revaluation reserve except to the
extent that an increment reverses a prior year decrement for that class of asset that had been recognised as an expense in
which case the increment is recognised as revenue up to the amount of the expense.

Revaluation decrements are recognised as an expense except where prior increments are included in the asset revaluation
reserve for that class of asset in which case the decrement is taken to the reserve to the extent of the remaining increments.
Within the same class of assets, revaluation increments and decrements within the year are offset.

Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, Council reviews the carrying value of its assets to determine whether there is any indication that these
assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, is compared to the assets camying value. Any excess of the assets camying
value over its recoverable amountis expensed to the Comprehensive Income Statement, unless the asset is carried at the
revalued amount in which case, the impairment loss is recognised directly against the revaluation surplus in respect of the
same class of asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus for that
same class of asset.

8.5 Events occurring after balance date
In April 2016 Council having considered public submissions resolved to sell the property known as 2-4 Bruce Street Box Hill

in accordance with the public notice published in The Age on 20 February 2016. The final sale settlement had not occurred
at balance date but was seftled on 1 July 2019.

Council's Chief Executive Officer, Noelene Duff advised Councillors on the 29th of January 2019 that she intends to finish her
employment at the conclusion of her current contract on the 6th of August2019. Council has appointed Simon McMillan as
the new Chief Executive Officer and he will commence his contract on the 2nd of September 2019.

There were no further matters that occured after balance date that require disclosure in the financial report.
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9.1

Other matters

Reserves

Summary of Reserves

Asset revaluation reserve
Other reserves
Total Reserves

(a) Asset revaluation reserve
2019

Property
Land
Buildings

Infrastructure

Roads

Footpaths and cycleways
Drainage

Total asset revaluation reserves
2018

Property

Land

Buildings

Infrastructure

Roads

Footpaths and cycleways
Drainage

Total asset revaluation reserves

Annual Report 2018-19

The asset revaluation reserve is used to record the increased (net) value of Council's assets over time.

(b) Other reserves
2019

Statutory
Public open space reserve
Public open space reserve - land acquisitions
Car parking in lieu reserve

Council Resolution
Development reserve

Aged care reserve

Art collection reserve
Waste management reserve
Energy fund reserve

Total other reserves

Annual Report 2018-19

Balance at Increment Transfer to Balance at
beginning of (Decrement) accumulated end of
reporting surplus reporting
period period
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2,232,819 (293,934) - 1,938,885
84,924 64,538 (22,672) 126,790
2,317,743 (229,396) (22672) 2,065,675
1,882,078 (322,821) - 1,559,257
184,049 82 - 184,131
2,066,127 (322,739) - 1,743,388
92,346 - - 92,346
5,577 - - 5,577
68,769 28,805 - 97.574
166,692 28,805 - 195,497
2,232,819 (293,934) - 1,938,885
1,882,078 - - 1,882,078
185,955 (1,906) - 184,049
2,068,033 (1,906) - 2,066,127
92,346 - - 92,346
5,577 - - 5,577
68,769 - - 68,769
166,692 - - 166,692
2,234,725 (1,906) - 2,232,819
Balance at Transfer from  Transfer to Balance at
beginning of accumulated accumulated end of
reporting surplus surplus reporting
period period
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
14,973 3,784 (581) 18,176
18,262 5.565 - 23,827
34 - - 34
33,269 9,349 (581) 42,037
39.269 54,490 (15,583) 78,176
10,638 282 (5,996) 4,924
11 - (4) 7
1,737 - (369) 1,368
- 417 (139) 278
51,655 55,189 (22,091) 84,753
84,924 64,538 (22672) 126,790
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Balance at Transfer from  Transfer to Balance at
beginning of accumulated accumulated end of
reporting surplus surplus reporting
period period
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2018
Statutory
Public open space reserve 11,716 4,210 (953) 14,973
Public open space reserve - land acquisitions 12,088 6,174 - 18,262
Car parking in lieu reserve 34 - - 34
23,838 10,384 (953) 33,269
Council Resolution
Development reserve 35,075 4997 (803) 39,269
Aged care reserve 10,43 267 (60) 10,638
Art collection reserve 11 - - 11
Waste management reserve 2,999 - - 1,262 1,737
48,516 5,264 (2125) 51,655
Total other reserves 72,354 15,648 (3,078) 84,924

Public open space reserve

This reserve comprises funds collected from contributions to public open space made by developers. The funds in this
reserve are restricted for expenditure on public open space. Interest income generated from the reserve is to be reinvested
back into the reserve.

Public open space reserve - land acquisitions

This reserve comprises funds collected from contributions to public open space made by developers. The funds in this
reserve are restricted for expenditure on public open space, specifically land acquisitions. Interest income generated from the
reserve is to be reinvested back into the reserve.

Car parking in lieu reserve
This reserve comprises funds provided by developers instead of providing car parking. The funds from this reserve are
restricted for expenditure on car parking.

Development reserve

This reserve is used for funding capital works programs and for proceeds from sale of assets no longer required by Council.
The funds in this reserve are required to be expended in accordance with the reserve goveming principles established by
Council. Interest income generated from the reserve is to be reinvested back into the reserve.

Aged care reserve

This reserve holds in trust the net proceeds secured from the sale as a "going concem" of Council's residential aged care
facilities. Access to this reserve must have a legitimate relevance to the aged and disability related groups and must be
consistent with the healthy positive ageing strategy adopted by Council in 2005/06. Interest income generated from the
reserve is to be reinvested back into the reserve.

Art collection reserve
This reserve was established by Council in 2002/03 for the purpose of deaccessioning unwanted art works and for future
purchases of art works.

Waste management reserve

This reserve was established in 2013/14 as a result of the previous federal govemment's introduction of the carbon tax levy.
The amount represents the difference between the initial carbon tax per tonne that was announced and the actual price
charged by independent landfill operators during the past two years. As the carbon tax levy is now abolished, the reserve will
be used to rehabilitate landfill sites throughout the municipality.

Energy fund reserve

This reserve has been established in 2018/19 after the decision was made by Council to cease purchase of green power and
undertake other sustainability measures to reduce Council's carbon footprint It is intended to use the savings from this
decision for reinvestment in achieving sustainability improvements in Whitehorse, and this will include a mix of capital works
and operational initiatives. Council plans to transfer $0.38m into the reserve and use $0.55m of funds from the reserve for
capital and operational improvements in 2019/20.
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2019 2018
$'000 $'000
9.2 Reconciliation of Cash Flows from Operating Activities to Surplus
Surplus for the year 71,504 37,836
Contributions - non-monetary (Mote 3.5) (647) (1,107)
Recognition of Finance Lease Equipment - (144)
Depreciation and amortisation (Mote 4.3) 25,212 24,918
MNet gain on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant
and equipment (MNote 3.6 & 6.2) (35.227) (539)
Share of net (gain)/loss of associates (Mote 6.3) (111) 1,003
Share of loss in Regional Landfill Clayton South (Mote 4.6) 131 349
60,862 62,316
Change in assets and liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (2.484) (227)
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets (62) 1,170
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 5,691 (1,213)
Increase/(decrease) in trust funds and depaosits 372 693
Increase/(decrease) in provisions 1,015 535
Net cash provided by operating activities 65,394 63,274

9.3 Superannuation

Council makes the majority of its employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to the Local Authorities
Superannuation Fund (the Fund). This Fund has two categories of membership, accumulation and defined benefit, each of
which is funded differently. Obligations for contributions to the Fund are recognised as an expense in Comprehensive Income
Statement when they are made or due.

Accumulation

The Fund's accumulation category, Vision Super Saver, receives both employer and employee contributions on a progressive
basis. Employer contributions are normally based on a fixed percentage of employee eamings (for the year ended 30 June
2019, this was 9.5% required under Superannuation Guarantee legislation (2017/18 9.5%).

Defined Benefit

Council does not use defined benefit accounting for its defined benefit obligations under the Fund's Defined Benefit
category. This is because the Fund's Defined Benefit category is a pooled multi-employer sponsored plan.

There is no propaortional split of the defined benefit liabilities, assets or costs between the participating employers as the
defined benefit obligation is a floating obligation between the participating employers and the only time that the aggregate
obligation is allocated to specific employers is when a call is made. As a result, the level of participation of Council in the
Fund cannot be measured as a percentage compared with other participating employers. Therefore, the Fund Actuary is
unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets and costs between employers for the purposes of AASB 119.

Funding arrangements

Council makes employer contributions to the Defined Benefit category of the Fund at rates determined by the Trustee on the
advice of the Fund Actuary.

As at 30 June 2018, an interim actuarial investigation was held as the Fund provides lifetime pensions in the Defined Benefit
category. The vested benefit index (VBI) of the Defined Benefit category of which Council is a contributing employer was
106.0%. The financial assumptions used to calculate the VBIs were:

Met investment retums 6.0% pa
Salary information 3.5% pa
Price inflation (CPI) 2.0% pa

Vision Super has advised that the estimated VBI at 30 June 2019 was 107.1%.

The VBI is to be used as the primary funding indicator. Because the VBl was above 100%, the 30 June 2018 interim actuarial
investigation determined the Defined Benefit category was in a satisfactory financial position and that no change was
necessary to the Defined Benefit category's funding arangements from prior years.
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Employer contributions
Regular contributions

On the basis of the results of the 2018 interim actuarial investigation conducted by the Fund Actuary, Council makes
employer contributions to the Fund's Defined Benefit category at rates determined by the Fund's Trustee. For the year ended
30 June 2019, this rate was 9.5% of members' salaries (9.5% in 2017/2018). This rate will increase in line with any increases
in the SG contribution rate.

In addition, Council reimburses the Fund to cover the excess of the benefits paid as a consequence of retrenchment above
the funded resignation or retirement benefit.

Funding calls

If the Defined Benefit category is in an unsatisfactory financial position at an actuarial investigation or the Defined Benefit
category's VBI is below its shortfall limit at any time other than the date of the actuarial investigation, the Defined Benefit
category has a shortfall for the purposes of SPS 160 and the Fund is required to put a plan in place so that the shortfall is
fully funded within three years of the shortfall occurring. The Fund monitors its VBI on a quarterly basis and the Fund has set
its shortfall limit at 97%.

In the event that the Fund Actuary determines that there is a shortfall based on the above requirement, the Fund's
participating employers (including Council) are required to make an employer contribution to cover the shortfall.

Using the agreed methodology, the shortfall amount is apportioned between the participating employers based on the pre-1
July 1993 and post-30 June 1993 service liabilities of the Fund's Defined Benefit category, together with the employer's
payroll at 30 June 1993 and at the date the shortfall has been calculated.

Due to the nature of the contractual obligations between the participating employers and the Fund, and that the Fund
includes lifetime pensioners and their reversionary beneficiaries, it is unlikely that the Fund will be wound up.

If there is a surplus in the Fund, the surplus cannot be retumed to the participating employers.

In the event that a participating employer is wound-up, the defined benefit obligations of that employer will be transferred to
that employer's successor.

The 2018 triennial actuarial investigation surplus amounts
An actuarial invesfigation is conducted annually for the Defined Benefit category of which Council is a contributing employer.
Generally, a full actuarial investigation conducted every three years and interim actuarial investigations are conducted for

each intervening year. An interim investigation was conducted as at 30 June 2018 and a full actuarial investigation was
conducted as at 30 June 2017.

The Fund's actuarial investigation identified the following for the Defined Benefit category of which Council is a contributing

employer:

2018 2017

$m $m
- A VBI surplus $5131.9 $69.8
- A total service liability surplus $218.3 $193.5
- A discounted accrued benefits surplus 52491 $228.8

The VBI surplus means that the market value of the fund's assets supporting the defined benefit obligations exceed the
vested benefits that the defined benefit members would have been entitled to if they had all exited on 30 June 2018.

The total service liability surplus means that the current value of the assets in the Fund's Defined Benefit category plus
expected future contributions exceeds the value of expected future benefits and expenses as at 30 June 2018.

The discounted accrued benefit surplus means thatthe current value of the assets in the Fund's Defined Benefit category
exceeds the value of benefits payable in the future but accrued in respect of service to 30 June 2018.

Council was notified of the 30 June 2018 VBI during August 2018 (2017: August 2017)
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The 2019 interim actuarial investigation

A interim actuarial investigation is being conducted for the Fund's position as at 30 June 2019 as the Fund provides lifetime
pensions in the Defined Benefit category. It is anticipated that this actuarial investigation will be completed by October 2019.

9.3(1) Superannuation contributions

Contributions by Council to the above superannuation plans for the financial year ended 30 June 2019 are detailed below:

Scheme ;:::r:: Rate
Vision Super Defined benefits 9.5%
Vision Super Accumulation 9.5%
AMP Accumulation 9.5%
Hesta Accumulation 9.5%
Chbus Accumulation 9.5%
Others Accumulation 9.5%

There were no contributions outstanding and loans issued from or to the above schemes as at 30 June 2019.

2019
$'000

437
3,325
57
313
75

1,857

2018
$'000

430
3,160
89
292
61

1,480

The expected contributions to be paid to the Defined Benefit category of Vision Super for the year ending 30 June 2020 is

$0.450m
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How to Access This Report

The Whitehorse City Council Annual Report 2018/19 is compliant with Council’s Access and Inclusion Policy

and meets the double-A conformance to web content accessibility guidelines.
This Annual Report is available in various formats, as follows:

*  PDF available from our website
* large print

* hardcopy.

You are welcome to contact Council for a copy of the Whitehorse City Council Annual Report 2017-18 by

telephoning 03 9262 6333 or sending an email to customer.service@whitehorse.vic.gov.au.

Acknowledgement of Victorian State Government Funding

ORIA

State
Government

Whitehorse City Council acknowledges the support of the Victorian State Government, which enables the
delivery of some of Council’s projects and programs, including:

* Aged and disability services

¢  Community safety

*  Family and children

* Maternal and child health

* School crossing

* Business and economic development
*  Community planning

* Natural disaster

* Capital projects

Community Input Council welcomes community input in the development of its plans and strategies, as
well as feedback on any of its publications. Access to these is provided via the website

www.whitehorse.vic.gov.au, in person, or by calling our Customer Service team: 03 9262 6333.
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF COUNTRY

In the spirit of reconciliation, Whitehorse City Council acknowledges
N the Wurundijeri people as the traditional custodians of the land.
WHITEHORSE We pay our respects to their Elders past and present.

CONTACTING COUNCIL

Postal Address: Whitehorse City Council
Locked Bag 2
Nunawading Delivery Centre 3131

Telephone: 9262 6333
Fax: 9262 6490
NRS: 133 677 then quote 9262 6333
(Service for deaf or hearing impaired people)

131 450
(Telephone Interpreter Service. Call and ask
to be connected to Whitehorse City Council)

Email: customer.service@whitehorse.vic.gov.au
Website: www . whitehorse.vic.gov.au

Service Centres:  Whitehorse Civic Centre
379-397 Whitehorse Road, Nunawading 3131

Box Hill Town Hall Service Centre
Box Hill Town Hall
1022 Whitehorse Road, Box Hill 3128

Forest Hill Service Centre

Shop 275

Forest Hill Chase Shopping Centre
Canterbury Road, Forest Hill 3131

SUSTAINABLE AND PROUD OF IT

This publication is printed on 100% recycled paper.
Publication no. 300818183/2019
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CITY OF

SOCIAL MEDIA GUIDE

WHITEHORSE COUNCILLORS

1. PURPOSE

The Social Media Guide - Councillors has been developed to promote and guide the use of social media by
the elected Councillors of Whitehorse City Council. Social media provides opportunities to build
communities and to encourage online conversations through the exploration and consideration of diverse
thoughts and views.

This Guide is intended to assist Councillors to use social media in a way that minimises exposure of Council
and Councillors to legal and reputational risk.

To mitigate risk and reputational damage Councillors should disclose on their personal page or account ‘/
am an elected Councillor at Whitehorse City Council and comments made by me on this page and elsewhere
using this account are my own views and might not represent the position of Council.’

It should be considered in conjunction with relevant legislation, the Councillor Code of Conduct, the Media
Relations Policy, and other Council policies and procedures.

2. OBIJECTIVES
The Guide outlines advice for Councillors in relation to confidentiality, governance, legal, privacy and
regulatory parameters when using social media to conduct Council business. It aims to:

e Qutline acceptable use of social media on behalf of Whitehorse City Council
¢ Promote effective and productive community engagement through social media
¢ Minimise miscommunication and manage risks to Council associated with the use of social media
e Offer guidance and support to Councillors on the use of social media in their role
3. SCOPE

This Guide applies to use of social media by Councillors when used in their:
e Professional capacity, in the course of fulfilling their functions and duties to Council; and

s Personal capacity, where that use is connected with, or might otherwise impact on, Council, its
reputation and/or its effectiveness.

4. DEFINITIONS

Social media is a group of online applications designed to allow information to be created, shared, discussed
and disseminated. Social media includes the sites, tools, channels and engagement platforms used to publish
content and promote connections and conversations. “Social media” includes but is not limited to:

s Social networking sites (e.g. Twitter, Facebook, LinkedIn, Snapchat, Pinterest, WeChat, Weibo)

e Video and photo sharing websites (e.g. YouTube, Instagram, Flickr, Vimeo, Periscope, Vine, Youku)

e Blogs, including those hosted by social channels or media outlets (e.g. Tumblr, ‘comments’ or ‘your
say’ feature on websites)

e Wikis and online collaborations (e.g. Wikipedia)

e Forums, discussion boards and groups (e.g. Google groups, Reddit, Whirlpool)
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e Podcasting

® Instant messaging (e.g. WhatsApp, Facebook Messenger)

e Chatrooms

e (Geo-spatial tagging (e.g. Google maps, Foursquare)

e Online gaming platforms (e.g. Gamification apps, Fortnite, Second life, Pokémon Go)

Any other tool or emerging technology that allows individuals to publish or communicate in a digital
environment

Councillor Professional use is defined as use of social media in a capacity as a representative of Council.

Abusive or inappropriate content includes, but is not limited to:

Profanity

Any material that matches the definition of ‘inappropriate activity’ in Council’s IT Acceptable Use
Policy

Inappropriate sexual language

Discriminatory material in relation to a person or group based on the attributes outlined in Council’s
Equal Opportunity and Human Rights Policy

Statements that breach human rights

Materials that would breach applicable laws include, but are not limited to:

Content that is false or misleading

Copyright or trademark protected materials

Illegal material or materials designed to encourage law breaking

Personal details, images or references to Councillors, Council employees or third parties that may
breach privacy and/or defamation laws

Statements that may be considered to be bullying or harassment

5. GUIDELINES

Whitehorse City Council recognises that social media provides new opportunities for dynamic and engaging
two-way communications that can complement existing communication and further improve information,
access and delivery of key services.

5.1

5.2

5.3

Councillors should:

e Reinforce the integrity, reputation and values of Whitehorse City Council including adhering to
codes of conduct, policies and procedures.

s Endeavour to support the Council and fellow Councillors in their words, deeds and actions in
any form of social or media commentary, social media posts or comments.

e Behave with inclusivity, honesty, respect and integrity.

¢ Comply with relevant laws and regulations and ensure confidentiality of Council information.

e Secure and preserve the positive public image of, and confidence in, the office of Councillor at
all times.

The Mayor should be kept informed of any relevant social media content or Councillor contact with
organisations, resident groups or others that could foreseeably escalate into adverse media or social
media attention and which might impact or compromise W hitehorse City Council.

It is Councillors’ responsibility to manage their social media accounts including creating and sharing
content, gaining permissions for the use of images and other materials if required and monitoring
comments.
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PUBLIC COMMENT

5.4 While the Mayor and Councillors may use their own social media accounts to express personal views,
they are strongly encouraged to have a dedicated Councillor account separate to any other personal or
business accounts they might hold.

5.5 Councillors should ensure that they have appropriate privacy settings on all social media sites
moderated, managed or operated by them, bearing in mind that all social media posts are public to
some degree.

5.6 Councillors should identify and separate personal opinions from Council position. When contributing
to public comment on social media, Councillors should act in accordance with the principles of the
Councillor Code of Conduct when discussing Council matters.

5.7 When using social media to conduct Council business, Councillors should not publish content in
exchange for reward of any kind.

6. RESPONSIBILITIES
6.1 Councillors are responsible for:

1. Exercising their responsibilities and obligations as outlined in the Local Government Act 1989, the
Councillor Code of Conduct and the Media Relations Policy to, among other things, act with integrity
and impartially discharge his or her own responsibilities in the interests of the local community.

2. Being mindful they do not post, like or comment on abusive or inappropriate content, or materials
thatwould breach applicable laws.

3. Seeking approval from the Strategic Marketing and Communications Team when using Council
branding on social media content they have created.

4. Including a prominent disclaimer on personal and Councillor social media platforms stating that the
views are their own and do not represent the position of Council. Councillors should be aware that a
disclaimer on personal social media accounts or posts will not, in itself, mean all content will
necessarily be interpreted as personal use unrelated to their councillor role.

5. Continuing to redirect Council enquiries or service requests via
customer_service @whitehorse.vic.gov.au or Snap Send Solve respectively.

6. Not committing Council or Council officers to actions, or undertakings, and not reproducing internal
communications without prior permission from the relevant General Manager.

7. Seeking agreement from the relevant General Manager to publish photos of Council staff on social
media if a photo permission form has not been completed.

8. Re-sharing content and posts from Council’s official social media and web platforms where
applicable.

9. Seeking training and development in the use of social media from the Strategic Marketing and
Communications department.

10. Understanding and complying with the provisions in this guide and seeking advice from the Strategic
Marketing and Communications department if unsure about applying the provisions of this guide.

6.2 The Strategic Marketing and Communications department are responsible for the ongoing
development, implementation and review of this guide and any associated processes or guidelines and
appropriate training for Councillors.

6.3 The Mayor/CEO is responsible for requesting removal of any content published by Councillors which
may adversely affect Council’s reputation or put it at risk of legal action.

7. RELATED POLICIES & LEGISLATION

This guide isimplemented in conjunction with the following Whitehorse City Council documents:
. IT Acceptable Use Policy
. Equal Opportunity and Human Rights Policy
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. Councillor Code of Conduct

. Media Relations Policy

The following legislation relates to this guide:

Copyright Act 1968

Freedom of Information Act 1982

Local Government Act 1989

Information Privacy Act 2000

Local Government (Democratic Reform) Act 2003
Equal Opportunity Act 2010

. Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014

INTERNAL USE ONLY

8. REVIEW

Responsible Manager: Head of Strategic Marketing and Communications.
Date Adopted: October 2019

Review Date: Commencement of new Council (2020)

This guide has been reviewed for Human Rights Charter compliance.
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